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NOTICE TO MEMBERS

Notice is hereby given that the 27" Annual General Meeting of the members of Muthoottu Mini
Financiers Limited (CIN:U65910KL1998PLC012154) will be held on Monday, the 08" day of
September 2025 at 11 A.M at the Registered Office of the Company at 65/623 K Muthoottu
Royal Towers, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala-682017 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Balance Sheet as on 31% March 2025, Statement of
Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of changes in Equity and Notes on
accounts for the year ended on that date along with report of Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT the Company do hereby adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31%
March 2025, Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of changes in
Equity and Notes on accounts for the year ended on that date, along with report of Board of
Directors and Auditors.” '

2. To appoint director in place of Mr. Mathew Muthoottu, who retires from office by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and to pass the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Mathew Muthoottu (DIN: 01786534), who retires by
rotation, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company whose office is liable
to retirement by rotation.”

Special Business:

3. Approval of related party transactions under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
Corporate Guarantee/Collateral security from Muthoottu Mini Hotels Private
Limited.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 188 and other applicable
provisions if any, of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made there under (including
statutory modifications, amendments and enactments thereto, for the time being in force),
consent of shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to M/s. Muthoottu Mini
Financiers Limited (MMFL) for availing/ continue to avail corporate guarantee/collateral
security from Muthoottu Mini Hotels private limited for the credit facilities availed by
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MMFL from banks/financial institutions aggregating up to Rs.1000 Cr. (One Thousand
Crores)”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Mathew Muthoottu (DIN: 01786534), Mrs. Nizzy
Mathew (DIN: 01680739) or any one of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to carry on all actions in this regard.”

. Approval of related party transactions under section 188 of the Companies Act 2013-
Corporate Guarantee/Collateral security from Muthottu Mini Theaters Private
Limited

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 188 and other applicable
provisions if any, of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made there under (including
statutory modifications, amendments and enactments thereto, for the fime being in force),
consent of shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to Mys. Muthoottu Mini
Financiers Limited( MMFL) for availing/ continue to avail corporate guarantee/collateral
security from Muthottu Mini Theatres private limited for the credit facilities availed by
MMFL from banks/financial institutions aggregating up to Rs.1000 Cr. (One Thousand
Crores)”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. MATHEW M UTHOOTTU (DIN: 01 786534), Mrs.
NIZZY MATHEW (DIN: 01680739) or any one of the Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to carry on all actions in this regard.”

- Approval of related party transactions under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
Corporate Guarantee/Collateral security from Mini Muthoottu Credit India Private

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s)
resolution as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 188 and other applicable
provisions if any, of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made there under (including
statutory modifications, amendments and enactments thereto, for the time being in force),
consent of shareholders of the Com pany be and is hereby accorded to Mys. Muthoottu Minj



“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Mathew Muthoottu (DIN: 01786534), Mrs. Nizzy
Mathew (DIN: 01680739) or any one of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to carry on all actions in this regard.”

6. Approval for the reappointment of Mr Ven ugopal Kuttappan Nair (DIN: 06783512)
as Non Executive Independent Director of the Company for the second tenure of Three
years.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as Special Resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150,152 read with
Schedule IV and such other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rule, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation
25(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(SEBI LODR), consent of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to re-appointment of
Mr. Venugopal Kuttappan Nair (DIN: 06783512) as an Independent Director (Non-
Executive) of the Company for the second tenure of three years starting from 09.10.2025 to
08.10.2028."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the director or Company secretary is authorized
to sign and execute all such documents and papers as may be required for the purpose and
file necessary e-form with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds and
things as may considered expedient and necessary in this regard.”

7. Remuneration to Mr.Mathew Muthoottu, Managing Director DIN 01786534

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution
as a Special Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions contained in Section 196, 197,198, 203 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder read with
Schedule V (Part 11 Section I of Schedule V) approval of the members of the company be and
is hereby accorded for the payment of remuneration to Mr.Mathew Muthoottu, Managing
Director not exceeding INR 35 lakhs per month payable with effect from July 01, 2025, as set

Directors.”



8. Remuneration to Mrs. Nizzy Mathew — Chairman and Whole time Director, DIN
01680739

To consider and, if thou ght fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution
as a Special Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions contained in Section 196, 197,198, 203 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder read with
Schedule V (Part IT Section I of Schedule V) approval of the members of the company be and
is hereby accorded for the payment of remuneration to Mrs.Nizzy Mathew, Chairman & Whole
Time Director not exceedin g INR 25 lakhs payable per month with effect from J uly 01,2025,
as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to this Notice convening the Annual General
Meeting, with liberty to the Board to alter and vary such terms and conditions including
remuneration so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule V (Part II Section I of

Schedule V) of the Companies Act, 2013, or any amendments thereto as may be decided by the
Board of Directors.”

By the Order of the Board

.
= —
Mathe oottu

Managing Director

(DIN: 01786534)
Place: Kochi

Date: 14-08-2025



Notes

L. A member entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on a poll, instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member.
A person can act as proxy on behalf of members upto and not exceeding fifty and holding
in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company. Further,
a member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy
for any other person or member. The instrument appointing proxy must be deposited at the
registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting,

2. Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102( 1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
item No.4 annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4. 4. Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting and bring
their Attendance Slips to the Meeting.

5. The Register of Directors and their Shareholding, Register of Contracts or Arrangements in
which Directors are interested maintained as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and all other relevant documents referred in this Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall
be open for inspection by the Members at the Corporate office of the Company during the
business hours on all working days upto the date of AGM.

6. Interms of the requirements of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) a route
map along with prominent landmark for easy location to reach the venue of Annual General
Meeting is annexed with the notice of Annual General Meeting.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
SOl QATURY SIATEMENT

Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
item No.3-8 is annexed hereto and Jforms part of this notice.

In terms of the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement setting out
the material facts concerning special business shall be annexed to the notice. The said material
facts shall relate to the nature of concern, interest, financial or otherwise of every director or
manager, if any of the company and every key managerial personnel and relatives of these
persons. Further, any other information or facts that may enable members to understand the
meaning, scope and implication of the item of business shall also be furnished in the statement,

Item No.3

Approval of related party transactions under section 188 of the Companies Act 2013-
Corporate Guarantee / Collateral Security from Muthoottu Mini Hotels Private Limited

The Company requires more funds to carry on its business in a more effective manner. The
Board of Directors or a committee thereof borrow funds from Banks/Financial Institutions to
meet immediate requirements of its working capital, within the borrowing limits of the
Company currently at 8000 crores,

At the request of Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited (MMFL) M/s. Muthoottu Mini Hotels
Private Limited has granted corporate guarantee/collateral security for the credit facilities
availed from banks/financial institutions. Further, additional funds are expected from
banks/financial institutions in the form of fresh loans or enhancement of existing facilities, such
as WCDL, cash credit, term loans, or other credit facilities. Therefore, the Board in its Meeting
held on 17-07-2025 has approved raising funds using the corporate Guarantee and collateral
securities of Muthoottu Mini Hotels not exceeding 1000 crores.

The transaction is a continuing material related party transaction as per the provisions of section
188 of the Companies Act 2013. Hence approval of the shareholders by way of resolution is
sought for the said continuing material related party transaction.

Your Directors recommend the passing of the above resolution as a special resolution.

Mr. Mathew Muthootu and Ms, Nizzy Mathew are interested directors who are also the
Directors and shareholders of Muthoottu Mini Hotels private Limited.

None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnels are interested in the resolution.



Additional information
2accriional information

(a). Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Muthottu Mini Hotels Private
Limited is a company promoted by Mrs.Nizzy Mathew, Whole time Director and
Mr.Mathew Muthoottu, Managing Director who are also shareholders and directors of
Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited.

(b). The nature, duration of the contract and particulars of the contract or arrangement:
To borrow/ continue borrowing money on the basis of corporate guarantee/collateral
security in the name of Muthootty Mini Hotels Private Limited.

(c). The material terms of the contract or arrangement including the value, if any; Not
Applicable

(d). Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if any; Not Applicable

(). The manner of determ ining the pricing and other commercial terms, both included as part
of contract and not considered as part of the contract- Not Applicable

(). Whether all factors relevant to the contract have been considered, if not, the details of
factors not considered with the rationale for not considering those factors-Not Applicable

(). Any other information relevant or important to take a decision on the proposed transaction.

The amount borrowed including amount proposed to be borrowed for which the guarantee/
collateral security shall be up to Rs.1000 Crores. (One Thousand Crores).

Memorandum of interest of relatives/KMP

Mathew Muthoottu, .
0,
Managing Director Son of Mrs.Nizzy Mathew 14859912 59.36%

Nizzy Mathew, Chairman Mother of Mr.Mathew
L and Wholetime Director Muthoottu 3354446 13.40%

The Resolution is recommended to the members for approval as special resolution.

Item No.4

Approval of related party transactions under section 188 of the Companies Act 2013-
Corporate Guarantee / Collateral Security from Muthottu Mini Theaters Private Limited

Company currently at 8000 crores,



At the request of Muthoottu Minj Financiers Limited (MMFL) M/s. Muthottu Mini Theaters
Private Limited has granted corporate guarantee/collateral security for the credit facilities
availed from banks/financial institutions. Further, additional funds are expected from
banks/financial institutions in the form of fresh loans or enhancement of existing facilities, such
as WCDL, cash credit, term loans, or other credit facilities, Therefore the Board in its Meeting
held on 17-07-2025 has approved raising funds using the corporate Guarantee and collateral
securities of M/s, Muthottu Mini Theaters Private Limited not exceeding 1000 crores.

The transaction is a continuing material related party transaction as per the provisions of section
188 of the Companies Act 2013. Hence approval of the shareholders by way of resolution is
sought for the said continuing material related party transaction.

None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are interested in the resolution.

Additional information
—==22onal information

of contract and not considered as part of the contract- Not Applicable
(f). Whether all factors relevant to the contract have been considered, if not, the details of
factors not considered with the rationale for not considering those factors-Not Applicable




Memorandum of interest of relatives/KMP

Mathew Muthoottu, Son of Mrs.Nizzy Mathew | 14859912 59.36%

Managing Director

Nizzy Mathew,

Chairrian and Mother of Mr.Mathew 3354446 13.40%
= . Muthoottu

Wholetime Director

The Resolution is recommended to the members for approval as special resolution.
Item No.5

Approval of related party transactions under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
Corporate Guarantee/Collateral security from Mini Muthoottu Credit India Private
Limited.

as WCDL, cash credit, term loans, or other credit facilities. Therefore, the Board in its Meeting
held on 17-07-2025 has approved raising funds using the corporate Guarantee and collateral
securities of Mini Muthoottu Credit India Private Limited not exceeding 500 crores.

Your Directors recommend the passing of the above resolution as a special resol ution.

Mr. Mathew Muthootu and Ms. Nizzy Mathew are interested directors who are also the
Directors and shareholders of Mini Muthoottu Credit India Private Limited.

None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnels are interested in the resolution.




Additional information

(). Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mini Muthoottu Credit India
Private Limited is a company promoted by Mrs.Nizzy Mathew, Whole time Director and
Mr.Mathew Muthoottu, Managing Director who are also shareholders and directors of
Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited.

(b). The nature, duration of the contract and particulars of the contract or arrangement:
To borrow/ continue borrowing money on the basis of corporate guarantee/collateral
security in the name of Mini Muthoottu Credit India Private Limited.

(c). The material terms of the contract or arrangement including the value, if any; Not
Applicable

(d). Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if any; Not Applicable

(€). The manner of determining the pricing and other commercial terms, both included as part
of contract and not considered as part of the contract- Not Applicable

(). Whether all factors relevant to the contract have been considered, if not, the details of
factors not considered with the rationale for not considering those factors-Not Applicable

(g)-Any other information relevant or important to take a decision on the proposed transaction.

The amount borrowed including amount proposed to be borrowed for which the guarantee/
collateral security shall be up to Rs.500 Crores. (One Thousand Crores).

Memorandum of interest of relatives/KMP

_ _- i _ ¥ = L o LS i st 13 ! A fosd s i s |
i NI a ) Son of Mrs. Nizzy Mathew | 14859912 59.36%
Managing Director
Nizzy Mathew, Chairman Mother of Mr.Mathew

and Wholetime Director Muthoottu

3354446 13.40%

The Resolution is recommended to the members for approval as special resolution.

Item No.6

Approval for the reappointment of Mr Venugopal Kuttappan Nair (DIN: 06783512) as
Non Executive Independent Director of the Company for the second tenure of Three
years,

Mr. Venugopal Kuttappan Nair (DIN: 06783512), was appointed as an Additional -
Independent Director (Non-executive) of the Company at the board meeting held on 08th
October, 2024 . At the EGM held on 23" December 2024 the shareholders ratified the

appointment of Mr.Venugopal as Non Executive Independent Director of the Company till 08
October 2025.

10



Now its is proposed to reappoint Mr Venugopal Kuttappan Nair (DIN: 067835 12) as the Non
Executive Independent Director of the company for the second term from 09-10-2025 to 08-
10-2025, The reappointment of Mr. Venugopal Kuttappan Nair has been approved by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their meeting held on 17-07-2025. The
Committee, after examining his service rendered to the Company, qualifications, experience,
and independence, found him to satisfy the criteria prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Committee recommended re-appointment as an
Independent Director on the Board for a further period of three years. The Board at their meeting
held on 17-07-2025 had considered the recommendation of the Committee and approved
reappointment of Mr.Venugopal Kuttappan Nair for the second tenure for a period of three
years subject to the approval by the members of the company.

Accordingly, in terms of the requirements of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 approval of the members of the Company is required for reappointment of
Mr. Venugopal Kuttappan Nair (DIN: 0678351 2) as Non executive Independent Director of the
Company for the second term of three years with from 09-10-2025 to 08-10-2028 .

Hence, this resolution is placed before the members for their consideration and approval at the
Annual General Meeting.

The Board recommends the passing of this resolution as set out in the notice of the meeting as
a special resolution.

The Company has also received a declaration from Mr. Venugopal Kuttappan Nair declaring
that he continues to meet the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company other than Mr. Venugopal
Kuttappan Nair, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No.7

Remuneration to Mr, Mathew Muthoottu, Managing Director

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on 17-07-2025, after due
consideration of the matter with reference to the provisions contained in Section 196, 197,198,
203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder read

The Board in their meeting held on 17-07-2025 after careful consideration adopted the above
recommendations of the Nomination & Rem uneration Committee, and fixed his remuneration,
as detailed above, subject to the approval of members at the ensuing general meeting.

Mr.Mathew Muthoottu is one of the promoters and Managing Director of the company and is
the son of Mrs.Nizzy Mathew, Whole Time Director of the Company.

11



None of the other directors is interested in the above resolution except as disclosed in the
memorandum of interest. Mr. Mathew Muthoottu is interested to the extent of the remuneration
receivable by him as Managing Director.

None of the Key Managerial persons or their relatives are interested in the resolution.

Mrs. Mathew Muthoottu is a Promoter Director and holds 14859912 shares in the company
comprising 59.36% of the Paid up share capital of the Company

Memorandum of interest of relatives/KMP

Name Nature of relationship [ No. Of shares held | % of paid up share capital —\
Roy M Mathew, father of

g’f;‘fe;‘zlﬂgg‘;’g;“ and Father 999995 4.00%

Company

Nizzy Mathew Mother 3354446 13.40%

L

The Resolution is commended to the members for approval as special resolution.

Item No.8

None of the other directors is interested in the above resolution except as disclosed in the
memorandum of interest, Mrs, Nizzy Mathew is interested to the extent of the remuneration
receivable by her as Whole Time Director.

None of the Key Managerial persons or their relatives are interested in the resolution.

Mrs. Nizzy Mathew is a Promoter Director and holds 3354446 shares in the company
comprising 13.44 % of the Paid up share capital of the Company

12




Memorandum of interest of relatives/KMP

Name Nature of relationship | No. Of shares held | % of paid up share capital
Roy M Mathew, Husband
i bl g Husband 999995 4.00&
Company

LMathew Muthoottu Son 14859912 59.36%

The Resolution is commended to the members for approval as special resolution.

By the Order of the Board

Maﬂﬁ

Managing Director

(DIN: 01 786534)
Place: Kochi ]

Date: 14-08-2025
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Details of directors seeking appointment / reappointment at the 27" Annual General Meeting
in pursuance of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Name Mr. Mathew Muthoottu Mr. Venugopal Kuttappan Nair
DIN 01786534 06783512

Age & Date of Birth 35 Years, 29-08-1989 72 Years, 21-10-1952
Nationality India India

Qualification

Completed Masters in Business
Management, University  of
Cambridge, UK

Post-graduate in MSc from the
University of Leeds, UK,

Terms and Conditions of

Reappointment by rotation under

Re appointment in terms  of

| 2024-25

appointment/reappointment section 152(6) Section 149(6) & 152 for a period
of Three years

Remuneration/ sitting fees | 294 lakhs Sitting fees

received from the Company 2.45 lakhs

in the F.Y. 2024-25

Date of appointment on the 07-03-2008 08-10-2024

Board

shareholding in the entity, | 1,48,59,912 (59.36%) Nil

including shareholding as a

beneficial owner.

Relationship ~ with  other Relative of Mrs Nizzy Mathew | Ni]

Directors

Number of Board meetings | Held 28 Held 12

attended during the Fy Attended 28 Attended 12
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DIRECTORS REPORT

The Members, )
Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited

Financial Performance

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Seventh Annual Report on the business
and operations of your Company together with the audited accounts for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2025.

Financial summary
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Total Revenue 81514.53 67183.91
Total Expenditure 68542.71 56128.15
Profit before Tax 12971.82 11055.76
Add: Prior Period items (Net)
Tax Expense -3554.17 -3272.62
Profit for the period 9417.65 7783.14
Other Comprehensive Income 35.32 -17.83
Total comprehensive income 9452.97 7765.31
Surplus appropriated as follows:
- Transfer to Special Reserve -1890.59 -1553.06
- Transfer from/(to) Debenture Redemption Reser 0 0
ve
- Transfer to impairment reserve -34.04 0
Balance brought forward from previous year 27766.36 21554.12
Surplus Carried Forward 35294.70 27766.37
Gross NPA (%) 0.85% 0.88%
Net NPA (%) 0.50% 0.72%
CRAR (%) 21.38% 23.86%
CRAR- Tier I Capital (%) 16.14% 16.93%
CRAR- Tier II Capital (%) 5.24% 6.93%

Registered Office & Corporate Office: 65/623 K, Muthoottu Royal To

Transfer to Statutory Reserves

An amount of Rs.1890.59 lakhs is transferred to the Special Reserve Fund for FY 2024-25.
The statutory reserve balance as at March 31, 2025 is Rs.11094.00 lakhs.

wers, Kaloor, Ernakulam, Kerala- 682017, India
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State of Affairs of the Company

We are a non-deposit taking NBFC-ML in the gold loan sector lending money against the
pledge of household gold Jewellery (“Gold Loans™) in the state of Kerala, Tamil Nadu,
Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Haryana, Maharashtra, Gujarat, Delhi, Uttar Pradesh
and Goa and the union territory of Puducherry. We also have microfinance loan segment
wherein we provide unsecured loans to Joint liability group of women customers {minimum of
2 persons) who require funds to carry out their business activities through few of our branches
in the state of Kerala. Our Gold Loan portfolio as on March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023 comprises of 613863 gold loan accounts, 557249 gold loan accounts, and
503974 gold loan accounts respectively, aggregating to 3,81,256.08 lakh, 3,22,221.23 lakh and
3,04,876.78 lakh which is 92%, 91% and 93% of our total loans and advances as on such
specific dates.

We, as on March 31, 2025, had a network of 948 branches spread in the states of Keraia, Tamil
Nadu, Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Haryana, Maharashtra, Gujarat, Delhi, Uitar
Pradesh and Goa and the union territory of Puducherry and we employ (HR to provide) 5,734
persons in our business operations.

Change in the nature of business
During the year, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.
Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel appointed / resigned

Mr. Mathew Muthoottu, Managing Director of the Company has been reappointed for a period
of three years commencing from 30-05-2024 to 30-05-2027.

Mrs.Nizzy Mathew, Whole Time Director of the Company has also been reappointed for a
period of three years commencing from 01-01-2025 to 31-12-2027.

The tenure of Mr.MS Rajagopal DIN 08114376 Independent Director has ceased from the
closing hours of 30-09-2024.

Mr.Mampuzha Mathew Herbert DIN: 00640728 has been appointed as Independent Director
of the Company with effect from 01-04-2024 for a period of one year and has been reappointed
as the Independent Director of the Company for a further tenure of 3 years from 01-04-2025 to
31-03-2028 by the members in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on19-05-2025 .

Mrs.Babita Teresa George was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect
from 16-11-2024 and was regularized as Non- Executive Director of the Company in the extra
ordinary General Meeting held on 10-02-2025 with effect from 10-02-2025.

Mr.Venugopal Kuttappan Nair was appointed as Additional Independent Director of the
Company with effect from 08-10-2024 and was appointed as an Independent Director to hold
office till 08-10-2025, by the members at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23-12-
2024




Mr.PE Mathai was reappointed as CEQ of the Com

of one year commencing from 01-01-2025.

pany on contract basis for a further period

No other Directors/ KMP were appointed/resigned during the financial year 2024-25.

Dividend

No dividend is being declared by the company.

Raising of Additional Capital

There was no capital infusion in the Company during the financial year 2024-25

Capital Adequacy

Your Company is well capitalized and has a ca
asset ratio- CRAR) of 21.38% as on March 31 .2

requirement of 15 %,

Resource Mobilization

a)

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 32,500 Lakhs
of the Company is Rs. 25032.53 Lakhs. The Comp

Share Capital

with or without differential ri ghts during the FY 2024-25.

b}

Debentures

» Private Placement of Debentures

The Company has made the followin

FY 2024-25,

pital adequacy ratio (Capital to risk weighted
025. This is as against the minimum regulatory

and the paid-up share capital
any had not issued any equity shares either

g issues of listed privately placed debentures during the

Issue

ISIN

Description

Allotment

Quantity

Face
Value

Amount

NCD PP
Listed

Tranche IV

INE101Q07AQ?7

Secured

25-04-2024

7,500

1,00,000

75,00,00,000.00

NCD PP
Listed
Tranche V

INEiG1Q07AS3

Secured

13-09-2024

2,500

1,00,000

25,00,00,000.00

NCD PP
Listed
Tranche VI

INE101Q07AZ8

Secured

06-02-2025

8.600

1,00,000

86,00,00,000.00

NCD PP
Listed
Tranche
VII

L

INE101Q07BA9

Secured

21-03-2025

50,000

10,000

50,00,00,000,00




» Public Issue of Secured and Unsecured NCDs

The Company has made public issue of secured Non-Convertible Debentures during the FY
2024-25, of face value of Rs.1000/- each the details of which are mentioned below.

—
Issue ISIN Allotment I\Dfla:::urity of &f:)tiw Amount
VI iNE101007ax3 | 19-11-2024 12022026 | 99667 9,96,67,000
| inetorqorave [ 19112024 |0 ar | sasss 5,28,37,000
™| mezotaorars | 19112024 | 1 onn | 1100 12,19,99,000

| Xvi INE01Q07AY1L | P9M2024 |00 1y 5007 | 331584 33,15,84,000
M | iNe101007aws | 19-11-2024 18112027 | 97515 9,75,15,000
I iNg101007aT1 | 19112024 18-11-2028 | 329189 32,91,89,000

P | inero1qo7avy | 1112024 |0 113195 11,31,85,000

©)  Commercial Paper

The details of commercial paper which are unsecured issued by the company during the FY
2024-25 is as foliows:

Redempti . Face ]

Issue ISIN Allotment on P Quantity Value Amount
INE101Q1 | 19-06- [8-09-

: 4017 2024 2024 600 200000 30,00,00,000
INE101Q1 | 05-07- 03-01-

2 4025 2024 2025 800 500000 40,00,00,000
INE101Q1 | 10-09- 10-12-

3 4033 2024 2024 400 500000 20,00,00,000
INE101Q1 | 24-09- 24-12-

4 4041 2024 2024 600 500000 30,00,00,000
INE101Q1 | 30-09- 30-09-

5 4058 2024 2025 1000 500000 50,00,00,000




INEI01QIT | 11-10- 14-03-

6 4066 2024 2025 1000 500000 | 50,00,00,000
INEIOIQI | 27-12- 11-03-

7 4082 2024 2025 500 500000 | 25,00,00,000
INEI01QI | 30-12- 28-03-

8 4074 2024 2025 300 500000 15,00,00,000
INEIOIQT | 03-01- 04-07-

9 4090 2025 2025 840 500000 { 42,00,00,000
INEIOIQI | 20-02- 28-07-

10 4108 2025 2025 500 500000 | 25.00,00,000
INE101Q1 | 17-03- 22-08-

11 4116 2025 2025 700 500000 | 35,00,00,000

d) Bank Finance:

Bank Finance remains one of the important sources of funding for your Company. During
the financial year 2024-25 we have added 4 new banks and 3 NBF C/SFCs who have granted
us credit facilities amounting Rs.451 Crores and enhancements/ fresh facilities from
existing banks who have sanctioned facilities amounting Rs.720 crores to the Company. As
at the end of the financial year there were 28 Banks and 5 NBFCs continuing their support
to your Company with a total sanctioned limit amounting to Rs.3300.94 crores.

e) Subordinated debt

During the FY 2024-25, the Company has raised an amount of Rs.26.42 crores by issuance
of subordinated debt

Non -Acceptance of Deposits

Your Company is classified as a non-deposit taking Company (NBFC Middle Layer). The
Company has not accepted any deposit during the financial year. Hence, the provisions
/disclosures under Chapter V of the Companies Act 2013 (Acceptance of Deposits by
Companies) are not applicable.

Listing
The outstanding public issues of secured and unsecured non-convertible redeemable debentures

are listed in Bombay Stock Exchange limited and listing fees till date have been paid by the
Company.

Debenture Trustees

SERVICES LIMITED

1402/1403, B-WING, 14TH FLOOR,
DALAMAL TOWERS, FREE PRESS
JOURNAL MARG, 217,

NARIMAN PQOINT,

MITCON CREDENTIA TRUSTEESHIP VISTRA ITCL (lNDlA) LIMITED —‘

THE IL&FS FINANCIAL CENTRE, PLOT NO.C-22
G-BLOCK, BANDRA KURLA COMPLEX,

BANDRA (EAST), MUMBAI-400051

Contact No- 022 2659 3333
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MUMBAI ~- 400021 Email- itclcomplianceofficer@vistra.com
Contact No- 022 2282 8200

Email- trusteeinvestors@mitconindia.com

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Pursuant to Regulation 16 of the SEBI Debt Regulations and Section 71(4) of the Companies
Act, 2013 states that where debentures are issued by any company, the company shall create a
debenture redemption reserve out of the profits of the company available for payment of
dividend. Rule 18(7) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. As
amended by Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules, 2019, listed NBFC
is not required to create a DRR in case of issue of debentures.

However, the Company has maintained a Debenture Redemption Fund in the form of deposits
with scheduled banks, representing 15% of the amount of its debentures maturing during the
financial year 2025-26.

Registered Office:

The registered office of the Company is located at 65/623 K, Muthoottu Royat Towers, Kaloor,
Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala-682017.

Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agencies & Migration of Ratings during the year

The Credit ratings for the Company are as detailed hereunder:

Credit Rating  [Instrument Rating as at Remarks
Agency 31.03.2025
ICRA Ratings |For Non- [ICRA] A (Stable) |Nii
Convertible
Debentures and
Bank Loans
CARE For Non- CARE A-; Stable | Nil
Convertible For Bank Loans and
Debentures and  [NCD
Bank Loans
[ndia Ratings [Bank loan and IND A-/Stable For |Nil
e BTGNS ok Lo an

Further the Company has also received Al ratings from both CARE ratings and India Ratings
for its commercial paper issuance.




Subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Associate companies

The Company has no subsidiary, associates and joint venture companies and hence no company
has become or ceased to be your Company’s subsidiary / joint venture / associate company
during the year,

Highlights of performance of Subsidiary, Associates and Joint Venture Com panies.

The Board’s report is prepared based on the stand alone financial statements of the Company
and that the Company has no subsidiary, associates and joint venture companies.

Energy Conservation, Technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there
under relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption do not apply to your Company
as it is not a manufacturing company. However, your Company has been increasingly using
information technology in its operations and promotes conservation of resources. During the
year under review, there was no foreign eaming or expenditure in the Company.

Evaluation of Directors, Board and Committees

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, the Board has carried out an
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the
evaluation of the working of the Committees of the Board. The Board performance was
evaluated based on the feedback received from each Director about their views on the
performance of the Board covering various criteria such as degree of fulfilment of key
responsibilities, Board structure and composition, establishment and delineation of
responsibilities to various Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and
functioning, Board culture and quality of relationship between the Board and the Management
etc. Feedback was also taken from every director on his assessment of the performance of each
of the other Directors. The Independent Directors shared their views amongst themselves
evaluating the performance of the non-independent directors and performance of the Board as
a whole. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also reviewed the performance of
the individual directors based on their knowledge, level of preparation and effective
participation in meetings, understanding of their roles as directors etc

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy & Initiatives

The Company believes in achieving its CSR objectives through sustained intervention and in
the future looks forward to partnerin g with implementing agencies having strong credentials in
the areas the Company seeks to make a difference.

The Company also believes that it is well positioned to build on the foundations put in place
and the understanding gained in the current year to broaden and accelerate its CSR interventions
so as to make a difference and meet its own as well as the legislated expectations.

An amount of Rs.163.01 lakhs has been spent towards CSR pertaining to the current financial
year. The total amount to be spent for the Financial Year 2024-25, including the activities ear
marked pertaining to the FY 2023-24 is Rs.176.82 lakhs and the amounts unspent is identified
to be spent in approved projects amountin g 10 Rs.4.64 lakhs have been deposited in a separate
account, to be utilized during the ensuing Financial Year.

The detailed policy is displayed on the website of the Company at:
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hitps://www.muthoottumini.com/privacy-policy-2/

The report on CSR activities is annexed to this report and marked as Annexure 1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s philosophy of Corporate Governance is aimed at assisting the management of
the Company in the efficient conduct of its business and meeting its obligations to stakeholders,
guided by a strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity,

Your Company upholds the standards of governance and is compliant with corporate
governance provisions as stipulated by Regulatory Authorities. The Board of Directors last
reviewed the corporate governance policy on 17t May 2023. The disclosure pertaining to
Corporate governance is as follows:

Comtposition of the Board
Capacity
(ie No of
Executive No shares
Non of held in
Executive othe and
/Chairma r convertihi
n/Promot dire e
81 Direct | er/Nomin ctor instrumen
N | Name of the | or ee/Indepe Number of | ship ts held in
0 | Director since nient) DIN meetings s Remuneration the NBFC
Sala
ry
and
othe C
r 0
com m
Att pens | Sitt | mi
Hel | end atio | ing | ssi
d ed n fee | om
Mathew 07-03- 017865
1 | Muthoottu 2008 Executive | 34 28 28 294 0] 0] 14839912
Nizzy 10-10- 016807
2 | Mathew 2014 Executive | 39 28 28 180 01 0 3354446
MS 08-10- | Independe | 081143
3 | Rajagopal* 2018 nt 76 16 16 0] 37] 0 0
Manojkumar | 01-10- | Independe | 093573
4R 2021 nt 26 28 28 0] 69 0 0
G1-04- | Non 006407
5 | MM Herbert | 2024 Executive | 28 28 | 28 015351 0 0
Venugopal
Kuttappan 08-10- | Independe | 067835
6 | Nair® 2024 nt 12 12 12 0 245 0 0
Babita
Teresa 16-11- | Non 108388
7 | George® 2024 Executive | 44 8 3 61 121 0 0

*The tenure of Mr. MS Rajagopal DIN 08114376 Independent Director expired from the closing hours of 30-09-
2024.




#Mr.Venugopal Kuttappan Nair was appointed as Additional Independent Director of the Company with effect
from 08-10-2024 He was regularized as an as Independent Director at the EGM held on December 23,
2024 to hold office till October 8, 2025

8Babita Teresa George was appointed as Additional Director by the Board of Directors in the

meeting held on November 14, 2024, effective from November 1 6, 2024 and her appointment was
regularised as non executive Director at the EGM held on February 10, 2025

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial

year

Capacity (ie
Executive/Non
Executive/Chai | Nature of
rman/Promoer | change
/Nominee/Inde | (resignation,
SINo Name of the Director | pendent) appointment) Effective date
Non Executive
1 | Babita Teresa George | Director Regularization 10-02-2025
Whole Time Reappointment
2 | Nizzy Mathew Director for three years 01-01-2025
Additional
3 | Babita Teresa George | Director Appointment 16-11-2024
Non Executive
Venugopal Kuttappan | Independent
4 | Nair Director Regularization 23-12-2024
Additional
Venugopal Kuttappan | Independent
5 | Nair Director Appointment 08-10-2024
: Reappointment
Non Executive | for second
Independent tenure of three
6 | MM Herbert Director years 01-04-2025
Managing Reappointment
7 | Mathew Muthoottu Director for three years 30-05-2024
Non Executive
Independent
8 | MM Herbert Director Appointment 01-04-2024
Non Executive
Independent Cessation of
9 | MJ Paul Director tenure 31-03-2024
Change in
designation
from Non
Executive
Non Executive | Director to
Independent Independent
10 | Manojkumar R Director Director 01-04-2023




Committee of the Beard and their composition

Audit Committee FY 2024-25

Capacity (ie
Executive/Non
Execuitve/ Number of
Member of | Chairman/Promo | meetings of | No of shares
S1 | Name of the committee ter/Nominee/Inde | the held in the
No | Director since pendent) committee NBFC
Atten
Held | ded
Rajagopal
1 M.S* 09-10-2020 | Member 3 3 0
Mathew
2 1 Muthoottu 07-03-2008 | Member 5 5 14859912
3 | Manojkumar R 17-04-2024 | Chairman 5 5 0
4 | MM Herbert 08-10-2024 | Member 2 2 0
*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect form 30-09-2024
Nomination & Remuneration Committee FY 2024-25
No
of
Capacity (ie shar
Executive/ es
Non Execuitve/ held
Chairman/ Number of in
)| Promoter/ meetings of | the
N Member of Nominee/ the NBF
o | Name of the Director | committee since Independent) committee C
Hel | Attend
d ed
1 | Rajagopal MS* 09-10-2020 ;| Chairman 0 0 0
2 | MJ Paul# 18-11-2019 | Member 0 0 0
3 | Manojkumar R 09-11-2021 | Member 3 3 0
4 | MM Herbert 17-04-2024 | Member 3 3 0
Venugopal Kuttappan
5 | Nair 08-10-2024 | Member 1 1 0

*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect form 30-09-2024
#Tenure of Mr MJ Paul ceased with effect form 3{-03-2024
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee FY 2024-25

Capacity (ie
Executive/
Non Execuitve/ No of
S Chairman/ shares
| Member of | Promoter/ Number of held in
N | Name of the | committee | Nominee/ meetings of the
o | Director since Independent) the committee | NBFC
Atten
Held | ded
Rajagopal
1 | MS* 09-10-2020 | Chairman 2 2 0
Nizzy
2 | Mathew 10-12-2013 | Member 4 4| 3354446
Mathew
3 | Muthoottu 10-12-2013 | Member 4 4| 14859912
Manojkumar
4 R 08-10-2024 | Chairman 2 2 0
*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect form 30-09-2024
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee FY 2024-25
Capacity (ie
Executive/
Non Execuitve/
Membe | Chairman/ No of
Sl r of Promoter/ Number of shares
N | Name of the committ | Nominee/ meetings of held in the
o | Director ee since | Independent) the committee | NBFC
Attend
Held | ed
Rajagopal 09-10-
1 | MS* 2020 | Chairman "5 5 0
10-04-
2 | Nizzy Mathew 2014 | Member 7 7 3354446
Mathew 10-04-
3 | Muthoottu 2014 | Member 7 7 14859912
08-10-
4 | Manojkumar R 2024 | Chairman 2 2 0
*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect form 30-09-2024
Debenture Committee FY 2024-25
Capacity (ie
Executive/
Membe | Non Execuitve/ No of
rof Chairman/ shares
| commit | Promoter/ held in
N | Name of the | tee Nominee/ Number of meetings of | the
o | Director since Independent) the committee NBFC
Held | Attended
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Nizzy 10-12- 33544
1 | Mathew 2013 | Member 3 3 46
Mathew 10-12- 14859
2 | Muthoottu 2013 | Member 3 3 912
Rajagopal 09-10-
3 | MS* 2020 | Member | l 0
Manojkumar 08-10-
4 |R 2024 | Chairman 2 2 0
*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect form 30-09-2024
Risk Management Committee FY 2024-25
Capacity (ie
Executive/
Non
Execuitve/
Chairman/ No of
Member of | Promoter/ Number of shares
S! | Name of the committee | Nominee/ meetings of the held in the
No | Director since Independent) | committee NBFC
Held | Attended
1 | Nizzy Mathew 09-10-2020 | Member 4 4 3354446
2 | Mathew Muthoottu | 09-10-2020 | Member 4 4| 14859912
3 | Rajagopal MS* 09-10-2020 | Member 2 2 0
4 | Manojkumar R 08-10-2024 | Chairman 2 2 0
*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect form 30-09.2024
Borrowings & Investment Committee FY 2024-25
Capacity (ie
Executive/
Non
Execuitve/ No of
Chairman/ shares
Member of | Promoter/ Number of held in
Sl | Name of the committee | Nominee/ meetings of the the
No | Director since Independent) | committee NBFC
Held | Attended
1 Rajagopal MS* 01-10-2021 | Chairman 11 11 0
2 | Nizzy Mathew 01-10-2021 | Member 27 27| 3354446
3 _| Mathew Muthoottu | 01-10-202] Member 27 27| 14859912
4 | Manojkumar R 23-09-2024 | Chairman 16 16 0

*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect form 30-09-2024
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IT Strategy Committee FY 2024-25

Capacity (ie
Execuotive/
Memb | Non Execuitve/
er of | Chairman/ No of
S1 comm | Promoter/ Number of shares
N | Name of the ittee Nominee/ meetings of the held in
0_ | Director since | Independent) committee the NBFC
Attende
Held d
Manojkumar 17-04- 6 6
1 |R 2024 | Chairman 0
Mathew 17-04- 6 6
2 | Muthoottu 2024 | Member 14859912
17-04- 6 6
3 | Nizzy Mathew 2024 | Member ‘| 3354446

IT Strategy committee was constituted as a Jull fledged Board committee during FY 2024-25 in
compliance of RBI Master Direction on Information Technology Governance, Risk Controls
and Assurance Practices.

General Body Meetings during the FY 2024-25

SINe | Typeof Meeting | Date & Place Special Resolutions passed

1 Extra ordinary 01-04-2024 1.Appointment of MM Herbert as
general meeting | Registered office Independent Director

2.Reappointment of Mr Mathew
Muthoottu

3.Approval for Remuneration of Mr
Mathew Muthoottu

4. Approval of related party transactions
under section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 Corporate Guarantee from
Muthoottu Mini Hotels Private Limited.
5. Approval of related party transactions
under section 188 of the Companies Act
2013-Corporate Guarantee from
Muthottu Mini Theaters Private Limited
6. Modification of MOA

2 Annual General | 30-09-2024 I.Reappointment of Nizzy Mathew by

meeting Registered office | retirement by rotation i
2.Appointment of Statutory Auditors.

3.Approval of related party transactions
under section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 Corporate

i3




Guarantee/Collateral security from
Muthoottu Mini Hotels Private
Limited.

4.Approval of related party transactions
under section 188 of the Companies
Act 2013-Corporate
Guarantee/Collateral security from
Muthottu Mini Theaters Private
Limited

3. To adopt Memorandum of
Association of the Company in line
with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013

6.To approve the adoption of new set
of Articles of Association of Company
7.To Approve Alteration of the main
objects clause by adding new object
clauses in the Memorandum of
Association

3 Extra ordinary | 23-12-2024 Approval of appointment of

general meeting | Registered office Mr.Venugopal Kuttappan Nair as Non-
Executive Independent Director

4 Extra ordinary 10-02-2025 I.Reappointment of Mrs.Nizzy Mathew
general meeting | Registered office | as Whole Time Director

2. Regularisation of Babita Teresa
George as Non-Executive Director

Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

There were no default in compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, accounting
and secretarial standards during the FY 2024-25.

Details of penalties and strictures

There were no penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank of India or
any other statutory authority or regulator during the FY 2024-25

Breach of covenant

There was no instances of breach of covenant of loans availed or debt securities issued.
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Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

The RBI has neither assessed any additional provisioning requirements in excess of 5 percent
of the reported profits before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025, nor identified any additional Gross NPAs in excess of 5% of the
reported Gross NPAs for the said period.

Board of Directors

The present strength of Board of Directors is six {6) Directors which include two Executive
Directors and four Non- Executive Directors, out of which our Board has three Independent
Directors as detailed below:

}@tegorv Name of Directors
athew Muthoottn
Executive Director anaging Director
Nizzy Mathew
Chairperson

anoj Kumar R
Independent Director

Rajagopal M.S*
Independent Director
MM Herbert**

Independent Director

Non-Executive Director

Venugopal Kuttappan Nair#

Non Executive Independent Director
Babita Teresa Georgett

L Non Executive Director

*tenure expired on 30-09-2024

**appointed on 01-04-2024

#appointed on 08-10-2024

## appointed on 16-11-2024

Assessment of independence & Fit and proper criteria.

While considering the appointment of an Independent Director, the Nomination committee and
the board ensures that the incumbent satisfies the test of independence ags provided under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Reguiation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 2015 and aiso reviews the maintenance of their
independence during their tenure on the board.

Directors retiring by rotation:
In terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and Articles of Association of the

Company, Mrs. Mathew Muthoottu retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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Change in Board of Directors and KMP {(During 2024-25)

ame of Director &Date €ason —‘

Designation of Change : :
Babita Teresa George Regularized as Non Executive Director
Designation: Non Executive
Director
DIN:10833844

10-02-2025
Nizzy Mathew Reappointed for further period of three
Designation:  Whole  Time years from 01-01-2025 to 31-12-2027.
Director
DIN: 01680739 01-01-2025
Babita Teresa George Appointed as Additional Director
Designation: Additiona]
Director

DIN: 10838844

16-11-2024
Venugopal Kuttappan Nair Regularised as Non Executive
Designation: Non Executive Independent Director till 08-10-2025.
Independent Director
DIN: 06783512

23-12-2024
Venugopal Kuttappan Nair Appointed as Additional Independent
Designation: Additional Director of the Company
Independent Director
DIN: 06783512

08-10-2024
MM Herbert Reappointed as Independent Director for
Designation: Non Executive further three years from 01-04-2025 to
Independent Director 31-03-2028.
DIN: 00640728

01-04-2025
Mathew Muthootty 30-05-2024 Reappointment for three years from 30-
Desi gnation:Managing 05-2024 to 30-05-2027
Director
DIN: 01786534
MM Herbert 01-04-2024 Appointed as Independent Di rector with
Designation: Independent effect from 01-04-2024
Director
DIN: 00640728

Meetings of Directors

During FY 2024-25, the Board met twenty-eight times to discuss
business and policy matters of the Company.

members in meeting were as under.
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ate of Board meeting Board Strength Directors Present
17-04-2024 3
25-04-2(24 5
07-05-2024 D
17-05-2024 5
27-05-2024 S
11-06-2024 5
19-06-2024 >
21-06-2024 o
05-07-2024 5
13-08-2024 3
14-08-2024 5
(5-09-2024 5
10-09-2024 >
13-09-2024 5
23-09-2024 D
§
5
5
>
5
6
6
6
6
0
6
6
6

B0-09-2024
08-10-2024
09-10-2024
11-10-2024
14-11-2024
19-11-3024
30-12-2024
D4-01-2025
06-02-2025
14-02-2025
27-02-2025
12-03-2025
P1-03-2025

D
>
5
5
5
3
3
5
5
5
5
5
>
5
§
5
5
§
5
5
6
0
6
6
0
6
6
6

Disclosure of relationship between Director(s) interest

Name Designation in the Company Relationship
Mathew Muthoottu Managing Director Son of Nizzy Mathew
Nizzy Mathew Whole Time Director __|_Mother of Mathew Muthoottu

Name of the listed entities in which board member(s) is a Director: Nil
Committees of the Board

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of our Company was constituted on April 24, 2009. The Audit
Committee was last reconstituted by the Board on October 08, 2024, consequent to the
cessation of tenure of Mr.MS Rajagopal, Independent Director who was the Chairman of the

Committee. Mr.MM Herbert, Independent Director has been inducted into this committee as
the Chairman.
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The Committee currently comprises 3 Directors.

Name of the Director [Designation in Committee Nature of Directorship
MS Rajagopal Chairman* Non- Executive &
Independent Director
Manojkumar R Chairman INon- Executive &
Independent Director
MM Herbert Member Non- Executive &
Independent Director
Mathew Muthoottu Member Managing Director

YTenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect Jorm 30-09-2024

Meetings of Audit Committee:

During FY 2024-25 the Committee met five times to discuss and decide on various business
and policy matters of the Company. Meeting dates and the attendance of members in meeting
were as under.

P)ate of Committee meeting | Strength Directors T
Present

17-04-2024 3 3

27-05-2024 3 3

13-08-2024 3 3

14-11-2024 3 3

06-02-2025 3 3 ]

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, infer alia, include:

1. Review of the financial statements (including interim financial statements} and oversight of
the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
toensure that the financial statement is transparent, accurate, correct, sufficient and credible,
prior to their submission to the Board for approval;

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the

replacement or removal of the Statutory auditor and the fixation of remuneration and terms of
appointient;

7. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
8. valuation of undertakings or assets of the tompany, wherever it is necessary;
9. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk Management systems:
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10. Monitoring the end use of funds raised throu gh public offers and related matters.
11.May make omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by

the company subject to conditions prescribed under the act.
12. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory

auditors: . -
13. Must also ensure that an Information System Audit of the internal systems and processes

is conducted on yearly basis and to assess operational risks faced by the applicable NBFCs.

14. The Audit Committee shall be responsible for exercising oversight of IS Audit.

15. The Audit Committee shall review critical issues highlighted related to [T/ information
security/cyber security and provide appropriate direction and guidance.

The powers of the Audit Committee shall interalia include the power:

1. To invite such of the executives, as it considers appropriate (and particularly the head of
finance function) to be present at the meetings of the Committee;

2. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

3. To seek information from any employee;

4. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice; and

. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary,

L5 ]

2, Nomination and Remuneration Committee

30-12-2024 , consequent to the cessation of tenure of MS Rajagopal, Independent Director who
was a member of the Committee, Mr.Venugopal Kuttappan Nair, Independent Director has
been inducted into this committee as a member.

The committee consists of the following members:

Desigrnation in Comniifies Nafare of Dirsciorshis
Wl on- Executive & Independent

. Director
Director
Director
l alg}_ugopal Kuttappan “ on—tgiiecutive & Independent

Direc
*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect form 30-09-2024

The Committee met 3 times during the FY 2024-25 on 08-10-2024, 14- 1-2024 and 30-12-
2024

Board pf Directors of your Company, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
({onnmrtce, has formulated a policy for selection, appointment and remuneration of the
directors, senior management personnel as required under Section 178(3) of Companies Act,

2013, The Policy s displayed on the website  of the Company  at
https:f/www.muthoottumini.conﬂprivacy-policy—%
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Meetings & Attendance of NRC Committee:

During FY 2024-25 the Committee met three times to discuss and decide on various business
and policy matters of the Company. Meeting dates and the attendance of members in meeting
were as under.

ate of Committee meeting | Strength Directors
Present
08-10-2024 3 3
14-11-2024 3 3
30-12-2024 3 3

Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee interalia include
the following:

1. ldentify persons who are qualified to become directors and recommended to the Board their
appointment / removal and carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

2. Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of adirector and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors,
Key managerial personnel and other employees.

3. Ensure that:

a. The Diversity of the Board, level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retained motivate directors of the quality required to run the company
successfully;

b. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

¢. Remuneration to director, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

d. to ensure 'fit and proper' status of proposed/ existing directors.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

Criteria’s and questions that is considered in performance evaluation of the entire Board by
[ndependent Directors, are set out below:

1) Highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values ;
2} Inquisitive and objective perspective, practical wisdom and mature judgment:
3) Demonstrated intelligence, maturity, wisdom and independent Judgment

4) Self-confidence to contribute to board deliberations, and stature such that other board
members will respect his or her view;

5) The willingness and commitment to devote the extensive time necessary to fulfill his/her
duties;

6} The ability to communicate effectively and collaborate with other board members to
contribute effectively to the diversity of perspectives that enhances Board and
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Committee deliberations, including a willingness to listen and respect the views of
others; and

7) The skills, knowledge and expertise relevant to the Company’s business, with extensive
experience at a senior leadership level in a comparable company or organization,
including, but not limited to relevant experience in manufacturing, international
operations, public service, finance, accounting, strategic planning, supply chain,
technology and marketing.

8} Participation and contribution by a Director;

9) Commitment , including guidance provided to the Senior Management outside of
Board/ Committee Meetings;

10) Effective deployment of knowledge and expertise:

11) Effective management of relationship with various stakeholders;

12) Independence of behaviour and Jjudgment,

13) Maintenance of confidentiality of critical issues.

Based on the above criteria’s annual evaluation of performance of independent directors will
be conducted.

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Investor Grievance Committee constituted by a board resolution dated December 10,2013,
has been renamed as “Stakeholders Relationship Committee” as per the provisions of Section
178(5) of Companies Act, 2013, reconstituted on 08-10-2024, currently consists the following
members:

Name of the Director [Designation in Committee ature of Directorship

Manojkumar R Chairman Non- Executive & Independent
Director

Nizzy Mathew Member Chairman & Whole-time Director

Mathew Muthoottu ~ Member Managing Director

a) Name of the Non-Executive Director heading the Committee: Manojkumar R
b) Name and Designation of the compliance officer: Smitha K, Company Secretary
& Compliance Officer

¢) Number of shareholders/stakeholders complaints received during the financial year: 5
d) Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholder/stakeholder-

Nil (as on 31-03-2025)

€) Number of pending complaints:
Nil (as on 31-03-2025)

Terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee interalia include the
following:

I. Consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the company.

2. Monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, re-materialization, splitting and
consolidation of Equity Shares, debentures and other securities issued by the Company,
including review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of shares and debentures;
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3. Ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances; and
4.To do ali such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the exercise of the
above powers.

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee”)

The CSR Committee has been constituted vide a board resolution dated April 10,2014 and was

reconstituted on 08-10-2024 as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 with following
members;

Name of the Director Designation in Committee  [Nature of Directorship

Manojkumar R Chairman Non- Executive & Independent Director
Nizzy Mathew Member ‘Whole-time Director

Mathew Muthoottu ~ Member Managing Director

Terms of reference of the CSR Committee interalia include the following:

¢ To formulate an annual action plan in consonance with the company's CSR policy and
recommend the same to the board of the company

* Recommend the amount of expenditure to be budgeted for the activities referred to above

* Monitor the implementation of CSR projects in accordance with project timelines and
1o ensure that the funds are utilized for the approved purpose and report the same to
Board of Directors.

» Power to recommend to the Board alterations to the projects if deemed necessary, to
ensure better implementation with the prescribed time period

¢ Recommending to the Board engagement of external organizations, international or
national for design, evaluation, capacity building and monitoring of CSR projects as
well as collaboration with other companies to undertake CSR projects

5. Debenture Committee

The Debenture Committee was constituted by a board resolution dated December 10, 2013 was
reconstituted on 08-10-2024. The Committee currently comprises of three Directors.

ame of the Director [Designation in Nature of Directorship
Committee
Nizzy Mathew Member 'Whole-time Director
Mathew Muthoottu ~ Member Managing Director
Manojkumar R Chairman INon- Executive & Independen
Director

Terms of reference of the Debenture Committee include the foHowing:

1. Determining and approving the terms and conditions of the debentures to issued, number of
the Debentures to be issued, the timing, nature, type, pricing and such other terms and

conditions of the issue including coupon rate, minimum subscription, retention of
oversubscription, if any, etc.;
2. To approve and make changes to the Prospectus;
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3. To approve the final Prospectus, including any corrigendum, amendments supplements

thereto, and the issue thereof:

4. To issue and allot the Debentures;

5. To approve all other matters relating to the issue and do al] such acts, deeds, matters and
things including execution of all such deeds, dociiments, instruments, applications and writings
as it may, at its discretion, deem necessary and desirable for such purpose including without
limitation the utilization of the issye proceeds, modify or aiter any of the terms and conditions,
including size of the Issue, as it may deem expedient, of Issue and/or carly closure of the Issue.

6. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was constituted vide a board resolution dated April 22, 2013
and on April 7, 2015, Further the committee was reconstituted on 08-10-2024 as Board
Committee and presently the committee consists of the following members;

ame of the Director [Designation in Committee Nature of Directorship

izzy Mathew Member Whole-time Director
Mathew Muthoottu Member . Managing Director
anojkumar R Chairman Non- Executive & Independent
_ Director

Mmanagement assurance and reporting;

2) Toreview and assess the quality, integrity and effectiveness of the risk management systems
and ensure that the risk policies and strategies are effectively managed;

3) To review and assess the nature, role, responsibi lity and authority of the risk management
tunction within the MMFL

other such financial structures,

Meetings & Attendance of Risk Committee:

During FY 2024-25 the Committee met 4 times 1o discuss and decide on various business and
policy matters of the Company. Meeting dates and the attendance of members in meeting were

as under.
irectors
resent




7. Borrowings & Investment Committee

The Borrowings & Investment Committee was constituted vide a board resolution dated
October 1, 2021 and was reconstituted on 23-09-2024. Presently the committee consists of the
following members;

Name of the Director Designation in Committec Wature of Directorship

Manojkumar R Chairman Non- Executive & Independent
Dlrector. i

Nizzy Mathew Member Whole-time Director

Mathew Muthoottu Member Managing Director

8. IT Strategy Committee:

IT strategy committee was constituted by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28
September 2017. The Committee was last reconstituted on April 17, 2024 with the following
members as a Board level committee:-

I Mr. Manojkumar R-Independent Director, Chairperson of the Committee
2. Mr. Mathew Muthoottu, Member
3. Mr. Nizzy Mathew, Member

Role of Committee; _

> Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the management has put an
effective strategic planning process in place;

» Ascertaining that Mmanagement has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the
IT delivers vaiue to the business;

» Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are
acceptable;

> Monitoring the method that Mmanagement uses to determine the IT resources needed to
achieve strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing and use of [T resources;
> Ensuring proper balance of [T investments for sustaining NBFC’s growth and becoming
aware about exposure towards IT risks and controls,

» Review and amend the IT strategies in line with the corporate strategies

> Institute an effective governance mechanism and risk management process for all IT
outsourced operations

» Ensure that the Company has put an effective IT strategic planning process in place;

24




» Guide in preparation of IT Strategy and ensure that the IT Strategy aligns with the overall
strategy of the Company towards accomplishment of its business objectives;

» Satisfy itself that the IT Governance and Information Security Governance structure fosters
accountability, is effective and efficient, has adequate skilled resources, well defined objectives
and unambiguous responsibilities for each level in the organisation;

> Ensure that the Company has put in place processes for assessing and managing IT and cyber
security risks;

» Ensure that the budgetary allocations for the IT function (including for IT security), cyber
security are commensurate with the company’s IT maturity, digita! depth, threat environment
and industry standards and are utilised in 2 manner intended for meeting the stated objectives;
and

» Review, at least on annual basis, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Business Continuity
Planning and Disaster Recovery Management of the company.

Management Committees:

Asset Liability Management Committee

The Asset Liability Management Committee was constituted by a board resolution dated April
22, 2012 was reconstituted on March 27, 2017 and thereafier on July 20, 2020 and on 14"
February 2025 The Asset Liability Management Committee comprises of:

Name of the Member Designation

Nizzy Mathew Chairman & Whole time Director

Mathew Muthoottu Managing Director

P E Mathai Chief Executive Officer

Ann Mary George Chief Financial Officer

Krishnan Y Deputy CFO

Sajith J Kundukulam AVP, Finance & Accounts and Digital Transformation

The ALCO Policy of the company will be based on the monitoring of the following
performance parameters:

1. To ensure that the asset liability management strategy and Company’s market risk
management policies are implemented:
2. To provide a strategic framework to identify, asses, quality and manage market risk,

liquidity risk, interestrate risk, price risk etc.
3. To ensure adherence to the risk limits;

4. To articulate current interest rate view of the Company and base its decisions on future
business strategy on this view;

5. To monitor the risk levels of the Company;
6. To report to the Board of Directors on the adequacy of the Company’s systems and
controls for managingrisk, and for recommending any changes or i mprovements, as necessary;
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7. To ensure that all activities are within the overall regulatory framework and government
regulation;

8. To review and assess the management of funding undertaken by Company and formulate
appropriateactions;

9. To review and assess the management of the Company’s liquidity with the framework
and policiesestablished by the Board, as the case may be, and formulate appropriate actions to
be taken;

10.To consider, if appropriate, the composition of the Company’s capital structure, taking
account of futureregulatory requirements and rating agency views.

Steering Committee:

The Steering Committee (l.T) was constituted by the Board of Directors in their meeting held
on 28" September 2017. The Committee was last reconstituted on March 31, 2021 with the
following members:-

Mr. Mathew Muthoottu — Managing Director

Mr. Vinodh Kumar- CTO & Head of IT function

Mt P E Mathai- Chief executive Officer

Role of the Committee

» Provide strategic leadership for IT through the alignment of IT strategic objectives and
activities with enterprise strategic objectives and processes.

» Provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the project, including deliverables to be
realized at each phase of the project and milestones to be reached according to the project
timetable

» Prioritize IT investment initiatives and deliver final approvals and recommendations on
proceeding with proposed IT projects.

» Ensure open communication between the IT department and the other departments/branches
of MMFL to promote collaborative planning

» Focusing on priority setting, resource allocation and project tracking

» Oversee the processes put in place for business continuity and disaster recovery.

» Ensure implementation of a robust IT architecture meeting statutory and regulatory

compliance.
Remuneration of Directors

a) Details of remuneration paid to Directors are disclosed in Annexure-4.

b) No pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the
Company.
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¢) Weblink displaying criteria of making payments to non-executive directors:
https://www.muthoottumini.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/CRITERIA S-FOR-MAKING-
PAYMENTS-TO-NON-EXECUTIVE-DIRECTORS.pdf

d) Disclosures with respect to remuneration in addition to disclosures required under the
Companies Act, 2013:

(i) all elements of remuneration package of individual directors summarized under major
groups, such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc- Annexure-4

(ii) details of fixed component and performance linked incentives, along with the performance
criteria- NA

(iii} service contracts, notice pertod, severance fees- Nil

(iv) Stock option details- Nil

General Meetings (AGM)
(a) location and time, where last three annual general meetings held:
FY Date & Time of AGM Location
2021-22 30/09/2022 11AM 65/623K Muthoottu Royal
Towers Kaloor Kochi 682017
2022-23 18/09/2023 11AM 65/623K Muthoottu Royal
Towers Kaloor Kochi 682017
2023-24 30-09-2024 11 AM 65/623K Muthoottu Royal
Towers Kaloor Kochi 682017

(b) whether any special resolutions passed in the previous three annual general meetings: Yes

(c) whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot — details of voting
pattern: NA

(d) person who conducted the postal ballot exercise: NA

(¢) whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: Nil
(f) procedure for postal bailot: NA

Means of communication

(a) quarterly results: During the FY 2024-25 quarterly results were published 4 times in
BSE as detailed hereunder:

Quarter ended Details published | Date of furnishing | Date of publication
results to BSE in Newspaper
June 2024 Unaudited 13-08-2024 15-08-2024
financials along

with limited review
report

Sep 2024 Unaudited 14-11-2024 16-11-2024
financials along
with limited review
report

Dec 2024 Unaudited 06-02-2025 08-02-2025
financials along
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with limited review
report

March 2025 Audited Financial | 21-05-2025 23-05-2025
Statements along
with Audit Report

(b) newspapers wherein results normally published: F inanci_al' Express
(¢) any website, where displayed: https://www.muthoottumini.com/
hitps://www bseindia.com/corporates/ann.htm!
(d) whether it also displays official news releases: NA
(e) presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: NA

General shareholder information

(a) Annual general meeting - date, time and venue: 8% September 2025 11 AM, 65/623K,
Muthoottu Royal Tower, Kaloor, Kochi 682017
(b) Financial Year: 2024-25
(c) Dividend payment date: NA
(d) The name and address of each stock exchange(s) at which the Company’s securities are
listed and a confirmation about payment of annual listing fee to each of such stock exchange(s):
NCD’s of the Company is listed in Bombay Stock Exchange and Annual listing fees are paid
till date.
(e) stock code: NA
(f) Market price data- high, low during each month in last financial year: NA
(g) performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE sensex, CRISIL Index
etc: NA
(h) in case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the
reason thereof: NA
(1) Registrar to an issue and share transfer agents:

Shares (Unlisted): CDSL Ventures Limited

Debentures: MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Erst while Link Intime India Private

Limited)

(j) Share transfer system: Demat {Only debentures are listed in BSE)
(k) Distribution of shareholding: attached as Aunexure 4
(1) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: attached as Annexure 4
(m) Outstanding global depository receipts or american depository receipts or warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: NA
{n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NA
(0} Plant locations: NA
(p) Address for correspondence: 65/623 K Muthootty Royal Towers Kaloor Kochi 682017
(q) List of al] credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the
relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme

or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India
or abroad:

Reaffirmed




[.ong Term Bank
facilities f l R

; 3 ank loan and IND A-/Stable Afftirme
India Ratings 18 A0 ertible

&Research  Inehentures

CARE Commercial Paper|CARE Al Reaffirmed
India Ratings [Commercial Paper|[[ND Al Affirmed
&Research

TCRA Ratings [Non-Convertible [[ICRA] A (Stable) [Assigned
Debentures and
[.ong Term Fund
based and Non
Fund based bank
facilities

Other Disclosures

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential
conflict with the interests of listed entity at large: Corporate guarantee of Muthoottu Mini
Hotels Private Limited & Muthottu Mini Theatres Private Limited have been obtained for credit
facilities availed by the Company. The details are mentioned in Note 4 in accom panying notes
to the financial statements,

(b) details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed
entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years: Nil and as detailed in Secretarial Audit Report (MR-
3)

(¢) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy, and affirmation that
no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee: The vigil mechanism policy of
the Company along with affirmation can be accessed at

https:z’fwww.muthoottumini.comf‘privacy-policx-2i

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements: The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements as prescribed under
regulations issued by statutory authorities.

(e} Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: NA

(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions:

https:ﬁwww.muthoottumini.comfprivacy-policy-ﬂ

(g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:NA
(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferentia! allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): NA

(i) a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of
the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority- Annexure 10

(7) where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which
is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, with reasons thereof: NA

(k) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the
statutory auditor is a part: Forms part of the financial statements (Note 25.1in FS).
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(I) disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year : 2

b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year : 2

¢. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year : 0

(m) disclosure by the Company and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of
loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount: Nil in the

current financial year.

(n) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity including the date and place of
incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such
subsidiaries: NA

(0} number of other board of directors or committees in which directors are member or

chairperson, including separately the names of the listed entities where the person is a director
and the category of directorship: Nil

(p) number of meetings of the board of directors held and dates on which held: Mentioned
under the head ‘Meetings of Directors’
q) disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se:

1. Nizzy Mathew Chairman and Wholetime Mother of Mathew Muthoottu
Director who is the Managing Director
2. Mathew Muthoottu | Managing Director Son of Nizzy Mathew who is
the Chairman & Whole Time
Director

(r) number of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors: Nil

(s) web link where details of familiarisation programmes imparted to independent directors:
https: //www.muthoottumini.com/investors-i tion

(t} A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors
specifying the following:

Nizzy Mathew the Chairman and Wholetime Director of the Company holds a bachelor’s
degree in arts from the University of Kerala and has been a director of our Company since its
incorporation and is responsible for overall management of the Company. She is having more
than 30 years of experience in the finance industry.

Mathew Muthoottu, is the Managing Director of the Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in commerce from Mahatma Gandhi University, Kerala. He has been a director of our
Company since March 7, 2008 and is responstble for business promotion, expansion and brand
building activities of our Company. ‘

Manoj Kumar R, Independent Director is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and holds certificate of practice as issued by [CAL He has also qualified
the Information System Auditor (DISA) course conducted by ICAI in 2009.

Rajagopal M.S, Independent Director holds a Master’s degree in law from Mahatma Gandhi

University, Kerala, and has been a director of the Company since October 8, 2018. The tenure
of Mr.Rajagopal ceased with effect from 30-09-2024.
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Mampuzha Mathew Herbert, Independent Director is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, fellow member of the Institute of Public Accountants of
Australia and an Associate Member of the Chartered Institute for Securities & Investment
(UK). He has more than three decades of experience in the field of finance & accounts,
auditing, taxation & company law.

Venugopal Kuttappan Nair an independent Director of our Company brings extensive expertise
across a wide range of assignments in both policing and administration within government
roles. Mr. Venugopal K Nair has served as an Independent External Monitor for National
Thermo Power Corporation Limited since 2019. He also held the position of Director General
of Police (DGP) in Vigilance & Anti-Corruption Bureau, Kerala, in 2012, and previously held
various key roles within Kerala Police. He holds master’s degree from the University of Leeds,
UK, in 1976, He is a retd. IPS officer Kerala Cadre 1979 batch. His key competencies include
public policy, governance, personnel management, vigilance, systems improvements, and
transparency in operations.

Babita Teresa George aged 44, is a non-executive Director of the Company whose experience
spans both regional and international markets, having held positions with financial institutions,
including the National Bank of Ras Al Khaimah and HDFC Bank (U.A.E). Ms, Babita George
holds an MBA from Amrita School of Business, Coimbatore, and a Bachelor's in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Kerala. In addition to her academic accomplishments, she
has participated in the General Management Program at IIM Ahmedabad. Her diverse
background and industry recognitions make her a valuable asset in any advisory or leadership
role, bringing a well-rounded perspective and a strategic approach to board discussions.

(u)the list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the board of directors as required
in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively and those actually
available with the board:

Decades of practical experience in gold loan lending, financial management & strategic
planning.

(v)the names of directors who have such skills / expertise / competence:

Name of the Director skills / expertise / competence

Mathew Muthoottu Product Management, Financial
Management & Branding & Marketing

Nizzy Mathew Product Management

Manojkumar R Finance and MIS Analysis. [T Strategic
Planning

MM Herbert Finance & Taxation

Venugopal Kuttappan Nair Policing & Administration

Babita Teresa George International Banking, Investment,
Treasury
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(w) The Board of Directors confirm that, the independent directors fulfil the conditions
specified in SEBI regulations and are independent of the management.

(x) detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the
expiry of his/her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other
material reasons other than those provided: No resignation of Director before expiry of
tenure.

Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report
Nil

Compliance of Regulation 17 to 27 SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015
The Company has complied with regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 to the
extent of its applicability.

Declaration stating that the members of board of directors and senior management personnel
have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and senior
management.

Attached as Annexure 9

Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding
compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed with the directors’ report.

Attached as Annexure 10

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account
Not Applicable

Siguificant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts

During the year under review, there were no significant and material Orders passed by any
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals against the Company impacting its going-concern status and
operations in future.

Frauds reported to the Audit Committee by Auditors

There was no reporting of frauds by Auditors under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules 2014.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other
than which are reportable to the central government - Nil

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

i. Thatin preparation of the annual accounts/financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2025 the applicable Indian Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any,
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ii. That appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
Jjudgments and estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and
of the profit and loss of the Company for that period.

iii. That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv. That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
v. The Company has an established internal financial control framework including internal

controls over financial reporting, operating controls and for the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors. The framework is reviewed periodically by management and tested by the
internal audit team appointed by the management to conduct the internal audit. Based on the
periodical testing, the framework is strengthened from time to time to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal financial controls and that the existing interna! financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively.

vi. That proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws were in place and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Board Annual Evaluation:

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board reviewed the
performance of the individual Directors on the basis of the duly filled evaluation forms
submitted by the Directors. Each evaluation form prescribes various norms for evaluation such
as understanding and knowledge of the market in which the Company is operating, ability
to appreciate theworking of the Company and the challenges it faces, composition of the
Board and its Committees, attendance of meetings of the Board and its Committees, extent
of participation and involvement in the meetings.

A Separate meeting of Independent Directors was conducted during the FY 2024-25, to
review:

a) The performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

b) The performance of the Chairman of the Company; and

¢) The quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the management and
the Board that isnecessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Whistle Blower policy

The Company as part of the ‘vigil mechanism’ has in place a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ to deal
with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. This vigil mechanism of the Company is
overseen by the Audit Committee and provides adequate safeguard against victimization of
employees and directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and also provide direct access to
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional circumstances.

HR Policy against Sexual Harassment

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
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2013. Sexual Harassment Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are
covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed during the
year 2024-25 Complaint Status:

ening eceived during the  [Disposed during the ending cases
ear gar
0 2 2 0

Fair Practices Code, Auction Policy and NPA policy

The Company has a well-defined Fair Practices Code, Auction Policy and NPA policy,
consistent with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the policies are
reviewed from time to time.

Maintenance of Cost Records

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions
of Section 148(1) of the Act are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the
Company.

Related Party TransactionsPolicy:

Policy on related party transactions has been approved by the Board in their meeting held on
November 12, 2022. The policy of RPT is attached as Annexure-8.

Identification of Related Party Transactions

1. Transactions considered as related party as per section 188 of Companies Act 2013:

2. Transactions considered as related party transaction as per Reg.2(1)(zc) of SEBI(LODR) Regulations,
2015

3. Transactions within the ambit of IND AS-24, of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015

Approval of Transactions:

1. Transactions that require prior approval of Audit Committee
2. Transactions that require approval by the Board
3. Transactions that require approval by shareholders

Related Party Transaction policy is available on the website of the Company
https://www.muthoottumini.com/privacy-policy-2/

The company has entered in to a related party transaction with its promoters/ Directors for
which necessary approvals have been taken in the meeting of Audit Committee/Board of
Directors and wherever necessary in the meeting of the Members of the company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies
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(Accounts) Rules, 2014, particulars of the contracts or arrangements with related parties
referred to in section 188(1) in Form AOC-2 is annexed as Annexure 2.

These have also been discussed in detail in Note 4 of accompanying notes to the financial
statements in this Annual Report.

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, M/s. Mohandas & Associates, Chartered Accountants, FRN No 0021168, were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 years commencing from
the FY 2024-25, to undertake the statutory Audit for the Financial years 2024-25, 2025-26 and
2026-27 and to hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
for the FY 2026-27 held for adoption of Financial Statements for FY 2026-27.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
at its meeting held on 27" February 2025 had appointed M/s. BVR & Associates LLP, as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
Financial Year 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report in form MR-3, submitted by the Secretarial Auditors for the FY
2024-25 is enclosed to this report as Annexure 3. The Directors of your Company confirm that
the Secretarial Audit Report for the period under review is without any qualifications.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts

During the year under review, there were no significant and material Orders passed by any
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals against the Company impacting its going-concern status and
operations in future,

Frauds reported to the Audit Committee by Auditors

There was no reporting of frauds by Auditors under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules 2014,

Fines paid during FY 2024-25: Nil
Report on Frauds

We are in compliance with Master Direction - Master Directions on Fraud Risk Management
in Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) (including Housing Finance Companies) dated
July 15, 2024 and frauds are reported to Reserve Bank of India promptly on their detection

During FY 2024-25, 45 frauds amounting to Rs.439.92 lakhs were reported to Reserve Bank of
India. Out of the said amounts, Rs.254.12 lakhs was fully provided, Rs.222.85 lakhs was
recovered and Rs.7 lakhs written off.

There were 31 fraudulent cases under Rs.| lakhs reported during the FY 2024-25,
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Details of the frauds are reported in note no. 6 (A & B) under Additional Disclosures required
as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines in the financial statements.

Auctions Held During the Year 2024-25

15,514 Gold loan accounts were auctioned during the FY 2024-25. An amount of Rs. 8,601.27
lakhs was received by the Company on account of the Auction. Details of Auction are reported
in Note number 5 under Additional Disclosures required as per Reserve Bank of India
guidelines in the financial statements. No sister concerns participated in the auction.

Extract of Annual Return

In accordance with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Section 92(3) read with
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 an extract of the
Annual Return in Form MGT- 9 is appended as Annexure 4 to the Board's Report,

The web address where annual return referred to in section 92(3) has been placed is
https://www.muthoottumini.com/investors-information/

Risk Management

The details in respect of Risk Management is included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, which forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

The detailed policy is displayed on the website of the Company at:
https://www.muthoottuminj.com/privacy-policy-2/

Internal Financial Control

The details in respect of internal financial control with reference to the Financial Statements
and their adequacy are included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms an
integral part of this Annual Report.

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
financial and accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable Management
Information Reports and Disclosures.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of the financial Year to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report, in terms of Section 1343}D)

Mr.MM Herbert has been re-appointed as Independent Director of the Company for the second
tenure from 01-04-2025 to 31-03-2028.

There were no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the report,
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Human Resources

Your Company believe that the most important resource of the company is its employees
who have been contribute a major factor for the growth of the organization. The Company
aimed at providing employee satisfaction, enabling them to deliver better results year over year.
As on March 31, 2025 the Company had 5734 employees in its rolls at various level of
organizational structure.

Particulars of employees - Disclosure as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013

A statement containing the names of employees employed throughout the financial year and in
receipt of remuneration as prescribed under Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is appended as Annexure 5

Board Diversity and Board Evaluation policy

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (e), of the Companies Act 2013 the Company has
a policy in place on appointment and remuneration including inter alia criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under
Section 178(3) of the Companies Act 2013,

Customer Grievance

The Company has a dedicated Customer Grievance Cell for receiving and handling customer
complaints and ensuring that the customers are always treated fairly and without bias. All issues
raised by customers are dealt with courtesy and resolved expeditiously.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the companiges act,
2013

Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) no loans were made, guarantee
given or security provided during the financial year. As such the particulars of loans and
guarantee have not been disclosed in this Report. The details of the Investments of the
Company are furnished in Note 3 “Details of investments” under Notes to financial statements,

Statement regarding opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and
experience (including the proficiency) of the Independent Directors appointed during the
year

The Independent Directors are selected as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act
2013, SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 and RBI Directions. The integrity, expertise and
experience of the Independent Directors have been evaluated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at the time of appointment/re-
appointment.

Declaration of independence from Independent Directors

The independent directors, namely Mr.Manojkumar R, Mr.MM Herbert,
Mr.Venugopalkuttappan Nair have submitted a declaration to the effect that they meet the
criteria of independence as provided under section 149(6) of the Act, as amended. The
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independent directors have also confirmed compliance with the provisions of rule 6(1XDb) of
the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
relating to inclusion of their name in the databank of independent directors.

Key Managerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2054 following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013:

1) Mathew Muthoottu, Managing Director DIN 01786534
2) Nizzy Mathew, Whole Time Director DIN 01680739
3) PE Mathai, Chief Executive Officer

4) Ann Mary George, Chief Financial Qfficer

5) Smitha KS, Company Secretary

Cessation of tenure of Directorship

The tenure of Mr.MS Rajagopal DIN 08114376 Independent Director has ceased from the
closing hours of 30-09-2024.

Changes in Directorship in FY 2024-25

Mr.Mampuzha Mathew Herbert DIN: 00640728 has been appointed as Independent Director
of the Company with effect from 01-04-2024 for a period of one year and has been reappointed
as the Independent Director of the Company for a further tenure of 3 years from 01-04-2025 to
31-03-2028 by the members in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on19-05-2025 .

Mrs.Babita Teresa George was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect
from 16-11-2024 and was regularized as Non- Executive Director of the Company in the extra
ordinary General Meeting held on 10-02-2025 with effect from 10-02-2025.

Mr.Venugopal Kuttappan Nair was appointed as Additional Independent Director of the
Company with effect from 08-10-2024 and was appointed as an Independent Director to hoid
office till 08-10-2025, by the members at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23-12-
2024 .

Details of application under Insolvency and Bankruptey Code.

The details of application made or any proceed ing pending under the Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of
the FY March 2024-25.

- No application was made or any proceeding was pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the financial year.

Details of OTS/Valuation

No OTS/valuation was done during the financial year.
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Explanation or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer made-

() by the auditor in his report; and
Nil

(i) by the Company Secretary in practice in his secretarial audit report.
Nil

CEO and CFO Certification

The CEO and CFO of the Company have given certifications on financial reporting and
internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015. Annexure 11

Compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

As provided under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, all Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Business Conducts and Ethics for the year ended 3 1st March 2025.

Related Party Disclosure as per Regulation 33(f) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015

Disclosures as per Regulation 53(f) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Para A
of Schedule V:

(a) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries by name and amount: Nil
(b) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates by name and amount: Nil

(c) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount: Detailed under Related Party Transactions in point 4 of
Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

(d) Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary company,
when the company has made a loan or advance in the nature of loan: Nil

() Disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity belonging to the
promoter/promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the Company:
Detailed under Related Party Transactions in point 4 of Accompanying Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

In accordance with the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions 2016, a detailed analysis of the Company’s performance is discussed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms part of this Annual Report,

Disclosure pursuant to Part A of Schedule V of SEBI LODR

Disclosure pursuant to Part A of Schedule V read with Regulation 53(f) of SEBI LODR is
attached as Annexure 7 of this report.
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Particulars of employees in receipt of remuneration above the limits and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Information required pursuant to section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, in respect
of employees of the Company is attached as Annexure 5.

Registration obtained from Regulators

* The Company has obtained a certificate of registration from Reserve Bank of India
bearing registration number N-16.00175.

* The Company has obtained a certificate of registration bearing registration no. —
CA0122 issued by IRDALI, with effect from April 1, 2016, under Section 42D (1) of the
Insurance Act, to act as a “Corporate Agent (Composite)” (renewed up to March 31,
2028).

¢ The Company holds a certificate of registration dated July 5, 2012 bearing registration
number IN-DP-CDSL-660-2012 issued by SEBI to act as Depository Participant in
terms of Regulation 20 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories
and Participants) Regulations, 1996, renewed on August 21, 2017,

¢ The Company has obtained registration from Legal Entity Identifier India Limited
bearing registration number 335800NAOPEBJAAFR188 valid til] 25™ March 2029.

RBI Guidelines

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) granted the Certificate of Registration to the Company to do the
business of non-banking financial institution without accepting deposits. Your Company is a
Middle Layer NBFC. The Company has complied with and continues to comply with all the
applicable regulations and directions of the RBI.

Statement on im pact of Audit Qualification under Regulation 52(3)

The Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification and hence no statement of
impact of audit qualification has been submitted as stipulated under Regulation 52(3)(a)

of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 as part of financial results for the financial year
ended 31% March 2025.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record theijr appreciation to all
employees for their hard work, spirited efforts, dedication and loyalty to the Company
which has helped the Company maintain its growth,
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The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the support extended
by the Reserve Bank of India, other regulatory and government bodies, Registrars and

share transfer Agents, Company’s auditors, customers, bankers, promoters and
shareholders.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SNS

ew Muthoottu m

Managing Director Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01786534 DIN: 01680739

Date: 07-07-2025

Place: Kochi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Industry Structure & Developments and Qutlook

NBFC’s have played a vital role by catering the financial needs of the unbanked masses in the
rural and semi-urban area. In the last decade the gold loan sector has gained credibility and the
indutry’s ongoing competitiveness shows that it is expanding. Even though banks compete in
the gold loan market segment NBFC’s remain an important player because of their wider reach,
increased flexibility, individualized services and cutting-edge digita} solutions.

NBFC’s need to concentrate on their pricing power to sustain profitability and focus on higher
yield categories for expansion in a climate of rising interest rate and fierce competition. NBFC’s
may perform better in the years to come if they have robust business model, adequate capital
and focus on digital strategies.

Gold Loan Market in India

Gold enjoys a unique connection with Indians in terms of social status, financial security and
rich cultural legacy. Along with the country’s growing population and ever-increasing
disposable income, India’s inclination and liking for gold has also increased. Due to the
emotional value associated with household jewellery, people are hesitant to seil their gold to
meet their immediate financial needs; as an alternative, people pledge their gold ornaments as
collateral and secure a short-term loan. The pledging of gold ornaments and other gold assets
to local pawnbrokers and money lenders to avail loans has been prevalent in Indian society
over ages. The increased holding of gold as an asset among large section of people, and the
practices related to borrowing against gold in the informal sector, have encouraged some loan
companies to provide loans against the collateral of used household gold jewelries. Over a
period of time, many companies have emerged as ‘specialised gold loan companies.

Most of the gold in India is held by people in rural market. Rural residents and low-income
groups are the major customers of gold loans, as gold is usually the only asset they possess, in
some quantity. They also typically lack access to banking facilities. Thus, gold loan has
emerged as one of the most reliable credit sources for these categories of customers.

The key factors that drove the rapid growth phase of Gold loan in India included low cost of
funds (eligibility under Priority Sector Lending), rise of India’s middle class, consumerism and
urbanization, rising gold prices, and high Loan to Value (LTV) of up to 75.0%. Convenience of
access, quick disbursals and lower interest rates compared to moneylenders led to NBFCs
becoming the customer’s choice.

Oppeortunities & Threats

India’s organized gold loan market is grossly under penetrated. Indians have idle gold and with
gold prices soaring, gold loans have become an attractive proposition. Due to greater awareness
of risk associated with the unregulated sources of finance offered by pawn brokers at higher
interest rates the common man is moving to the organized sector and there is a huge opportunity
in the gold loan industry.
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In order to remain competitive in the gold loan industry the product offerings will_need t.o

be highly dynamic and the entities in the regulated segment will have to be c?mphant with
the regulations of Reserve Bank of India. Further due to the increased appetite for gold loans
by banks and competition from peers is the threat to the industry.

KEY GROWTH DRIVERS FOR GOLD LOAN

As banks and NBFCs offer gold loans at interest rates much lower than those of informal
moneylenders; they have been able to successfully target a new segment of customers who
would have otherwise not taken g gold loan.

The key growth drivers for gold loan are provided below:

Lack of Reach of Banking to Rural and Lower-Income Groups: - In India, the reach of
NBFCs in rural areas is comparatively higher than the banks, Due to which NBFCs have an
advantage in terms of business revenue and larger base of customer over the banks. The
relative ease in obtaining a loan approval has boosted the popularity of gold loans.

Expected Revival in Rural Consumption: - Major portion of the Indian household gold
belongs to rural communities, who are the biggest purchasers of gold loan. Additionally, the
expected rise in consumerism in rural arcas will lead to increased gold loans being taken
for non-income generating purposes.

Changing Attitudes Towards Gold Loan: - Few decades back, the gold loan was a high- .
cost affair, interest charged were around 35-50% (local moneylenders) but now organized

players in the market (banks and NBFCS) offer the loan at much lower rates. People are

turning more towards depositing gold with banks and NBFCs because it is one of the easiest

way to avail money. The overal] Pracess to avail gold loans has become more formal and

transparent with an entry of organized financiaj players. Using gold loans to meet household

exigencies is gaining popularity in Indian cities and metros,

Untapped opportunities in the non-south regions:-Mostly the gold loan companies
have their maximum presence in the southern pockets of India. Western, northern and
castern region have minimal gold loan credit penetration, which reflects that gold loan
companies can unlock this potential in the coming years.

Lower default rates:-There is very low NPA in goid loans. Default rates are most
often less than 2%, This makes gold loan attractive product for organized players,
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Development of online gold loan market: - Many traditional players have started to
offer innovative products such as online gold loans (OGL) catering to the young and
urban population. Primary beneficiaries of online gold loan facilities are digitally and
financially literate customers who belong to the age group of 25 to 40 years. The
increasing adoption of smartphones and expanding internet connectivity in rural and semi
urban area will enable NBFCs in the coming years to get most of their customers to
transact in the online gold loan platform,

Segment wise or Product wise perfomance

Gold Loans

We are a non-deposit taking systemically important NBFC in the gold loan sector
lending money against the pledge of household gold jewellery (“Gold Loans™) in the
state of Kerala, Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Haryana,
Maharashtra, Gujarat, Delhi, Uttar Pradesh, Goa and the union territory of Puducherry.

Our Gold Loan portfolio as on March 31, 2025 comprises 6,13,863 Gold Loan accounts
aggregating to ¥ 3,81,256.08 lakhs, which is 92 %, of our total loans and advances as on
that date. We, as on March 31, 2025, had a network of 948 branches.

Microfinance Loans

Our microfinance loans are typically small ticket loans, unsecured and given to joint
liability groups forming of women customers only. We started our Microfinance
business in Fiscal 2017 and we provide loan amounts typically within the range
0f Rs.20,000 to Rs.1,20,000 per loan transaction and which remain outstanding
approximately for an average tenure of 365 days to 1095 days.

We offer micro finance loans which are targeted to economically active, married women,
having regular cash flow from certain income generating activities, including but not
limited to, self-managed business, vegetable vendors and tailoring business.

Ason March 31, 2025 we had 90167 microfinance loan accounts aggregating to Rs.
32,668.83 lakhs.

Our Company has undertaken the following other business initiatives:

Money Transfer Business — Qur Company has entered into various agreements for
rendering money transfer services with third parties.

Insurance - Our Company has obtained registration with the IRDAL to act as a corporate
agent for procuring and soliciting insurance business both in the life insurance and
general insurance category, with effect from April 1, 2016. The license no. CA0122 was
assigned to our Company and is valid till March 31 » 2028. Pursuant to such registration,
we have entered into corporate agency agreements with various insurance providers of
life, health and general insurance products for soliciting and procuring business for such
insurance providers.

DP Services — Our Company holds a certificate of registration dated July 5, 2012 bearing
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registration number IN-DP- CDSL—660-2012 issued by SEBI to act as Depository
Participant in terms of Regulation 20 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Deposttories and Participants) Regulations, 1996, as renewed of August 21, 2017, As
on March 31, 2025, we have opened 42195 security DP accounts.

Travel Agency services — Our Company has entered into an agreement for air travel
related services, booking of tickets with any airlines for international or domestic travel,
apply for and obtain VISA, arranging for travel insurance, forex services, corporate
services etc, as a Non-International Air Travel Association agent.

PAN card related services — Qur Company has entered into an agreement as PAN
card service agent for collecting and receiving PAN application forms and providing
related services to PAN applicants.

Consignee services for sale of bullion and jewellery — Our Company has entered into
an agreement dated February 23, 2021 with Muthoottu Royal Gold (“MRG™), a
proprietorship concern, to act as a consignee for exclusive sale of gold and silver coins
and selected jewellery items supplied by or through MRG. Further, our branches will also
collect the money from the customers on such sale or against advance payment scheme
of MRG. The agreement was further reviewed and the same is effective from J uly 01,
2024 for a further period of two years.

RISKS & CONCERNS

Your Company has a comprehensive Risk Management Policy in place and has laid down
awell-defined risk management framework to identify, assess and monitor various elements
of risk involved in the business and strengthen controls to mitigate risks. The Company has
constituted a Risk Management Committee, consisting of the Whole time Director and Non-
Executive Directors, who are responsible for putting in place a progressive risk management
system, risk management policy and strategy to be followed by the Company.

Traditionally, risks in an Organization have been classified into the broad categories of

1. Credit Risks

2. Market Risks

3. Operational Risks
4. Financial Risk

Credit Risk is defined as the risk of failure of the counter party in keeping up its
commitments. Credit Risk for MMFLs core business of Gold Loans is perceived to be
relatively lower due to the fully secured nature of gold loans. However, it is recognized
that risk is inherent due to the criticality of the value of collateral. The degree of comfort
will depend on the Loan to Value at which loan is sanctioned followed by the subsequent
price movements. Significantly downward movement in the gold prices especially when
accompanied by non-servicing of interest can impact the company’s financials
significantly.

Gold loans are granted for a tenure of maximum two years which is essentially short-
term. With the current LTV of 75% on monthly moving average price of 22 ct. gold, the
risks are contained to the bare minimum. Timely action on non-performing loans by
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continuous monitoring followed by recovery action through auctions, therefore, will
mitigate the Credit Risks.

Market Risk is defined as the risks arising from movements in interest rates and
exchange rates on the overall business of the Company. Adverse movements in interest
rates could possibly pose a risk to the ability to raise funds for managing liquidity gaps —
giving rise to ‘Liquidity Risks’.

The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) at the Management level and both
Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee of the Board will closely monitor
any mismatch positions and the macro-environment to consider all indicators of risk and
plan and advise suitable action.

Operational Risk is the risk of losses arising from failed or inadequate processes,
systems, people or due to external events. The definition includes Legal Risk such as
exposure to fines, penalties, and punitive damages resulting from supervisory actions as
well as private settlements. MMFL will facilitate implementation of processes to support
the proactive identification and assessment of the significant operational risks inherent in
all products, activities processes and systems.

Firancial Risk is defined as the risks arising from any disruption in the funding sources
which have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition. The
Company is proactively pursuing a system of identifying and accessing newer and
cheaper sources of funds, to finance the AUM and to grow the business. There is a regular
meeting of our asset liability management committee which reviews the liquidity position
of the Company and arranges for sufficient fundin g in advance, for growth.

Risk based Internal Audit (RBIA): The Company has in place a risk based internal
Audit covering gold loan and other segments. The Company has a Board approved
Internal Audit Policy which is reviewed periodically,

The Company is an NBFC coming under the regulatory purview of Reserve Bank of
India, SEBI, Stock Exchange and Ministry of Corporate Affairs. In addition, the Company
is also required to comply with various Central, State and commercial laws applicable in
the conduct of various activities of business. The Company recognizes that the regulatory
landscape is under periodical review and this requires the Company to proactively prepare
for the challenges posed by the changes. The Company will respond effectively and
competitively to regulatory changes, maintain appropriate relationship with the

regulators/authorities, strengthen the reliance on capital and improve the quality of ‘in-
house” compiiance.

The Company has to manage various risks such as credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk
and operational risk. The Risk Management Committee and the Asset Liability Management
Committee review and monitor these risks at regular intervals. Major risks identified by the

businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continuing basis.

The pompany manages its credit risk through prudent credit norms in line with the business
requirements and continues to follow the time tested practice of personally assessing every
borrower, before committing credit exposure. This process ensures that the expertise in lending
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operations acquired by the Company over the past years is put to best use and acts to mitigate
credit risks.

Operational risks arising from inadequate internal processes, people and systems or from
external events are adequately addressed by the internal control systems and are continuously
reviewed and monitored. The Senior Management regularly assesses the risks and takes
appropriate measures to mitigate them.

Branch Network

As on March 31, 2025 we had 948 branches.

State As on March 31, 2025
Andhra Pradesh 177
Telangana 125
Tamil Nadu 329
Haryana 7
Delhi 8
Gujarat 6
Maharashtra 6
Uttar Pradesh 1
Goa 6
Puducherry (Union

Territory) 1
Karnataka 113
Kerala 169
Total 948

Internal control system and their adequacy

The Company has an Internal Control § ystem which is commensurate with the size,
scale and complexity of its operations. The Internal Auditors monitor the efficiency
and efficacy of the internal control systems in the Company, compliance with
operating systems/accounting procedures and policies of the Company. Significant
audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit
Committee of the Board.

The Company has adequate systems and procedures to provide assurance of
recording transactions in all material respects. During the year, the internal audit
department of the Company reviewed the adequacy and operating effectiveness of

the internal financial controls as per Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act,
2013,

The Company conducts its internal audit and compliance functions within the
parameters of regulatory framework which, in our opinion, is well commensurate
with the size, scale and complexity of the operations. The internal controls and
compliance functions are installed, evolved, reviewed, and upgraded periodically,
The Company has its own internal audit team to cover all areas of operations
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including branches. The reports are placed before the Audit Committee of the Board.
The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the audit and compliance
functions, the effectiveness of controls and compliance with regulatory guidelines
and gives such directions to the Management as necessary / considered appropriate.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

The Gold or the yellow metal, is recognized as a universal coinage and the most
reliable liquid asset traditionally. India, which is one among the largest market of gold
and is a country where gold is preserved traditionally.

Pawning or gold lending is a century old practice among Indians and in the past,
unorganized gold lenders offered loans against gold as collateral security. Yet, until
recently, people did not leverage the opportunity effectually owing to several reasons
such as lack of transparency, unauthorized business practices, hi gh interest and so on.

Muthoottu Mini with a legacy of more than 136 yeats is now penetrating into the
unorganized segment. The Company offers attractive Interest Rates, Quick
Processing, Transparency in Transactions and is now venturing into
digitalization.

We opened 64 branches during the FY 2024-25 as tabled below.

State No of branches opened during the FY
2024-25

Andhra Pradesh 28

Telangana 28

Tamil Nadu 2

Karnataka 3

Maharashtra 3

Branches which completed six months, have almost reached the break-even and are
expected to be profitable in the FY 2025-26. The Company also undertakes operational
measures like merging branches which are not profitable to nearby branches, shifting of
premises to places having more visibility and taking measures to reduce rents.

SWOT
Strengths - 137 years of family business legacy.
Weaknesses - Geographical limitations.
Opportunities  Availability of untapped markets in the country.,

Ample scope to grow in gold loans in the present scenario.
More Scope to open branches without any hassle.

Easy to expand to other parts of the country.
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Family run business — quick decision-making ability.

Wide acceptance of the Brand name “Muthoottu”

Threats

Competition from other gold loan companies.
Strict regulatory guidelines.
Attrition in the industry.

Increasing overall cost.

Material developments in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front,
including number of people employed

With growth in the number of branches and the over all AUM, staffing has also increased
leading to increased recruitment during the FY 2024-25

Ason 31 March 2025, 5734 employees are in the rolls of the Company.

Details of significant changes (ie change of 25% or more as compared to the
immediately previous FY) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations
thereof, including :

No change of 25% or more as compared to the previous financial year.

Key Financial Ratios
Sl No. | Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2025
1 Debtors turnover* Not applicable
2 Inventory turnover* Not applicable
3 Interest service coverage ratio* Not applicable
4 Current Ratio (note3) 1.92 times
5 Debt Equity Ratio (note 2) 5.17 times
6 Operating margin Not applicable
7 Net profit margin (note8) 11.55%
Sector specific equivalent ratios
8 a. Gross NPA 0.85%
b. Net NPA 0.50%
c. CRAR 21.38%

*Not applicable to NBFC as per Regulation 52 SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015
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Details of any change in Return on Networth as compared to the immediately previous
financial year along with a detailed explanation thereof

The return on networth of the Company has increased from 11.35% during the FY 2023-24
to 12.14% as on the end of the FY 2024-25.
Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In the preparation of financial statements, no treatment different from that prescribed in
an Accounting Standard has been followed.
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Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to all employees
for their hard work, spirited efforts, dedication and loyalty to the Company which has
helped the Company maintain its growth.

The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the support extended by the
Reserve Bank of India, other regulatory and government bodies, Registrars and share
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By order of the Board

ew Muthoottu Nizzy Mathew
Managing Director Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01786534 DIN: (41680739

Date: 07-07-2025
Place: Kochi
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ANNEXURE-1

CSR Reporting for Financial Year 2024-25

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Muthoottu Mini Financiers Ltd., (“the Company™) since its inception has seen itself as a
corporate citizen responsible to the society. To streamline  and provide more focus and
direction to the activities undertaken by the company in this sphere, Corporate Social
Responsibility was formulated on 30-05-2014 and was last reviewed on 17-04-2024,

The Company focusses on the key areas outlined in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013,
which inter alia included the following:

1.  Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including
preventive health care and sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh
set-up by the Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and makin g available
safe drinking water.

ii.  Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation
skills especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and
livelihood enhancement projects.

ili.  Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for
women and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centres and such other facilities
for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and
economically backward groups.

iv.  Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining
quality of soil, air and water.

v.  Contribution to research and development projects in the field of science, technology,
engineering and medicine, funded by the Central Government or State Government or
Public Sector Undertaking or any agency of the Central Government or State
Government,

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Composition as detailed hereunder:

S1. No.[Name of Director Designation / Nature of umber of umber of
Directorship meetings of cetings of
CSR SR

Committee heldiCommittee
during the year attended

during the
[year
1 M S Rajagopal* Independent Director & 7 5
Chairman of the CSR
Committee
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2 Manojkumar R** Independent Director & 7 2
{Chairman of the CSR
Committee
3 Mathew Muthoottu [Member 7 7
4 [Nizzy Mathew IMember 7 7

*Tenure of Mr MS Rajagopal ceased with effect from 30-09-2024
**Inducted Mr. Manqjkumar R to the committee with effect from 08-10-2024.

The Meetings of the Committee were held on 03-04-2024, 08-06-2024, 17-07-2024, 30-07-
2024, 04-09-2024, 03-02-2025 and 21-03-2025.

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects

6.

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.
Composition of CSR Committee: https://www.muthoottumini.com/privacy-policy-2/
CSR Policy: https://www.muthoottumini.com/privacy-policy-2/

CSR Projects approved by the Board : https://www.muthoottumini.com/investors-
information/

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report): Not Applicable

. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for
set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

The Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) is Rs.83,82,37,377.59

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the compény as per section 135(5)

The Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) is Rs.
1,67,64,747.55

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years.- Nil '

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7at7b-7c): Rs. 1,67,64,747.55
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total
Amount
Spent for the

Total Amount transferred ount ftransferred to any fund
to Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule VII as per
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Financial as per section 135(6). L;econd proviso to section 135(5).
Y ear. (in
Rs.)

[ Amount. Date of [Name of the {Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer,

Rs.17682013 [Rs.463963 31-03-2025 [N/A
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1 12) 3) 4) |(5) 6 X7 (8) & (10) jan
Sl [Name |ltem from [Loc |Locati |Proj [Amount Amount Amount [Mode Mode of
N jof the the list of lal jon of ect |allocated for spent in fransferre |of Implementation -
0. |Project [activities frea fhe dura [the project the d to Imple [Through
in (Ye |project ftion. f(in Rs.). current  [Unspent [ment [Implementing
Schedule /N | financial |CSR mtion lAgency
XIIt to the |0). st IDis Year (in izi&ccountth ;) Name ICSR
e at  [tric Rs.)- or € e Registrat
e | project as t ion
per (Yes/ number
Section  [No). ’
135(6) (in
Rs.).
1. Eare Promoting (Yes [Kerala |1 463963 t 463963 No  MINI
nd health care Ernakul [year MUTH ICSRO005
Share  lincluding am, OOTT @707
preventive Alappu U
health care. 7ha, MATH
Pathana SA\(I\EIMO
And thitt
A RIAL
Kollam, FOUN
Promoting Kottaya DATIO
Education n N
Total 463963 0 463963

(a) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:
D 2 () 4 5 (6) K8
Sl [Name of [Item from [Loc |Location ofthe  |Amount Mode [Mode of imple
No [the the listof @l |project. spent for  pf mentation -
Project fictivities are the project ({imple Through
in 3| (in Rs.). mentat implementing
Ischedule (Ye ion - gency.
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Viltothe s/ IState.  District. Direct Name |CSR
Act, No) (Yes/N | registrati
0). on
number,
1 Nutri cap [Promoting
health care | [Kamnata | Bangalo (216,000  fyes -
including Jka re
preventive
healith care.
2 L[\:Iedical Promoting MINI
id health care |Yes [cerala | Ernakul 2,00,000 No MUT ICSR0005
including am HOO @707
preventive TTU
health care MAT
HEW
MEM
ORIA
L
FOUN
DATI
ON
3 iGarden livelihood Kerala |Emaku [5,92,398 Yes - |-
Umbrella enhancem Tamil lam
ent Nady |Chenna
projects. Karnata i
ka Bangal
ore
Andhra K
Pradesh | ="
Telenga Vijaya
na wada
Hydreb
ad
1 [Edu caid Promoting Kerala |Ernaku [92,76,810 Yes - -
gSchool education Tamil  |lam
ags, note
ook & Nadu iChenna
umberila) Karnata
lka Bangal
ore
Andhra
Pradesh {(umoo
Telenga Vijaya
na wada
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Gujarat |Hydreb
ad
Ahmeda
ba
Surat
5> [Stay dry [Promoting [Yes |Kerala |Erakul [5,67,000 Yes - -
(Rain coats health care am
to iraffic including
police) preventive
health care.
6 (Abhaya promoting
Phavan) health care Y¢S Kerala (Pathana /1500000 |ves | |
including mthitta
preventive
health care
7 [Feedthe [Eradicatin
poor s hunger, [Yes Kerala Kochi 1,19.850 Yes -—-- -
poverty
8 |Diabates promoting [Yes |Kerala |Ernaku (1,82,327 Yes  -- -
cares health care Tamil  |lam
including Nadu [Chenna
preventive Karnata |1
health care hca Bangal
Pradesh L
Telenga Vijaya
ma wada
Hydreb
ad
9 School Kit [Promoting [Yes [Kerala Alappuz |1,47,500 Yes e -
education ha
10 | Wheel promoting
chair health care [Yes |Kerala yoopi g9 900 Yes | |
including
preventive
health care
I |Library kit | Promoting Thrissur }3,02,400 Yes e -
education  [Yes [corala | Ernakul
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am,
12 [No to | Ensuring Kurnoo |6,81,600 Yes |- -
plastic environme [Yes |Andhra | .
ntal Pradesh | Viaya
sustainabil wada
ity Telenga |Hydreb
ha. ad
13 jJutebag |Ensuring Kerala |Ernaku [22,75,000 |Yes |- -
environme [Yes oo |lam
ntal Nadu phenna
-sustamabll Kamnata |\
ity ka Bangal
ore
Andhra Kurnoo
Pradesh :
Telenga Vijaya
na wada
Hydreb
ad
14 |Dialysis  |promoting Kerala |Cochin }1,50,000 No 00014528
project health care Rotary
including Midto
preventive i
health care
Total 1,63,00,785

(d} Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

() Total amount spent for the Financial Year (9b+9c+9d+9¢): Rs. 17682013
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

Sl [Particular Amount (in Rs.)

No.

(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the INo Excess amount for set
company as per section 135(5) off

(i)  [Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(iif) |Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-
()]

(iv) ISurplus arising out of the CSR projects or

programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any
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(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding
financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl.  [Preceding [Amount Amount  |Amount transferred to |[Amount
No. [Financial |transferred jspent in the fany fund specified under fremaining

Y ear, to Unspent freporting  [Schedule VI as per fto be spent
CSR Financial [section 135(6), if any. in
Ac(;:ount ;ear (in Name {Amount [Date of ;uccee.dling
pneer ) of the [in Rs). |[transfer. iancia .
section 135 Fund years. (in
(6) (in Rs.) Rs.)

1. 2023-2024 113,81,228 ]13,81,228 |[NA [NA INA INA
Total 13,81,228  [13,81,228

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):

1D 2) 3) 4 5) (6) (7 (8) &)
Sl. |Project ID. [Name |Financial Project [Total Amount |Cumulat Status of

No of the [Year in iduratio lamount [spent on live the
Project. which the . llocated the amount  |project -
project was for the project |spent at Complete

commence project  fin  the fthe end |d
d. (inRs.). [reportin |of ‘Ongoing

reportin
\E‘inancia I

I Year [Financia
(inRs). || Year.

(in Rs.)
1 [FY31.03.2024 [Stitch 2023-2024 2 years 2502403 1381228 [2502403  |completed
| 1 your life
Total 2502403

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year- NA

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : NA

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capitai asset : NA

(¢} Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc : NA
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(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset) : NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5).- NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

—Z ya
w Muthoottu Manoj Kurmar R
Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 01786534 DIN: 09357326

Date: 07-07-2025
Place: Kochi
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ANNEXURE- 2
FORM NO. AQC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 3(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. NIL

Nature of | Duration of | Salient Justifi Date on
contracts/a | the terms of | cation which the
rrangemen | contracts/arra | the for special
Nat ts/transacti | ngements/tra | contracts | enteri | Date(s resofution
Name ons nsactions or ng yof Amoun | was passed in
(s) of u;e arrangem | into appro | tpaid | general
SN the 1(; ents or such | valby |as meeting as
el . .
relate ati transacti | contra | the advanc | required
d ons ons ctsor | Board | es, if under first
party hip including | arrang | , if any: proviso to
the ement | any: section 188
value, if |sor
any (Rs. | transa
In lakhs): | ctions
Nil

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Salient terms
of the
contracts or
Duration | arrangements

Nature of of the or
Natur | contracts/a | contracts | transactions Date(s) of Amount
Name(s) of | e of rrangement | /arrange | including the | approval by paid as
the related | Relati | s/transactic | ments/tra valae, if any the Board, if advances, if
SN | party onship | ns nsactions | (in Rs) any: any:

KEY
MATHEW | MAN
MUTHOO | AGER
TTUMAN |IAL | SALARY
AGING PERS | AND

DIRECTO | ONNE | ALLOWAN
I |R) L CE 3years | 2,94,00,000.00 | 17-04-2024 | NA
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KEY

MATHEW | MAN
MUTHOOQ | AGER
TTUMAN | JAL
AGING PERS | RENT/MAI
DIRECTO | ONNE | NTANACE
2 R) L CHARGES | 3 year 5,13,440.00 [7-04-2024 NA
KEY
MATHEW | MAN
MUTHOO | AGER
TTUMAN | IAL
AGING PERS | TRAVELLI
DIRECTO | ONNE | NG
3 R} L EXPENSES | NA 17,38,180.84 17-04-2024 NA
KEY
MATHEW | MAN
MUTHQO | AGER
TTU(MAN | IAL
AGING PERS
DIRECTO | ONNE | Debenture
4 R) L Interest NA 20,058.62 NA NA
KEY
MATHEW | MAN
MUTHOO | AGER
TTU(MAN | AL DEBENTU
AGING PERS | RE
DIRECTO | ONNE | REDEEME
5 R) L D NA 8,00,000.00 NA NA
KEY
MATHEW | MAN
MUTHOO | AGER
TTUMAN | IAL
AGING PERS | DEBENTU
DIRECTO | ONNE | RE/ subdebt
6 R) L HOLDINGS | NA 1,00,000.00 NA NA
KEY
NIZZY MAN
MATHEW | AGER
(WHOLE IAL SALARY
TIME PERS { AND
DIRECTO | ONNE | ALLOWAN
7 R L CE 3 years 1,80,00,000.00 | 17-04-2024 NA
KEY
NIZZY MAN
MATHEW | AGER
(WHOLE IAL
TIME PERS | RENT/MAI
DIRECTO | ONNE | NTANACE
8 R L CHARGES | 3 year 1,98,272.00 17-04-2024 NA
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KEY

NIZZY MAN
MATHEW | AGER
(WHOLE IAL
TIME PERS | TRAVELL!
DIRECTO | ONNE | NG
9 R I EXPENSES | NA 77,159.78 17-04-2024 NA
KEY
NIZZY MAN
MATHEW | AGER
{(WHOQLE IAL
TIME PERS
DIRECTO | ONNE | Subdebt
10 | R L Interest NA 63,000.00 NA NA
KEY
NIZZY MAN
MATHEW | AGER
(WHOLE IAL
TIME PERS
DIRECTQ | ONNE | Debenture
11 |R L Interest NA 3,31,749.95 NA NA
KEY
NIZZY MAN
MATHEW | AGER
(WHOLE IAL DEBENTU
TIME PERS | RE
DIRECTO | ONNE | REDEEME
12 | R L D NA 20,00,000.00 NA NA
KEY
NIZZY MAN
MATHEW | AGER
{WHOLE IAL
TIME PERS | DEBENTU
DIRECTO | ONNE | RE/ subdebt
13 |R L HOLDINGS | NA 27,25,000.00 NA NA
KEY
NIZZY MAN
MATHEW | AGER
{WHOLE IAL
TIME PERS
DIRECTO | ONNE | Debenture
14 | R L investment NA 12,00,000.00 NA NA
RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL
ARLIN PERS
ANNA ONNE | Debenture
15 PHILIP L Interest NA 6,45,977.85 NA NA
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16

ARLIN
ANNA
PHILIP

RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL
PERS
ONNE

DEBENTU
RE
REDEEME
D -

NA

29,00,000.00

NA

NA

ARLIN
ANNA
PHILIP

RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL
PERS
ONNE

DEBENTU
RE/ subdebt
HOLDINGS

NA

25,00,000.00

NA

NA

I8

ROY M
MATHEW

RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL
PERS
ONNE

RENT/MAI
NTANACE
CHARGES

Jyear

9,33,168.00

17-04-2024

NA

19

ROY M
MATHEW

RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL
PERS
ONNE

Subdebt
Interest

NA

52,500.00

17-04-2024

NA

20

ROY M
MATHEW

RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
1AL
PERS
ONNE

Debenture
Interest

NA

2,63,800.38

17-04-2024

NA
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P4

ROY M
MATHEW

RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL
PERS
ONNE

DEBENTU
RE
REDEEME
D

NA

18,00,000.00

NA

NA

22

ROY M
MATHEW

RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL
PERS
ONNE

DEBENTU
RE/ subdebt
HOLDINGS

NA

23,00,000.00

NA

NA

23

ROY M
MATHEW

RELA
TIVE
OF
KEY
MAN
AGER
[AL
PERS
ONNE

Debenture
investment

NA

15,00,000.00

NA

NA

24

MILANCH
E

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

KMP
HAS
SIGNI
FICA
NT
INFLU
ENCE

RENT
RECEIVED

3 vear

1,82,250.00

17-04-2024

NA

|25

MILANCH
E

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

KMmPp
HAS
SIGNI
FICA
NT
INFLU
ENCE

Purchase of
Material

1 vear

24,24,658.00

17-04-2024

NA
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ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC
H
RELA
TIVE
OF
KMP /
DIRE
Mini CTOR
Muthoottu | IS
Mathew INTER
Memorial ESTE
26 | Foundation | D CSR I year 2,00,000.00 17-04-2024 NA
ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC
H
MINI KMP
MUTHOQO | HAS
TTU SIGNI
NIRMAN FICA
&REAL NT RENT/MALI
ESTATEP | INFLU | NTANACE
27 |LTD ENCE | CHARGES | 3 years 6,93,000.00 17-04-2024 NA
ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC
H
MINI KMP
MUTHOO | HAS
TTU SIGNI
NIRMAN FICA
&REAL NT
ESTATE P | INFLU { RENT
28 |LTD ENCE | RECEIVED | 3 year 1,95,000.00 17-04-2024 NA
ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC
H
MINI KMP
MUTHOO | HAS
TTU SIGNI
NIRMAN FICA
&REAL NT Lift
ESTATE P | INFLU | Moderizatio
29 |LTD ENCE | n Charges 1 year 15,25,423.68 17-04-2024 NA
DIRE
MM CTOR | SITTING
30 | HERBERT | § FEE NA 5,35,000.00 NA NA
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31

MUTHOO
TTU
FINANCE
AND
SERVICES
PRIVATE
LIMITED

ENTIT
YIN
WHIC

KMP
HAS
SIGNI
FICA
NT
INFLU
ENCE

Purchase of
Material and
Stattionery

| year

1,90,18,041.46

17-04-2024

NA

32

Muthoottu
Infotech
Private
Limited

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

KMP
HAS
SIGNI
FICA
NT
INFLU
ENCE

RENT
RECEIVED

| year

77,175.00

17-04-2024

NA

33

Muthoottu
Infotech
Private
Limited

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

KMP
HAS
SIGNI
FICA
NT
INFLU
ENCE

IT
Consuitancy
& Support
Services

| years

1,65,48,100.00

17-04-2024

NA

34

MUTHOO
TTU MINI
HOTELS
PVTLTD

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

KMP
HAS
SIGNI
FICA

INFLU
ENCE

RENT/MAI
NTANACE
CHARGES

| year

4,52,861.00

17-04-2024

NA

MUTHOO
TTU MINI
HOTELS
PVTLTD

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

KMP
HAS
SIGNI
FICA
NT

Loan
Against
Property
Outstanding

10 years

1,43,45,151.39

25-09-2020
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INFLU
ENCE

MUTHOO
TTU MINI
HOTELS

PVTLTD

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

KMP
HAS
SIGNI
FICA
NT
INFLU
ENCE

Interest on
Loan
against
property

10 vears

55,27.185.89

25-09-2020

NA

MUTHGO
TTU MINI
HOTELS

PYTLTD

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

KMP
HAS
SIGNI
FICA
NT
INFLU
ENCE

Principal
repayment
of Loan
against
property

10 years

4,07,84,778.16

25-09-2020

NA

Royal gold

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

RELA
TIVE
OF
KMP /
DIRE
CTOR
IS
INTER
ESTE

RENT
RECEIVED

5 years

3,48,739.00

17-04-2024

NA

Royat gold

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

RELA
TIVE
OF
KMP/
DIRE
CTOR
IS
INTER

Purchase of
gold coins

| year

8,10,965.38

17-04-2024

NA
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ESTE

40

Roval gold

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

RELA
TIVE
OF
KMP /
DIRE
CTOR
IS
INTER
ESTE

Commission
Received

lyear

11,74,830.00

17-04-2024

NA

41

Royal gold

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

RELA
TIVE
OF
KMP /
DIRE
CTOR
IS
INTER
ESTE

Auction
sales

1 year

5,53,398.00

17-04-2024

NA

42

Tanzanite
Marketing
Solutions
(OPC) Pvt
Ltd

ENTIT
Y IN
WHIC

RELA
TIVE
OF
KMEP/
DIRE
CTOR
IS
INTER
ESTE

Business
promotion

] year

23,34,000.00

17-04-2024

NA
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Venugopal | DIRE
Kuttappan { CTOR | SITTING
43 | Nair 8 FEE NA 2,45,000.00 NA NA
BABITHA | DIRE
TERESA CTOR | SITTING
44 | GEORGE |[S§ FEE NA 1,20,000.00 NA NA
MS DIRE
RAJAGOP | CTOR | SITTING
45 | AL S FEE ‘NA 3,70,000.00 NA NA
DIRE
Manojkum | CTOR | SITTING
46 |arR S FEE NA 6,90,000,00 NA NA
KEY
MAN
AGER
ANN IAL SALARY
MARY PERS | AND
GEORGE, | ONNE { ALLOWAN
47 | ACA(CFQ) | L CE NA 79,97,350.00 NA NA
KEY
MAN
AGER
ANN IAL
MARY PERS | TRAVELLI
GEORGE, | ONNE [ NG
48 | ACA(CFQ) | L EXPENSES | NA 30,187.58 NA NA
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL SALARY
SMITHA PERS | AND
K.5,ACS(C | ONNE | ALLOWAN
49 [ §) L CE NA 24,56,050.00 NA NA
KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL SALARY
PE PERS [ AND
MATHAI( | ONNE | ALLOWAN
50 | CEO) L CE NA 1,32,15,000.00 | NA NA
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51

PE
MATHAN
CEQ)

KEY
MAN
AGER
IAL
PERS
ONNE

TRAVELLI
NG
EXPENSES | NA 2,83,029.26 NA

NA

*The Board reviews the same in every financial year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ew Muthoottu

Managing Director

DIN:

Date:

01786534

07-07-2025

Place: Kochi

NN=

Nizzy Mathew
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01680739
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BYR & associaTes SR

C S . Chitteth House, P C Road
ompany Secretaries LLP Wytilla P. O., Cochin - 682 019
LLP Identification No: AAE-7079 Ph: 0484 4046696, +91 98956 30786

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 3 1** March 2025
[Pursuant to section 204( 1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To.

The Members,

Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited
65/623K, Muthoottu Royal Towers, Kaloor,
Ernakulam. KOCHI, Kerala, India, 682017

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited, CIN:
U65910KL1998PLCO12154 (hereinafter called the company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed with
various regulatory authorities and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers. agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the
secretarial audit. the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the
Management. we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 3 1% March 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We further report that maintenance of proper and updated books, papers, minutes, filing of forms and
returns with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other records is the responsibility of
management and of the company, our responsibility is to verify the content of the documents produced
before us, make objective evaluation of the content in respect of compliance and report thereon.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books. forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 3 1% March 2025 according to the provisions
of:

(i) The Companies Act. 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder to the extent applicable.

(11) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA") and the rules made thereunder:




(iii) Provisions of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its guidelines and regulations to the extent
the same is applicable to the Company.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent the same apply to the company.

(v) The Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent of
its applicability:

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act. 1992 (*SEBI Act’) to the extent of its applicability: -

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 — Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; to the extent of its applicability.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock Option Scheme and
Employees Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 — Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, to the extent of its applicability.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008. to the extent of its applicability.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993, to the extent of its applicability.

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations.

2021, do not apply to the Company during the audit period.

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations. 2018-

i)

Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent of its applicability.




J) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations. 2021- to the extent of its applicability.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Debt Listing agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act. Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards. etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

i. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive
Directors. Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

ii. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on the agenda were sent and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

iii. All decisions of the board were taken with the requisite majority and the same was captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws. rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events having a major bearing on
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above laws, rules, regulations. guidelines, standards etc
referred to above like Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/ sweat equity. etc. or redemption or buy-
back of securities. any major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the
Companies Act. 2013, merger / amalgamation / reconstruction or foreign technical collaborations other
than public issue of secured redeemable non-convertible debentures.




This report is to be read with Annexure A of even date and the same forms an integral part of this report.

UDIN: FOI1868G000723568
Peer Review Certificate No.706/2019

For BVR & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP
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-

FCS GOKUL RI
COMPANY SECRETARY
FCS No: 11868

COP No: 14248

Place: Ernakulam vy
Date: 16.06.2025 “Sesamiliea”,




TO,

Annexure A

The Members,
MUTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LIMITED
65/623K. Muthoottu Royal Towers, Kaloor.

Ernakulam. Kerala. India. 682017

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes that were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done
on a test basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and Books of
Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules. regulations, and
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification

2.
the processes and practices followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3.
Accounts of the Company.
4.
rules. and regulations and happening of events etc.
5.
of procedures on a test basis.
6.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

UDIN: FOI1868G000723568
Peer Review Certificate No. 706/2019

For BVR & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP

FCS GOKUL RI
COMPANY SECRETARY
FCS No: 11868

COP No: 14248

Place: Ernakulam GOXUL R |

Date: 16.06.2025 m“"m




ANNEXURE-4
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2025

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i ICIN U659T10KLI998PLCOT2154
il egistration Date 18/03/1958
tit  [Name of the Company UTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LIMITED
iv  [Category/Sub-category of the PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY
Company

i 05/623K, MUTHOOTTU ROYAL TOWERS,
v |Address of the Registered of‘ﬁceK ALOOR, KOCHI, ERNAKULAM.,

& contact details KERALA-682017
vi  [Whether listed company DEBT LISTED COMPANY
Debentures:

MUFG INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (Erst
while LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED)
C-101, 247 PARK, L.B.S. MARG

VIKHROLI (WEST), MUMBAI - 400083

C- 13 PANNALAL SILK MILLS COMPOUND,

Name, Address & contact details of LBS MARG,BHANDUP (WEST),
theRegwtrar & Transfer Agent’ if MUMBAI - 400078, MAHARA HTRA, INDIA

any.

vii

Equity Shares:
CDSL VENTURES LIMITED
A WING, 25" FLOOR, MARATHON FUTUREX,

MAFATLAL MILL COMPOUND, NM JOSHI
MARG, LOWER PAREL(E) MUMBAI-400013

IL PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated

L Noe Name & Description of C Code of the % to  total
main products/services Product / service turnover of the company
1. |GOLD LOANS 99711352 83.05% I
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI No

Name & Address
of the Company

CIN/GLN

Holding/Subsidiary/
Associate

%

of

Shares Held

Applicable
Section

INil

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total

Equity)

i) Category Wise Shareholding

iCategory of
[Shareholders

year

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

INo. of Shares held at the end of the year

%%
IChange

Demat

Physical

ITotal

% of

Total
(Shares

[Demat

Physical

Total

%6 of
Total
Shares

in year

A Promot_ers
(1) Indian

b)Individuals HUF

1,92,14,353

0 1,92,14,353

76.76%

1,92,14,353

1,92,14,353

76.76%

b} Central Govi. or
State Govt.

c) Bodies Corporates

46,00,346

12,17,835 58,18,181

23.24%

58,18,181

58,18,181

23.24%

d) Bank/FI
le] _Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

2,38,14,699

12,17,835] 2,50,32,534

100%

2,50,32,534

2,50,32,534

100%

{2} Foreign

) NRI- Individuals

) Other Individuals

<) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FI

e) Any other...

[==]) ) el e o]

oo o o|e
ocoIQ|lol ol

S| S|l S| o

oD oo

Qoo oo

S|o|lao|lo|leo

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

0

0 0

0

0

Total Shareholding of
Promoter

AP (AXDHAN2)

2,38,14,699

12,17,835 2,50,32,534

100%

2,50,32,534

oo [ olo|o| oo

2,50,32,534

100%

Clo|lo|o|lojo| S

B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING

K1) Institutions

fz) Mutual Funds

b} Banks/F1

) Central Gowi.

d) State Govl.

e) Venture Capital
[Fund

[=R =1 -} ) ] F o]

c|lo|o|o|o|e
C|loo|o|lo|a

D|lo|leie|losl o

Do|oo|loo

S| SIo|lo|o

oc|lo|lolo|olo

olo|lo|lelalo

c|lo|lolo|lo|e

) Insurance
i ompanies

o

=]

)} FIIS

) Foreign Venture
ICapital Funds

i} Cthers {specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions
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0 ¢ 0 ]
) Bodies corporates 0 1] 0 (] 0 0 . :
i) [ndian 0 0 0 0 g g . 5 :
iiiYOverseas 0 0 0 0 - - - -
b) Individuals | 4] 1] 0 ¢
i Individual
hareholders holding 5 0 5 0 5 0 5 0 0
ominal share capital
o Rs.1 lakhs
ii)Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
harcholders holding
ominal share capital
in excess of Rs, 1
akhs
} Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (B)(2):
0
0 0

"
hareholding at the beginning
of the year

No of shares |2, of total % of
shares of |s

14859912 mm 14859912
3354446 m 3354446

2551298 10.19

i
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Muthoottu Infotech | gr9507 | 251 Nil | 620207 | 251 il P
Private Limited
Erstwhile RMM
Properties India
Private Limited)
MuthoottuMini 1217835 | 4.87 Nil | 1217835 | 487 Nil 0
[Theatres Private
limited
Total 25032534 99.99 Nil 25032534 9999 |Nil 0
iii) Change in Promoters/Promoter Group Shareholding
SL Shareholding at the [Cumulative  Shareholding
No. beginning of the Year during the year
[No. of % of total No of % of total
Shares ishares of the [shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 25032534 99.99 25032534 99.99
Date  wise  increase/decrease i
Promoters Shareholding during the yea Nil
ispecifying the reasons for increase
Vdecrease (e.g. allotment /transfe
bonus /sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 25032534 | 9000 | 25032534 ]  99.09

iv) Sharcholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other Than Directors, Promoters

& Holders of GDRS & ADRS)
SI, Shareholding at  théCumulative
No begining Ehareholding
of the year uring the year
'For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No.of |% of total o of|% of total
ishares Shares hares shares
f the company f the company
t the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters [NOT APPLICABLE.

reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. a
/
transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc)

Shareholding during the year specifying the
llotmen{99.99% Shares held by promoters/promoter group

At the end of the year (or on

car)

date of separation, if separated during the

the

v} Shareholding of Directors & KMP

For each of the Directors
Lmd KMP

SI. ';hareholding at  the Cumulative Shareholding
No eginning of the year during the year

o of
hares

% of total
haresof the

No
|shares

of

% of total shares
of the company
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company

Mathew Muthoottu-Managing
Director

At the beginning of the year

14859912

159.36%

14859912

59.36%

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

-

At the end of the year

14859912

59.36%

14859912

59.36%

Nizzy Mathew-Whole Time
irector

At the beginning of the year

3354446

13.40

3354446

13.40

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year

3354446

3354446

Manojkumar R

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year

MS Rajagopal*

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year

Venugopal Kuttappan Nair

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year

Babita Teresa George

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
shareholding during the year
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specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
6. K S Smitha- Company Secretary
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase/Decrease in =~ |- = e -
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 0 (0 0 0
7. Pothanatty Ethappiri Mathai
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase/Decrease in - -~ - -
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
8. Ann Mary George -CFO
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase/Decrease in -~ |--- - - -
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 0 0 (0 0

*Tenure ceased on 30-09-2024
V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
ayment

Secured Loans excludi
ng deposits (in lakhs)

Unsecured Lo Deposit Total Indebted

Indebtedness at the beginning of the ans (in lakhs) [ S (in ness (in lakhs)
lakhs)

financial vear

i) Principal Amount 2,96,931.52 42339.14 3,39,270.66

ii) Interest due but n
ot paid
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iii) Interest accrued b 16,152.45 4,009.64 20,162.09
ut not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 3,13,083.97 46,348.78 3,59,432.75
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Additions 1,56,546.86 19,324.28 1,75871.13
Reduction 1,21,338.42 21637 1,21,554.79
Net Change 35,208.43 19,107.91 54,316.34
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 3,34,527.72 59,423.27 3.93,950.99
ii) Interest due but n

ot paid

iii) Interest accrued b 13.764.69 6,033.42 19,798.11
ut not due

Total (i+if+iii) 3,48,292.41 65,456.69 4,13,749.09

VL

PERSONNEL

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL

a) Remuneration To Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or

Manager:

(in lakhs)

No

‘Particulars of Remuneration

ame of
/WTD/Mana

the
er

Total Amount

1 Gross salary

Nizzy
Mathew

Mathew
Muthoottu

(in lakhs)

(a) Salary as per provisions of Sec
17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961.

180.00

294.00

474 .00

IT Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of thg

1961

(¢ ) Profits in lieu of salary under
Sec 17(3) of thelncome Tax Act,

Stock option

Sweat Equity

Lh Tl TR

Commission as % of profit

Others, please specify

TOTAL

180.00

294.00
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Ceiling as per the Act  [¥In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration
payable to Managing Director / All executive Directors shall not exceed limits
rescribed as per Section 197 of the Act. The above remunerations paid to
Managing Director and Executive directors are well within the said limit

b). Remuneration to Other Directors:

Particulars of Remuneratio Name of the Directors Total

n : Amou
nt (in
lakhs)

2z

Man Babit
0j a
Kum Teres
arR MS MM ::Illllgo a
1 | Independent Directors Rajago | Herbe Kuttapp | Geor

pal rt an Nair | ge

(a)Fee for attending
Board/ Committee meetings | 6.90 | 3.70 5.35 2.45 - 18.40
(Rs. in lakhs)

{(b) Commission

(¢ ) Others, please specify

Total (1) 690 [3.70 |535 |245 18.40

Other Non-Executive
Directors

{(a)Fee for
attending Board/ Committee - - - - 1.20 {1.20
meetings

(b) Commission

(¢ ) Others, please specify
Total (2) - - - - 1.2 1.20
Total (B)=(1+2) 6.90 |[3.70 535 (245 1.20 | 19.60

Total Managerial
Remuneration

493.60

Overall Ceiling as per the S ' .
act ST T 130836 ¢
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¢).Remuneration to KMP other than MD/Manager/WTD

(in lakhs)

Sl. No.

articulars of Remuneration

¢y Managerial Personnel

ross Salary

S

CFO

CEO

Total

in section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961 (in iakhs)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained24.56

79.97

132.15

236.68

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961

() Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act,
1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission as % of profit

TTEOTS

Others, please specify

TOTAL

24.56

79.97

132.15

236.68

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Nil

—
Type Section of the
Companies Act

Brief
Descriptio

Details of
penalty/punish
ment/compound
ing fees
imposed

Authority
[RD/NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal
made f any
(give
details)

A.COMPANY

Penalty

| Punishment

Compounding

B.DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

/

Ma Muthoottu
Managing Director
DIN: 01786534

Date: 07-07-2025
Place: Kochi

ylli=

Nizzy Mathew
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01680739
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ANNEXURE 5
Statement showing the names and other particulars of the employee drawing remuneration in excess of the
limits set out in terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

SN | Name | Designati | Remune | Nature of Qualification | Date | Theage [ The last | The Whethe
of the on of the | ration employment, | and of of employm | percenta| r any
Employ | employee whether experience of | comm | employee | €nt held | ge of [ such
ee Receive | contractual | the employee | encem by such | equity employ

d(Rs. ot otherwise ent of employec | shares | ee s a
in lakhs emplo _be_fqre held relative
p.a) Jjoining by the O.f any
yment the employ | director

company | €e in or
the manage
compan | t of the
¥ compan
y and if

s0,
nameof

such
director

or

! Mathew | Managing | 294 Employment | Bachelor's 07/03/] 33 NA 59.36% | Nizzy
Muthoo | Director contractual | degree in 2008 Mathew
ttu Commerce, (Mother

13 years in )
NBFC &
Finaneial
Institutions

2 Nizzy Wholetim | 180 Employment | Bachelor's 18/03/ | 69 NA 13.40% | Mathew

Mathew | ¢ Director contractual | degree in 1998 Muthoo
English ttu
literature, 25 ( Son)
years'
experience in
NBIC &

Financial
Institution
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3 PE
Mathai

Chief
Executive
Officer

132.15

Employment
contractual

Bachelor's
degree in
Science, with
more than
four decades
of experience
in Banking
industry

04/02/
2019

75

South
Indian
Bank &

Muthoot
Finance
Limited

Nil

NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

JU=

anaging Director
DIN: 01786534

Date: 07-07-2025

Place: Kochi

Nizzy Mathew
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01680739
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ANNEXURE-6

A) INFORMATION REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 READ WITH RULE
5 (1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

I. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the company for the financial year; The percentage increase in
remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year;

SN | Name of Director Designation Ratio of the Percentage
and remuneration increase in
KMP of each remuneration

directorto the | during FY
median** 2024-25
remuneration
of the
employees of
the company
1 Mathew Muthoottu | Managing Director | 245 - 1.93 5.29%
2 | Nizzy Mathew Whole Time X
Director 150:1.93 0.00%
3 MS Rajagopai* Independent
Director i NA
4 | Manojkumar R Independent
Director ) NA
5 | MM Herbert Independent
Director i NA

6 | Venugopal Independent
Kuttappan Nair Director i NA

7 | Babita Teresa Non Executive
George officer ] NA

8 PE Mathaij i i

th g?rl:(;or Exeautive | 155 1 o3 53.58%
9 |AmM i i i
ary George SP%iir Financial 70-1.93 63.54%
10 | Smitha KS
g;’c’;‘e‘z:f;’ 20:1.93 4.82% N

2. The percentage increase in the m

18.77 %

edian remuneration of employees in the financial year :

3. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31.03.2025 : 5,734




increase for managerial personnel is 9.12 % & and other than managerial personnel is 11.80
%.

5. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company — We
affirm that remuneration is paid as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

**Explanation

(1) the expression “median” means the numerical value separating the higher half of a
population from the lower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by
arranging all the observations from lowest value to highest value and picking the middle one;

(i1) if there is an even number of observations, the median shall be the average of the two
middle values.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A=

AT
Mathew Muthoottu Nizzy Mathew

Managing Director Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01786534 DIN: 01680739

Date: 07-07-2025
Place: Kochi
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ANNEXURE-7

Disclosure pursuant to Part A of Schedule V read with Regulation 53(f) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015

SN

Loans and Advances in the nature
of loans

Amount outstanding as at
31-03-2025

Maximum  amount
outstanding during
the year

(4)

Holding Company

1) Loans and advances in the nature
of loans to subsidiaries by name and
amount.

2) Loans and advances in the nature
of loans to associates by name and
amount.

3) Loans and advances in the nature
of loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested by name and
amount.

NA.

The Company does not
have a holding company.

NA.

The Company does not
have a holding
company.

(B)

Subsidiary Company

1) Loans and advances in the nature
of loans to subsidiaries by name and
amount.
2) Loans and advances in the nature
of loans to associates by name and
amount.

3) Loans and advances in the nature of
loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested by name and
amount.

NA,

The Company does not have
a subsidiary company.

NA.

The Company does not
have a  subsidiary
company.

©)

Associates

1} Loans and advances in the nature
of loans to subsidiaries by name and
amount.

2) Loans and advances in the nature
of loans to associates by name and
amount.

3) Loans and advances in the nature of
loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested by name and
amount,

NA.

The Company does not have
an associate company.

NA.

The Company does not
have an associate
company.
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which MM NIRMAN AND REAL ESTATE
PRIVATE LIMITED

MUTHOOTTU FINANCE AND
SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

KOZHENCHERRY PROPERTIES INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED

MUTHOOTTU INFOTECH PRIVATE
LIMITED

MUTHOTTU MINI THEATRES
PRIVATE LIMITED

MINI MUTHOOTTU CREDIT INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED

MUTHOOTTU MINI HOTELS PVT LTD

KANDAMATH CINE ENTERPRISES
PVTLTD

MUTHOOTTU MINI NIDHI LIMITED

COCHIN MINI MUTHOOTTU NIDHI
LIMITED

YSS VIRTUAL TECHNOLOGIES
PRIVATE LIMITED

MUTHOOTT AEROSPACE PRIVATE

(D) |To firms/companies in
directors are interested (other than
(A) and (B) above)

LIMITED
(E) | Holding Company NA. NA.
Investment by the loanee in the shares The Company does not have a holding | The Company
of the Parent Company and company, does not have a
Subsidiary Company when the holding
Company has made a loan or advance company,

in the nature of loan

(F} | Disclosures of transactions of the| Please see Point 4 of Accompanying | Please see Point
Company with any person  or Notes to Financial Statements of FY 4 of

entity belonging to the | 2024-25, Accompanying
promoter/promoter group which Notes to
hold(s) 10% or more shareholding Financial

in the Company, in the format Statements of
prescribed in the relevant FY 2024-25.
accounting standards for annual

results,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SN

Muthoottu Nizzy Mathew
anaging Director Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01786534 DIN: 01680739

Date: 07-07-2025
Place: Kochi
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ANNEXURE- 8§
Related Party Transaction Policy

a) Details of all material transactions with related parties shall be disclosed in the annuai
report:

No material transactions entered by the Company with its related parties, except
availing corporate guarantee and collateral security from M/s Muthootty Mini Hotels
Private Limited & Muthoottu Mini Theatres Private Limited for availing credit facilities
from Banks. The transactions are disclosed under the head “c) Charge created on assets
of the related party”. The ongoing related party transactions was reviewed and approved
by the Board on 17-04-2024 and the continuing material transactions were reviewed
and approved by members in the annual general meeting held on 30-09-2024.

b) The company has disclosed the policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions

on its website https://mvw.muthoottumini.com/privacy-policy-2/
and the same is attached as Annexure-8(ii),

For and on behalf of the Board of Pirectors

U=

Nizzy Mathew
Managing Director Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01786534 DIN: 01680739

Date: 07-07-2025
Place: Kochi
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A

MUTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LTD
MATERIALITY POLICY & POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Reviewed in the Meeting of Board of Directors held on 12-11-2022
l. INTRODUCTION

Companies Act, 2013, Accounting Standards (AS-18) and SEBI regulations are primary
regulations which provide for regulation of related party transactions of the Company. SEBI
has mandated every listed company to formulate a policy on materiality of Related Party
Transactions and also on dealing with Related Party Transactions. Muthoottu Mini Financiers
Limited (“the Company”) in confirmity with its good standard of governance practices
conducts its business in a fair and transparent manner duly complying with the applicable laws
as in force.

1. OBJECTIVE

This Policy is intended to ensure due and timely identification, approvals, disclosure and
reporting of transactions including the materiality of such transactions between the Company
and any of its Related Parties in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations as may
be amended from time to time.

I11.  DEFINITIONS

“Audit Committee” or “the Committee” means the committee of Board of Directors of the
Company constituted under the provisions of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013;

“Arms-length transaction — means a transaction between two related party that is
conducted as if they were unrelated so that there is no conflict of interest.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company;

“Key Managerial Personnel” “KMP” means key managerial personnel as defined in sub-
section (51) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 For the purpose of this policy definition
of KMP as per Ind AS 24 will also be applicable.

“Turnover” means the aggregate value of the realisation of amount made from the sale, supply
or distribution of goods or on account of services rendered, or both, by the Company during a
financial year.“Revenue from Operations” is considered as Turnover of the Company.

“Material Related Party Transactions” means a transaction with a Related Party if the
transaction / transactions to be entered into individually or taken together with previous
transactions during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover of



the company as per the last audited financial statements of the company or Rs.1,000 Crores,
whichever is less;

Notwithstanding the above, a transaction involving payments made to a related party with
respect to brand usage or royalty shall be considered material if the transaction(s) to be entered
into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceed
five percent of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited
financial statements of the listed entity

“Related Party” means related party as defined under Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 or under Ind AS 24 and:

I Any person or entity forming part of the promoter or promoter group of the Company;

ii. Any person or entity holding equity shares of 20% or more, (10% or more with effect from
01st April, 2023) in the Company, either directly or indirectly or on a beneficial interest basis
(as per Section 89 of the Act) at any time during the immediate preceding financial year.

“Related Party Transaction” a means related party transaction as defined under Regulation
2(1)(zc) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015;

“Relative” means relative as defined under sub-section (77) of section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules prescribed there under.

All other words and expressions used but not defined in this policy, but defined in the
Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Ind AS 24 shall have the same meaning as respectively
assigned to them in such Acts or rules or regulations or any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereto, as the case maybe.

IV. POLICY:

All Related Party Transactions shall require prior approval of the Audit Committee comprising
of a quorum of only Independent Directors being members of the said Committee approving
the same. Such approval shall be only at a meeting of the Audit Committee and not by
circulation.

All proposed Related Party Transactions and subsequent material modification of such Related
Party Transaction must be presented before the Audit Committee for prior approval by the
Independent Directors of the Committee.

In the case of frequent / regular / repetitive transactions which are in the normal course of
business of the Company, and satisfy the arms-length basis the Committee may grant omnibus
approval.

V. TRANSACTIONS THAT ARE CONSIDERED AS RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS:



Following types of the transactions considered as related party as per section 188 of Companies
Act 2013:

(a) Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

(b) Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

(c) Leasing of property of any kind;

(d) Availing or rendering of any services;

(e) Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property;
(F) Such related party's appointment to any office or place of profit or a Key Managerial
Personnel in the company, its subsidiary company or associate company; and 6

(9) Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the company.

Types of the transactions considered as related party transaction as per Reg. 2(1)(zc) of
SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015

A transaction involving a transfer of resources, services or obligations between

(i) A listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and a related party of the listed entity
or any of its subsidiaries on the other hand

(i1) A listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and any other person or entity on the
other hand the purpose and effect of which is to benefit a related party of the listed entity or
any of its subsidiaries with effect from April 01 2023

Regardless of whether a price is charged and a transaction with a related party shall be
construed to include a single transaction or group of transactions in a contract.

As per and IND AS-24, of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
following are examples of transactions that are disclosed if they are with a related party:

(a) Purchases or sales of goods (finished or unfinished);

(b) Purchases or sales of property and other assets;

(c) Rendering or receiving of services;

(d) Leases;

(e) Transfer of research and development;

() Transfer under license agreements;

(g) Transfer under finance arrangements (including loans and equity contribution in cash or in
kind);

(h) Provision of Guarantees and Collaterals;

(i) Commitments to do something if a particular event occurs or not occur in the future,
including executory contracts (recognized and unrecognized)

(j) Settlement of liabilities on behalf of the entity or by the entity on behalf of that related party;
(k) Management contracts including for deputation of employees.



Parties are considered to be related under IND AS 24, if one party has the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party, directly or indirectly, in
making financial and/or operating decisions and includes the following:

1. A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a company if that person:

a. has control or joint control or significant influence over the Company; or
b. is a key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company;

2. An entity is related to a company if any of the following conditions applies:

a. The entity is a related party under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act,2013;or

b. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member); or

c. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; or

d. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity; or

e. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (1); or

f. A person identified in (1)(b) has significant influence over the entity (or of a parent of the
entity);

VI.  TRANSACTIONS THAT ARE NOT CONSIDERED AS RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS:

The following transactions are not considered as Related Party Transactions

a) The issue of specified securities on a preferential basis, subject to compliance of the
requirements under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018

b) The Corporate actions by the listed entity which are uniformly applicable/offered to all
shareholders in proportion to their shareholding

(i) Payment of dividend;

(i1) Subdivision or consolidation of securities;

(iii) Issuance of securities by way of a rights issue or a bonus issue; and

(iv) Buy-back of securities

VIl. IDENTIFICATION OF RELATED PARTIES AND INTERESTED
DIRECTOR WITH RESPECT TO TRANSACTIONS:



Every Director/KMP will be responsible for providing a declaration in containing the following
information to the Company Secretary on an annual basis:

1. Names of his / her Relatives;
2. Partnership firms in which he / she or his / her Relative is a partner;

3. Private Companies in which he / she or his / her Relative is a member or Director;

4. Public Companies in which he / she is a Director and holds along with his/her Relatives more
than 2% of paid up share capital as at the end of immediate preceding financial year;

5. Any Body Corporate whose Board of Directors, Managing Director or Manager is
accustomed to act in accordance with his / her advice, directions or instructions (other than
advice, directions or instructions obtained from a person in professional capacity);

6. Persons on whose advice, directions or instructions, he / she is accustomed to act (other than
advice, directions or instructions obtained from a person in professional capacity); and

7. Body Corporate or any Association of Individuals in which he / she or his / her Relative is a
Director or owner or Partner or Promoter or Manager or Chief Executive Officer of Body
Corporate or Member of the Association of Individuals.

VIIl. APPROVAL BY AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Transactions that require prior approval of Audit Committee

a) All Related Party Transactions and subsequent material modifications to such Related Party
Transactions;

b) Related Party Transactions to which subsidiary of MMFL( If any) is a party but MMFL is
not a party shall require prior approval of Audit committee of MAFIL if the value of such
transactions whether entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions
during a financial year exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last
audited financial statements of MMFL;

c) With effect from April 1, 2023 Related Party Transactions to which subsidiary of MMFL is
a party but MMFL is not a party shall require prior approval of Audit committee of MMFL if
the value of such transactions whether entered into individually or taken together with previous
transactions during a financial year exceeds ten percent of the annual standalone turnover as
per the last audited financial statements of the Subsidiary.

Material Modification
Any material modification to the terms approved by the Audit Committee for the Related Party

Transactions will require its prior approval. The following terms shall be considered as material
terms in respect of every Related Party Transaction, except financial transactions:



a. Subsitution of the name of the Related Party arising due to succession, corporate re-
structuring, acquisition etc.

b. Nature of goods or services
c. Total value of the Related Party Transaction
d. Period approved for Related Party Transaction

e. Miscellaneous terms such as advance payable, warranty terms, credit period, interest payable
on default in payment.

In respect of financial transactions like providing of loan, inter-corporate deposit:

a. Subsitution of the name of the Related Party arising due to succession, corporate re-
structuring, acquisition etc.

b. Quantum of loan or inter-corporate deposit.
c. Interest related terms including interest holiday, if any, security terms, if any
d. Period

e. Repayment terms
Information to be placed before Audit Committee:

The following information shall be placed before the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors to enable the independent directors who are members of the Audit Committee to
consider and decide on the approval in respect of Related Party Transactions:

a. Type, material terms and particulars of the proposed transaction;

b. Name of the related party and its relationship with the listed entity or its subsidiary, including
nature of its concern or interest (financial or otherwise);

c. Tenure of the proposed transaction (particular tenure shall be specified);

d. Value of the proposed transaction;

e. The percentage of the Company’s annual consolidated turnover, for the immediately
preceding financial year, that is represented by the value of the proposed transaction (and for a
Related Party Transaction involving a subsidiary, such percentage calculated on the basis of
the subsidiary’s annual turnover on a standalone basis shall be additionally provided);

f. If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made
or given by the Company or its subsidiary:

i) Details of the source of funds in connection with the proposed transaction;

i) Where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make or give loans, inter-corporate
deposits, advances or investments,

e nature of indebtedness;



e cost of funds and tenure

iii) Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, interest rate and repayment schedule,
whether secured or unsecured; if secured, the nature of security; and
iv) The purpose for which the funds will be utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the related party transactions.
g. Justification as to why the Related Party Transaction is in the interest of the Company;
h. A copy of the valuation or other external party report, if any such report has been relied
upon;
I. Percentage of the counter-party’s annual consolidated turnover that is represented by the
value of the proposed related party transaction, on a voluntary basis;
j. Methodology used for determination of arms-length
j. Any other information that may be relevant

The Audit Committee of the Board shall also review the status of long-term (more than one
year) or recurring related party transactions on an annual basis.

Factors to be considered by the Audit Committee

While considering any related party transaction, the Committee shall also take into account all
relevant facts and circumstances including the terms of the transaction, the business purpose of
the transaction, the benefits to the Company and to the Related Party, and any other relevant
matters as specified in the relevant applicable circulars issued by SEBI from time to time
Prior to the approval, the Committee may, inter-alia, consider the following factors to the extent
relevant to the transaction:

a. Whether the terms of the Related Party Transaction are in the ordinary course of the
Company’s business and are on an arm’s length basis;

b. Whether the transaction could be material or significant by value;

c. The business reasons for the Company to enter into the Related Party Transaction and the
nature of alternative options available, if any;

d. Whether the Related Party Transaction includes any potential reputational risks or misuse of
corporate assets that may arise as a result of or in connection with the proposed Transaction;
and

e. Whether the Related Party Transaction would affect the independence or present a conflict
of interest for any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, taking into account
the size of the transaction, the overall financial interest or benefit to the Director, Key
Managerial Personnel or other Related Party concerned, the direct or indirect nature of the
Director’s interest, Key Managerial Personnel’s or other Related Party’s interest in the
transaction and the ongoing nature of any proposed relationship and any other factors the
Committee deems relevant.



f. While considering the arm’s length nature of the transaction, the Committee may take into
account the facts and circumstances as were applicable at the time of entering into the
transaction with the Related Party. The Committee may also take into consideration subsequent
events (i.e., events after the initial transactions have commenced) like evolving business
strategies / short term commercial decisions to improve / sustain market share, changing market
dynamics, local competitive scenario, economic / regulatory conditions affecting the global /
domestic industry, may impact profitability but may not have a bearing on the otherwise arm’s
length nature of the transaction.

Omnibus Approval

For granting omnibus approval, the committee shall specify the following details:

a. Name of the related party;

b. Nature of the transaction;

c. Period of the transaction;

d. Maximum amount of the transactions that can be entered into;

e. Indicative base price / current contracted price and formula for variation in price, if any;
f. Justification for the omnibus approval.

Such transactions will be deemed to be pre-approved and may not require any further approval
of the Audit Committee for each specific transaction for the specific period approved.

The Audit Committee shall, review quarterly and take note of all Related Party Transactions
for which omnibus approval has been granted by the Audit Committee.

The omnibus approval shall be valid for a period of one financial year however subject to
quarterly review and fresh approval shall be obtained after the expiry of one year.

IX. APPROVAL BY THE BOARD:

If the Committee determines that a Related Party Transaction should be brought before the
Board or a Related Party Transaction is not in the Ordinary Course of Business or not at Arms’
Length or is a material related party transaction or if the Board in any case elects to review any
such matter or it is mandatory under any law for Board to approve the Related Party
Transaction, then the Board shall consider and approve the Related Party Transaction at a
meeting.

The Board shall take note of all transactions approved by the Audit committee

X. APPROVAL BY SHAREHOLDERS



The Board of Directors of the Company shall mandatorily place before the members of the
Company, all Material RPTs and subsequent material modifications to existing RPT for their
approval prior to undertaking such transactions.

Except with the prior approval of the Shareholders by a resolution, a company shall not enter
into any RPTs as mandated under Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, material related party transactions
and/or subsequent material modifications to related party transactions as Stipulated in
Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015

In all cases, where shareholders’ approval is necessary for any RPT, the Company Secretary
shall ensure that the agenda of the Board meeting at which the resolution is proposed to be
moved shall disclose-

a. All the information provided by the management of the Company to the Audit Committee;
b. Any other information that may be relevant

The Company Secretary shall ensure that the explanatory statement to be annexed to the notice
of a general meeting convened for obtaining approval of members in relation to the proposed
RPTs shall contain the following particulars:

a. Summary of the information provided by the management of the Company to the Audit
Committee;

b. Justification for why the proposed transaction is in the interest of the Company;

c. Where the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments
made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary, the details placed before the Audit
Committee except the information on source of funds and cost of funds.

d. A statement that the valuation or other external report, if any, relied upon by the Company
in relation to the proposed transaction will be made available through the registered email
address of the shareholders;

e. Percentage of the counter-party’s annual consolidated turnover that is represented by the
value of the proposed RPT, on a voluntary basis;

f. Any other information that may be relevant.

The Board shall be ultimately responsible for seeking approvals from shareholders as per the
requirements of Applicable Laws which may vary from time to time.

XI.  DISCLOSURE, RECORDING AND REPORTING OF RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS:



a. Company shall disclose each year in the Audited Financial Statements transactions with
Related Parties as prescribed in the applicable Accounting Standard as well as accounting
policies governing transactions with Related Parties.

b. Disclosure in the Board’s Report to the shareholders shall be made as prescribed under
Companies Act, 2013.

c. Company shall submit along with publication of half yearly financial results, Standalone or
Consolidated as may be applicable, disclosures of all RPTs, in the format specified by SEBI to
the stock exchanges and publish the same on its website.

d. The Company Secretary shall make necessary entries in the Register of Contracts required
to be maintained under the Companies Act, 2013.

XIl.  POLICY REVIEW:
Board shall review the overall policy once in three years and modify or update the same in
accordance with the changes to the threshold limits or as may be required by the amendments
to Applicable Laws.

XIll. AMENDMENT IN LAW:

Any subsequent amendment/modification/in the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Listing
Requirements) Regulations 2015 and /or applicable laws in this regard shall automatically
apply to this policy.
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ANNEXURE-9

Declaration Compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

As provided under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, all Board Members
and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of
Board of Directors and Senior Management for the financial year ended 3 1% March 2025.

For Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited

SN=

Mathew Muthoottu Nizzy Mathew

Managing Director Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01786534 DIN: 01680739

Date: 07-07-2025

Place: Kochi
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"Swastika", First Floor

BYR & associares
Chitteth House, P C Road

Company Secretaries LLP Vitilla P. O., Cochin - 682 019
LLP Identification No: AAE-7079 Ph: 0484 4046696, +91 98956 30786

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members,

Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited
65/623K Muthoottu Royal Towers
Kaloor Kochi 682017

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Muthoottu Mini
Financiers Limited (herein after referred as "Company”)for the financial year ended March
31 2025, as prescribed under Regulations 17 to 27 and other applicable regulations,
Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2015.

In my opinion and best to my examination of the relevant records and the explanations
given to me, I certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as prescribed under the listing Regulations.

I also state that none of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

KAl

FCS GOKUL RI

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mem No: 11868

C.P. No: 14248

UDIN: FO11868G000723568

GOXUL R |

Pastnar

M:m Secretaries LLP

Swastika”, m’m\o

Road, Ponnurunni (E)
P.O., Cochin-882 019

P No: 14245, FCS 11888

LP IN AAE-7079

Date: 16.06.2025
Place: Kochi
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To

Annexure 11
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ]

The Board of Directors
Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited

We hereby confirm and certify as under:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended

March 31, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material

fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations,

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s

code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have not come across any deficiencies
in the design or operation of such internal controls which require reporting to Auditors

or Audit Committee.
D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit commitiee that there are no;
1) significant changes in internal control over fi nancial reporting during the year;

2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and

3) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the

Company’s internal control system over financial reporting,

-

m. ‘o
W' a_(rq .,upﬂ.q(_ /
Ann Mary\George Mathai PE

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Date: 07-07-2025
Place: Kochi
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INDIA

Our Ref.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Muthoottu Mini
Financiers Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of Muthoottu Mini Financiers
Limited(“the Company”) which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), and the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statement including a summary of
the Material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements
give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting  Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, its profit including other comprehensive

MOHANDAS & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Hird Floor, “Sree Residency”
Press Club Road, Thrissur - 1.
@ : 0487 - 2333124, 2321290
Email : ma.auditors@gmail.com

income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial
Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion on the Financial
Statement.

Key audit matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in
our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

A

Branch Office : 11Ird Floor, “Kolliyil Arcade”, Kavilkadavu,Koduirga
Phone : (Off). 0480 - 4050003, Mob : 9847574425,




Curitniuation sheet

MOHANDAS & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SI.No

Key Audit Matter

Auditor Response

1

Expected credit loss on loans
and advance

The estimation of ECL on
financial instruments involves
significant  judgments and
estimates. As part of our risk
assessment, we determined that
the allowance for ECL on Loans
Assets has a high degree of
estimation of uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable
outcomes for the financial
statements.

The elements of estimating ECL
which involved increased level of
audit focus are the following:
Data Inputs: The application of
ECL model requires several data
inputs

Model Estimations: Inherently
judgment models used for the
estimation of probabilities of
Default (PD), Loss given default
(LGD) and Exposure at Default
(EAD). The PD and L.GD are the
key drivers of the estimation of
ECL.

Qualitative and  quantitative
factors used in staging the loan
assets measured at amortized
cost.

Ind AS 109 requires the entity to
measure the ECL on an unbiased
forward looking basis reflecting a
range of future economic
conditions. The management
measure the ECL considering the
historical trends as well as
considering macro-economic
emerging trends.

We performed the following audit procedures:

Testing the design and effectiveness of internal controls
over the following:

Key controls over the completeness and accuracy of key
inputs, data and assumptions into the Ind AS 109
impairment models.

Key controls over the application of the staging criteria
consistent with the definition applied in accordance with
the policy approved by the board of directors including
the appropriateness of the qualitative factors

Management control over authorization and calculation
of post model adjustments and management overlays to
the output of the ECL model

Also, for a sample of ECL allowance on loan assets
tested in respect of Key Inputs, data and assumptions
impacting ECL calculations to assess the completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data, Reasonableness and
weights.

We tested the mathematical accuracy of ECL
calculations using the same inputs used by the company.
Testing management’s controls on compliance with
disclosures to confirm the compliance with the relevant
provisions of Ind AS 109 and the RBI directions.
Evaluating the changes and updations during the year
whether those changes and updates are appropriate or
not.




Continuation sheet

MOHANDAS & ASSOCIATES

Information Technology
Systems and controls

SINo | Key Audit Matter

Auditor Respon€HARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The company’s Key financial
accounting and  reporting
process are highly dependent on
the automated controls over the
companies IT system, such that
there exists a risk that gaps in
the IT  general control
environment could result in a
misstatement of the financial
accounting and  reporting
records. Accordingly, we have
considered user access
management, segregation of
duties and controls over system
changeover of key financial
accounting  and  reporting
systems as a key audit matter.

We performed the following audit procedures:

Tested IT key controls over financial accounting and
reporting system including access mechanism and
processing of reports.

Obtained management evaluation of access rights
granted to applications relevant to financial accounting
and reporting systems and tested resolution of a sample
expectations.

Evaluate the design and operating effectiveness of
automated controls critical to financial accounting and
reporting on random basis

Considering the reports issued by the professional
consultants with respect to IS Audit and IT Infrastructure.

Information Other Than Financial
Statements and Auditors Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is
responstblefor other information. The other
information  comprises of information
included in the Company’s Annual Report,
but does not include the Financial Statements
and our report thereon.

Our Opinion on the Financial Statements
does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance.

In connection with our audit on the Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information made available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistentwith the
Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtainedin the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to
report that fact, we have nothing to report in
this regard.

Managements Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The
Act”) with respectto preparation of these
Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes

in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) prescribed under section
133 of the Act. This responsibii;

W e sun.
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includes maintenance of adequate accounting

.records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the asset of
the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies, making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records , relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the
management 1§ responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis for accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Ind AS
Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detecta
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

)
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expected to influence the economic decisions

of the users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with
standards on auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of materal
misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

involve

Obtain an understanding of the internal
control relevantto the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial
controls systems in place and operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the re!at‘
disclosures in the financial statements or, 1f
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such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the
auditevidence obtained up to the date of the
auditor’s report. However future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statement represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements
in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We  consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the standalone financial statements of

¢. No report on accounts of any of the brag
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the current period and are therefore the key

audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (“the order™), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
“Annexure 17 to this report a statement on the
matters specified in Paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order,to the extent applicable.

As required by the Non-Banking Financial
Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Direction, 2016, issued by the Reserve Bank
of India in exercise of the powers conferred
by sub-section (1A) of Section 45MA of the
Reserve Bankof India Act, 1934, we give in
the “Annexure 27, an additional Audit Report
addressed to the Board of Directors
containing our statements on the matters
specified therein.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we
report that:

. We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as

required by law have been kept by the
company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;
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offices audited under sub section 8 of section
143 by any person has been received by us
and therefore no comments need to be made
on the matter.

. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and
loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of
account.

. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial -
comply with the Accounting

statements
Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from
being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164 (2) of the Act.

. In our opinion there are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks relating to the
maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith.

. With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of
thecompany and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our Report in

j.
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“Annexure 3”

With respect to the matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rule, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of ourinformation and
according to explanations given to us:

i. The company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
(refer note no 13 in the accompanying
notes to the Financial Statements )

ii. The company does not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any foreseeable losses.

iii. According to the information provided, an
amount of 8.09 Lakhs being unclaimed
matured debentures has been transferred to

. Investor Education & Protection Fund on
31.03.2025. According to the information
provided, there are no other amounts,
required to be transferred by the company
to the Investor Education & Protection
Fund as on 31.03.2025.

iv. {a) The Management has represented that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or

~ entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the-like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneﬁdf&;(‘i\es;

/7 — L e
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(b) The Management has represented, that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have
been  considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing

MOHANDAS & ASSOCIATES
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vi. Based on our examination which included

test checks, the company have used an

. accounting software for maintaining its

books of account for the financial year
ended 31* March 2025, which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with and
management has represented that the audit
trail feature cannot be disabled. Company
has preserved the Audit trail as per the
statutory  requirements for  records

has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (i1) of Rule 11{e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

- retention.

v. The company has not declared or paid any
dividend during the year.

For MOHANDAS AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No; 0021 lﬁ&
/"\g\
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\\_+_,,:

Mohandas Anchery\—fld
Partner
Membership No.036726

UDIN: 25036726 BMHUHU4092

Thrissur

Dated May 21, 2025
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The Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of the Our Report of even date to the members of Muthoottu Mini
Financiers Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

i a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets;

b)  According to the information and explanation provided by the Management, the
Company has a regular programme for the verification of its Property, Plant and
equipment. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size and nature of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to such programme, a portion of such fixed assets has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification

c)  The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company;

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year;

e) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder;

ii) a) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of
providing loans and does not hold any type of physical inventories. Therefore, the
provisions of paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are
not applicable to the Company;

b)  During the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets including receivables. The statements filed by the company
with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company;




MOHANDAS & ASSOCIATES

Continuation sheet CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
iii)
a)  The Company is a Non- Banking Financial Company engaged in the principal business

of providing loans. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii}(a} of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company;

b) The terms and conditions of all the loans and advances granted by the company
during the year are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
company, in respect of Micro finance and term loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. The repayments or receipts are
regular except in 8429 loans, outstanding amounting to Rs. 3517.95 Lakhs, against
which appropriate provision has been made.

d)  Out of the total loans and advances there are advances which are overdue for more
than 90 days amounting to Rs. 3517.95 Lakhs, against which appropriate provision
has been made. The company has taken necessary steps for the recovery of principal
and interest. The details are given in the below table.

R in lakhs
Type of | No of Loans Principal Overdue Remarks —’
Loan
Gold Loan 2398 1897.81 | Since it's a NBFC their

principal business is to
give loans. The loans for
which overdue for more
than 90 days are treated
as irregular and these

Micro 6030 1528.21 | cases are classified as
NPA as per RBI IRACP

finance
norms. The income
recognition of the above
has been done as per RBI
IRACP norms.

Loan 1 91.93

against '

property

TOTAL 8429 3517.95

e) The Companyisa Non-Banking Financial Company engaged in the principal business
of providing loans. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii) () of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company;

f)  The company has granted loans and advances in the nature of Gold Loans which are
repayable on demand and the principal outstanding as on 31.03.2025 is Rs.
3,60,235.36 lakhs which constitute 919 of total loans outstanding. The company has
not granted any loans repayable on demand to the promoters or related parties a«
defined in clause 76 of section 2 of Companies Act,2013, >
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iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not given any loans, made any investments, provided any guarantees, and given any
security to which the provision of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act are applicable.

V) The Company has not accepted any Deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Therefore the Directives issued by the Reserve Bank Of India and the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company. The Company has not
received any order from the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal in this regard;

vi) Being a Non-Banking Finance Company, maintenance of cost records has not been specified
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013;

vii) a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Goods and
Service Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities wherever applicable to it There are
no arrears of statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date on which they became payable;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute, except the amounts disclosed below :

SLL Name of | Nature of Tax Tax | Period to| Forum where
the Dues Demand, paid | which the . .
No statute (In (In amount dlsput.e s
lakhs) | lakhs)| relates pending
1 Income |Income Tax| 68.58 | 51.65 | AY 2010-| Commissioner of
Tax ACt, demands 11 Ihcome-tax
1961 (Appeals), Kochi
2 Income |Income Tax| 227.45 - AY 2017-| Honorable High
Tax Act, | demands 18 court of Kerala
1961
Total 296.03 51.65

viii)  There are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or jf

repayment of interest thereon to any lender. w
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender. '

(c)  Inouropinionand according to the information and explanation given to us, the term
loan were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not utilized the funds raised on short term basis for long term purposes

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

X) (a) Inouropinionand according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of further public offer of debt instruments obtained have been applied
by the Company during the year for the purpose for which they have been raised.

{b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were 45 fraud case
in respect of spurious gold pledged with the company in 45 branches amounting to
Rs.439.92 lakhs on which 222.85 Lakhs recovered during the year and 100%
provision has been made for the balance outstanding. During the year under audit, no
fraud by the company has been noticed or reported.

{b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the
Company;

xiii) - According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Notes the financial statements of the Company as required by the
applicable Ind AS

Xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and naty

of its business; W \,
i
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xvi)

xvii)

xviii)

Xix)
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(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit were considered by
us on & random basis, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610 “Using the work of
Internal Auditors”.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with the directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the
order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has obtained the required
registration under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b)  The company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid Certificate
of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

(c)  The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India.
(d) There are no CICs as part of the Group to which the company belongs

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial
year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
this clause is not applicable / paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company
is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;

a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company transferred to the Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second
proviso to Section 135(5) of said Act;
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b) Inrespectof ongoing projects, the company does not have any unspent amount under
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, to be transferred to special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said
Act;

xxi)  Since this is a standalone financial statement Paragraph 3 (xxi) is not applicable.

For MOHANDAS AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 00211687~
5
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Mohandas Anchery
[Partner]
Thrissur Membership No.036726
Dated May 215t 2025 UDIN: 25036426 BMHUHU 092
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ANNEXURE 2
" TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited,

We have audited the Balance Sheet of Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited for the year ended
as on March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended annexed thereto and issued our audit opinion dated 21 May 2025 thereon. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility
was to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Our audit was
conducted in the manner specified in the audit report. As required by the Non-Banking
Financial Companies Auditors’ Report (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016, and according to the
information and explanations given to us which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for this purpose, we report hereunder on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the aforesaid directions;

1. The company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution and it has
obtained the certificate of registration as provided in section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934.

ii. The Company is entitled to continue to hold the Certificate of Registration in terms of the
Asset/ Income pattern as on March 31, 2025

iii. The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of public
deposit.

iv. The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the period under review.

v. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the
prudential norms on Income Recognition, Indian Accounting Standards, Asset Classification,
Provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as specified in the direction issued by the Reserve
Bank of India in terms of the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company —
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016.

vi. The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to RBI in terms of Master
Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Important Non- deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016, has been correctly
arrived and such ratio is in compliance with the minimum CRAR as prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India.
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vii. The Company has furnished to RBI the annual statement of Capital Fund, risk assets and risk
assets ratio within the stipulated period.

viii. The Company has not been classified as NBFC-MFI for the year ended March 31, 2025

ix. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after
the date of our audit opinion mentioned in paragraph 1.

The report has been issued pursuant to the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditors’ Report
(Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016 and is issued to the Board of Directors of the Company as
required by Paragraph 2 of such directions and should not be used for any other purpose.

For MOHANDAS AND ASSOCTATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 002

S
Q
S

?92‘
Mohandas Anchefﬁ ALT
' Partner
Thrissur Membership No. 036726

Dated May 21, 2025 UDIN: 25036726 RMHUHUG092
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ANNEXURE 3
TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure 3 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements
of Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) (Referred to in paragraph 3(i) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements ‘section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Muthoottu Mini
Financiers Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the guidance note issued by the ICAI.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of the internal controls stated in the guidance
note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the
guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting ( the “Guidance
Note™) and the standards on auditing (“the Standards™) issued by ICAI and deemed to be
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prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risk of material misstatements of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and the dispositions of the assets of the Company;

1i. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made in accordance with authorization of
the management and directors of the Company; and

iil. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisttion, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, mater :
misstatements due to fraud or error may occur and not be detected. Also, projectiﬁg%m\i%

py
o
-

PRE LR

[




Continuation sheet

MOHANDAS & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

Thrissur
Dated May 21, 2025

For MOHANDAS AND ASSOCISTES

Chartered Accountants J—
Firm Registration No: 0021168 /;/‘5/'4\%%
é,.._-j-—f’_") " i"k - /I .;.
Mohandas Anchery
Partner
Membership No.036726

UDIN: 25036926BMHUH 19092



MUTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LIMITED
CIN: U6591GKL1998PLC012154
Muthoottu Royal Tower, Kaloor, Kochi, Kerala - 682017

BALANCE SHEET
{Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars AsatMarch31st, | As at March 31,2024
NoteNo. | 5025 (audited) (Audited)
I. ASSETS
1 Financial assets
a) Cash and cash equivalents 11 8,717.55 10,269.47
b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 1.2 46,984.94 44,857.57
c} Receivables
{I) Trade receivables
(II} Other receivables
d) Loans 2 4,10,676.97 3,49,807.61
e) Investments 3 2,590.62 992.14
f) Other financial assets 4 1,885.49 2,026.45
2 Non-financial Assets
a) [nventories
b) Current tax assets {Net) 2,821.53 2,199.95
c) Deferred tax assets (Net) - 215.09
d}) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 20,397.34 19,923.16
e} Other intangible assets 6 363.33 222.96
f) GOther non-financial assets 7 1,548.92 1,043.07
Total Assets 4,95,986.69 4,31,557.47
II. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabilities
a} Debt Securities 8 1,46,522.60 1.36,226.23
b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 9 2,30,857.88 1,91,22590
c) Subordinated liabilities 10 34,501.92 30,664.31
d) Other financiai liabilities 11 2,199.36 1,694.17
2 Non-financial Liabilities
a} Provisions 12 783.20 581.62
b)  Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 302.26 -
c) Other non-financial liabilities 13 782.09 576.82
3  EQUITY
a} Equity share capital 14 25,032.54 25,032.54
b)  Otherequity 15 55,004.84 45,551.88
Total Liabilities and Equity 4,95,986.69 4,31,557.47

See accompanying notes to the financial statements As per our report of even date attached

For Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited
Mathew Mutheottu (DIN: 01786534)
anaging Director

For Mohandas
Chartered Accountants (ER /

JLS

Nizzy Mathew (DIN:01680739) ;
Whole-time Director Partner (M.No. 6)

UDIN: 25036726BMHUHU9092

P.E.Mathai
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Kochi
Date: May 21, 2025



MUTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LIMITED
CIN: U65910KL1998PLCO12154
Muthoottu Royal Tower, Kaloor, Kochi, Kerala - 682017
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

[(Rupees in Lakhs)

Note No. Period ended March | Period ended March
Particulars | 31,2025 (Audited) | 31,2024 [Audited)
Revenue from operations
] Interest income 16 77,698.71 65,317.38
(ii]) Otherincome onloans 17 1,164.96 1,030.89
(iii} Dividend income 29.14 22.67
{iv) Rental income 160.56 168.66
(v) Fees and Commission income 388.13 249.09
Vi) Netgainen derecognition of financial instruments under
amortised cost category - -
(vii) Netgain on fair value changes 18 1,598.49 9.13
(viii) Sales of services 19 5.68 23.03
m Total Revenue from operations 81,045.67 66,820.85
(an Other Income 20 468.86 363.06
(1 Total Income (I + IT) 81,514.53 67,183.91
Expenses
(0] Finance costs 21 39,754.55 34,530.94
(ii}  Netloss on fair value changes 18 -
(iii) Impairment on financial instruments 22 1,434.37 694.71
(iv) Employee benefits expenses 23 16,259.02 12,458.58
{v) Depreciation, amartization and impairment 24 1,160.58 1,038.40
(vi) Other expenses 25 9,934.19 7,405.52
{w) Taotal Expenses (IV) 68,542.71 56,128.15
w3 Profit before tax (II- IV) 12,971.82 11,055.76
vn
Tax Expense:
(1) Current tax 3,048.70 3,258.12
(2) Earlier years adjustments
(3} Deferred tax 505.47 14.50
vID) Profit for the year (V- VI) 9,417.65 7,783.14
A)  Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 47.20 (27.41)
- Fair value changes on equity instruments through other
comprehensive income
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not he (11.88) 958
reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal {A) 35.32 (17.83)
B)
(i) [tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to - .
profit or loss
Subtotal (B) - -
(Vi Other Comprehensive Income (A + B) (VIII) 35.32 (17.83)
{IX) Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VI[+VIII) 9,452.97 7.765.31
Eamings per equity share
(Face value of Rs, 100/- each)
Basic (Rs.) 26 37.62 3119
Diluted (Rs.] 26 37.62 31.19

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited

As per our report of even date attached

For Mohandas-&Assagixtes

Chartered Accountanty g‘ d 3

P.E.Mathai .
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Kochi
Date: May 21, 2025

LA

.)
L \;‘ !

Nizzy Mathew (DIN:01680739)
Whole-time Director

DN 0367
UDIN: 250367 26§MHUHIN092

Ghandas Ancb_eéyz‘z



CASH FLOW STATEMENT
CIN: U65910KE1998PLCO12154
Muthoottu Royal Tower, Kaloor, Kochi, Kerala - 682017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Rupees in Lakhs}
Pertod ended March 31, 2025 Period ended March 31st, 2024
Particulars {Audited) {Audited)

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 12,971.82 11,055.76
Adjustments for : )
Impairment on financial instruments 1,434.37 694.71
Net {gain)/loss on fair value changes -1,598.49 -9.13
Net (Profit) / Loss on Sale of assets -2.63 -6.80
Finance Costs 39,754.55 34,530.94
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 1,160.58 1,038.40
Income from Non-Operating Business

- Rental [ncome -160.56 -168.66

- Dividend lncome -29.14 40,558.68 -22.67 36,056.79
Dperating Profit / (Loss) before working capital
Adjustments 53,530.50 47,112.55
Adjustments for :
Loans -62,289.77 -26,084.84
Investments - -2.48
QOther financial assets 127.01 34098
Other non financial assets -505.85 26.22
Bank Balance other than "Cash and cash
equivalents” -2,127.37 -13,368.86
Provisions 248.78 4487
Other financial liabilities 505.18 -45.48
Cther non financial liabilities 205.27 -63,836.75 270.58 -38,819.01
Cash Generated from operations -10,306.25 8,293.54
Income Tax paid -3,670.28 -3,668.65
Finance cost paid -40,284.57 -34,484.56
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activity -54,261.10 -29,859.67
B. Cash Flow from Investment Activities
Dividend Income 29.14 22.67
Rental Income 160.56 168.66
Sale of Fixed Assels 1492 37.25
Purchase of Fixed Assets -1,787.42 -1,749.07
Net Cash Flow from Investment Activity -1,582.80 -1,520.20
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activity
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital
{including share premium) - 300.00
Net increase/{Decrease) in Borrowings{other
than debt securities) 39,627.98 38,564.55
Net increase/{Decrease) in Subdebt 3,837.61 6,364.02
Net increase/(Decrease) in Debt Securities 10,826.39 -7,592.66
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activity 54,291.98 37,635.91
Net Increase/[Decrease )in Cash & Cash
Equivalents[A+B+C) -1,551.92 6,255.75
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 10,269.47 4,013.72
ClostngB_alance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 8,717.55 10,269.47
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Account with Banks 784270 5,415.39
Deposit with Banks 22011 253542
Cash in Hand 654.74 1,818.66

8,717.55 10,329.47
See accompanying notes to the financial statements As per our report of even date attached
For Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited For Mohandas & Ass
SN
T
thew Muthoottu (QIN: 01786534) Nizzy Mathew (DIN:01680739) Mahanda\smtﬁ,r‘yf
aaging Director Whole-time Director Partner (M.No.036728)

DIN: 25036726BMHUHU9092

P.E.Mathali Ann
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial\dfficer

Place; Kochi
Date: May 21, 2025




MUTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LIMITED
Muthoottn Royal Tewer, Kaloor, Kochi, Kerala - 682017
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
a. Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid

[Rupees in Lakhs)
As at March 31st, As at March 31, 2024
Particulars 2025 (Andited) fAudited)
As at the beginning of the period 25,032.54 24,952.54
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period items - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 25,032.54 24,952.54
Changes in equity share capital during the current year - 80.00
Balance at the end of current reporting period 25,032.54 25,032.54
b. Other Equity {Rupees in Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus Other comprehensive income
Special Reserve| Securities (Impairmen| Debentur | Revaluatio| Retained |Equityinstruments| Other ltems
Fund(u/s451C| Premium | tReserve [ n Reserve Earnings through Other of Other
of RBI Act, Redempti Comprehensive |Comprehensi
1934) on Income ve Income
Reserve {Remeasure Total

ment of

defined

benefit

plans}

Particulars
Balance as at March 31, 2023 7,650.35 7,844.15 167.95 - 350.00 21,747.87 - -193.75 37,566.57
Transfer from Retained earnings 1,553.06 - 1,553.06
Securities premium on share
options exercised during the
year 220.00 220,00
Amount transferred .
Profit for the period 7,783.14 -17.83 7,765.31
Transfer to Special Reserve Fund -1,553.07 -1,553.07
Transfer frem/{to) Debenture
Redemption Reserve -
Transfer to Impairiment Reserve -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 9,203.41 8,064.15 167.95 - 3150.00 27,977.94 - -211.58 45,551.87
Transfer from Retained earnings 1,890.59 34.04 1,924.63
Securities premium on share
options exercised during the
year - -
Amount transfetred -
Profit for the period 9,417.65 35,32 9,452.97
Transfer to Special Reserve Fund -1,890.59 -1,890.59
Transfer from/(to) Debenture
Redemption Reserve .
Transfer to Impairment Reserve -34.04
Balance as at March 31, 2025 11,094.00 8,064.15 201,99 - 350.00 35470.96 - -176.26 55,004.84
See accompanying notes to the financial statements As per our report of even d ched
S

For Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited For Mohangdas-&Asso

s ey

athew Muthoottu (DIN: 01786534) Nizzy Mathew (DIN:01680739) Mnh‘iﬁ[_lés Ancl’[el"f’
Whole-time Director

Partner (M.NG.036726)
UDIN: 25036726BMHUHU9092

anaging Director

N
Chief Executive Officer Chief FinanciaMfficer
Place: Kochi

Date: May 21, 2025




Notes to financial statements

Note 1.1: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31st, As at March 31,
2025 (Audited) 2024 (Audited)
Cash on hand 654.74 1,818.66
Balances with Banks
- in current accounts 7.842.70 5,915.39
- in fixed deposit (maturing within a period of 220.11 2,53542
three months)
Total 8,717.55 10,269.47
Note 1.2: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at March 31st, As at March 31,
2025 (Audited) 2024 (Audited)
Fixed deposits with bank (maturing after period of 46,984.94 44,857.57
three months)
Total 46,984.94 44,857.57
Note 1.3 : Additional details of Fixed Deposits
Particulars As at March 31st, As at March 31,
2025 (Audited) 2024 (Audited)
Fixed deposits given as security for borrowings 45,720.80 42,559.46
Fixed deposits given as security for guarantees 1,264.14 1,246.17
Fixed deposits held for redemption of debentures - 1,052.00
Free held fixed deposits 220.11 2,535.36
Total 47,205.05 47,392.99




Notes to financial statements

Note 2: Loans (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at March 31st, 2025 {Audited)
At Fair value
Particulars Amortised | Through Other| Through Dt;s!gnatled at Total
Cost Comprehensive| profitor air vatue
Income loss through profic
or loss
(A)
i) Loans repayable on demand -
ii) Term loans 4,14,160.29 4,14,160.29
iif) Leasing -
iv) Factoring -
v) Others -
Total (A) - Gross 4,14,160.29 4,14,160.29
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,483.32 3,483.32
Total {A) - Net 4,10,676.97 - - - 4,10,676.97
(B)
1) Secured by tangible assets
Gold Loan 3,81,256.08 3,81,256.08
Loan Against Property 235.38 235.38
Total (I} - Gross 3,81,491.46 - - - 3,81,491.46
Less: Impairment loss allowance 2,124.87 2,124.87
Total {1} - Net 3,79,366.59 - - - 3,79,366.59
) Covered by Bank /
Government Guarantees - - - - -
Total (II) - Net
I1I) Unsecured
Microfinance 32,668.83 32,668.83
Total (HI) - Gross 32,668.83 - - - 32,668.83
Less: Impairment loss allowance 1,358.45 1,358.45
Total (111} - Net 31,310.38 - - - 31,310.38
Total {B) (1+11+H]1] - Net 4,10,676.97 4,10,676.97
(€) (1) Loans in India
i) Public Sector -
it) Others 4,14,160.29 4,14,160.29
(C) (11} Loans outside India -
Total () - Gross 4,14,160.29 - - - 4,14,160.29
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,483.32 3.483.32
Total (C)- Net 4,10,676.97 - - - 4,10,676.97
As at March 31st, 2024 (Audited)
At Fair value
Particulars Amortised | Through Other| Through Desfg“ ated at "
Cost Comprehensive| profitor fair value Tota
Income loss through profit
or loss

(a)
i) Loans repayable on demand -
i) Term loans 3,52,27757 3,52,277.57
iii) Leasing -
iv) Factoring -
v) Others -
Total (A) - Gross 3,52,277.57 3,52,277.57
Less: Impairment loss allowance 2,469.96 2,469.96
Total (A) - Net 3,49,807.61 - - - 3,49,807.61
(B)
1) Secured by tangible assets
Gold Loan 3,22,221.23 3,22,221.23
Loan Against Property 643.23 643.23

i P
w ARSI
wor S uf
/<,/. C N
3 N,
.




Notes to financial statements

Total {I) - Gross 3,22,864.46 3,22,864.46
Less: Impairment loss allowance 1,757.86 1,757.86
Total (1) - Net 3,21,106.60 3,21,106.60
II) Covered by Bank / - -
Total (1I) - Net - -
1) Unsecured
Microfinance 29,413.11 29,413.11
Total (ill) - Gross 29,413.11 29,413.11
Less: Impairment toss allowance 712.10 712.10
Total {111) - Net 28,701.01 28,701.01
Total (B} (I+1+11]} - Net 3,49,807.61 3,49,807.61
(C) (I) Loans in India
i) Public Sector -
ii) Others 3,52,277.57 3,52,277.57
C) (1) Loans outside India -
Total (C) - Gross 3,52,277.57 3,52,277.57
Less: lmpairment loss allowance 2,469.96 2,469.96
Total (C)- Net 3.49,807.61 3,49,807.61




Notes to financial statements

2.1 Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

As required by RBI, the Company is obliged to comply with the extant prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning (IRACP). ECL computed by the Company as per the policy, laid down under significant
accounting policies, is higher than the provision as per IRACP norms.

The Notification RBI/2019-20/170 dated 13 March, 2020, states that a comparison to be made between the provisions
required under JRACP and impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109 and where the impairment allowance under Ind
AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), the Company shall
appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate ‘impairment reserve”.

In FY 2024-2025, Rs. 34.04 Jakhs bas been appropriated from net profit after tax to 'Impairment Reserve'( Previous year
2023-2024-Ni), since, the ECL provision computed as per the policy laid down under significant accounting policies is lower
than the provision as per IRACP norms.

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to receivables under

financing activities is, as follows:

Oustanding
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2025
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount 3,30,947.53 18,215.73 3,114.32 3,52,277.58
Assets/increase/(Decrease}in | 145541590 -2,535.13 - | 102448068
Interest accured
Assets repaid -9,46,402.89 -13,913.22 | -1,87481| -9,62,190.92
Transfer to Stage 1 -8,027.80 -8,027.80
Transfer to Stage 2 - 552232 - 5,622.32
Transfer to Stage 3 - - 2,505.48 2,505.48
Write off -171.22 -8.78 -227.04 -407.05
Closing carrying amount 4,03,361.42 7,280.92 3,517.95 4,14,160.29
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount 3,16,459.63 8,418.83 1,399.81 3,26,278.27
Assetsfincrease/(Decrease) in 9.33,177.54 2,326.36 - 9,35,503.90
Assets repaid -9,02,483.66 -6,643.73 -291.33 -9,09,418.72
Transfer to Stagfe 1 -16,138.32 -16,138.32
Transfer to Stagﬂ 14,117.11 14,117.11
Transfer to Stage 3 2,021.21 2,021.21
Write off -67.65 -2.84 -15.39 -85.87
Closing carrying amount 3,30,947.53 18,215.73 3,114.32 3,52,277.58
Reconciliation of ECL Balance
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2025
ECL Stage 1 Stage 2 St_ase_B Total
Gross carrying amount 1,795.35 92.85 581.76 2,469.96
Yo PSS TICT ST T ATeTest 4,430.39 ~9.89 - 4,420.50
Assets repaid -4,100.13 -115.88 -285.56 -4,501.57
Transfer from Stage 1 -59.27 -50.27
Transfer to Stage 2 85.91 85,91
Transfer to Stage 3 828.76 828.76
Write off -2.56 -0.30 -17.90 -20.77
Impact of revision of ECL rates -284.90 185.81 272.20 173.12
Impact of MTM Loss -
Additional Provision . . - 18.96 67.72 86.68
Closing carryjng amaunt - 1,776.88 25747 1,44697 3,483.32
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Notes to financial statements

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2024
ECL Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross caginﬁ amount 1,642.32 51.95 185.12 1,879.39
> ki 4,114.00 9.76 - 4,123.76
Assets repaid -3,868.28 -30.91 -43.03 -3,942.22
Transfer from Stage 1 -91.64 -91.64
Transfer to Stage 2 62.09 62.09
Transfer to Stage 3 392.25 392.25
Write off -1.06 -0.05 -2.25 -3.36
Impact of revision of ECL rates - - 49.67 49.67
Impact of MTM Loss - - - -
Additional Provision - - - -
Closing carrying amount 1,795.35 92.85 581.76 2,469.96

2.2 MOVEMENT OF PROVISION FOR STANDARD AND NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

As per the Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Reserve Bank
Directions, 2016, the Company has created provision for Standard Assets as well as Non-Performing Assets. Details are as per

the table below:-
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-2024
Provision for Standard Assets
Provision at the beginning of the year 1,888.19 1,694.26
Additional provision made during the year 148.15 193.93
Provision at the close of the year 2,036.34 1,888.19
Non-Performing Assets As at 31* March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Sub-standard Assets 361.96 173.90
Doubtful Assets (Upto lyear) 463.67 65.11
Doubtful Assets (1 - 3 years) 154.91 24.13
Doubtful Assets (More than 3 years) 14539 157.42
Loss Assets 321.05 161.21
Total Nen-performing Assets 1,446.98 581.77
Provision for non-performing assets 2024-25 2023-2024
Provision at the beginning of the year 581.77 185.13
Additional provision made during the year 865.21 396.64
Provision at the close of the year 1,446.98 581.77

The company is maintaining LTV (Lean to Value) within the maximum prescribed ratio of 75% of the securities as per RBI

Guidelines.

2.3 Credit Quality of assets

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s internal credit

rating system and year-end stage classification

Ason 31/03/2025 (Rupees in Lakhs)
Internal Rating Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Grand Total

High grade 4,03,361.42 - - 4,03,361.42
Medium grade - 7,280.92 - 7,280.92
Low grade - - 3,517.95 3,517.95
Total 4,03,361.42 7,280.92 3,517.95 4,14,160.29
Ason 31/03/2024 (Rupees in Lakhs)
Internal Rating Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3 Grand Total

High grade 3,30,947.53 ; - 3,30,947.53
Medium grade - 18,215.73 - 18,215.73
Low grade - - 3,114.32 3,114.32
Total 3,30,947.53 18,215.73 3,114.32 3,52,277.58
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Note 3: investments (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at March 31st, 2025 (Audited)
At Fair value
. . Through Designated at
Particulars A d
artiet mg;:]tse Other Through fairvalue | total At cost Total
Comprehen | profit or loss | through profit
sive Income or loss
i) Mutual funds - -
ii) Government securities - -
iii) Debt securities - -
iv} Equity instruments
Subsidigries - -
Others 2,590.62 2,590.62 2,590.62
Total Gross (A) - - 2,590.62 - 2,590.62 - 2,590.62
i) Investments outside India - -
ii]) Investments in India - - 2,590.62 2,590.62 - 2,590.62
Total Gross {B) - - 2,590.62 - 2,590.62 - 2,590.62
Less: Allowance for
impairment loss (C) ;
Total - NetD = (A) - (C) - 2,590.62 - 2,590.62 - 2,590.62
As at March 31st, 2024 (Audited)
At Fair value
. . Through Designated at
Particulars Am::stised Other Through fair value Sub-total At cost Total
Comprehen | profit or loss | through profit "
sive Income or loss
i) Mutual funds - -
ii) Government securities - -
iii) Debt securities - -
iv) Equity instruments
Subsidiaries - -
Others 992.14 $92.14 992.14
Total Gross (A) - - 992.14 - 992.14 - 992.14
i} Investments outside India - -
i) Investments in India - - 992.14 992.14 - 992.14
Total Gross (B) - - 992.14 - 992.14 - 992.14
Less: Allewance for
impairment loss (C) .
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Total - Net D = (A) - (C) - - 992,14 - 992.14 992.14
3.1 Details of investments are as follows :-
Equity instruments | (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at March 31st, 2025 Asat March 31,2024
Particulars {Audited) {Audited)
Number Amount Number Amount
Subsidiqries
Quoted
Unquoted
Subtotal - - - -
Others
Quoted
Wonderla Holidays Ltd 503 3.28 503 4.98
The South Indian Bank Limited 56,275 1298 56,275 15.36
Unquoted
Cochin International Airport Ltd 6,43,591 2,574.36 6,43,591 971.80
Share application money pending allotment - -
Subtotal 7,00,369 2,590.62 7,00,369 992.14
Total 7,00,369 2,590.62 7,00,369 992.14
Note 4: Other financial assets {Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31st, 2025 As atMarch 31, 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Security deposits
Rent Deposit 1,522.08 1,774.07
Security Deposit with NSE, BSE & 34.08 30.57
CDSL
Security Deposit® 50.00 50.00
Electricity Deposit 5.32 5.32
Insurance deposit 442 2.51
Court deposit** 0.75 0.75
Other Deposits 0.92 -
Other Receivables
Commissicn/incentive Receivable 166.71 4554
Third Party 52.77 77.23
Rent Receivable 48.44 40.46
Total 1,885.49 2,026.45
*Robbery Case

**Industrial Tribunai-1 Hyderabad
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Note 6: Other Intangible Assets {(Rupees in Lakhs)
Computer Intangible Total
Software assets under
Particulars development
Gross block- at cost
As at March 31, 2023 87.75 27.08 114.83
Additions 50.92 130.33 181.25
Disposais* -
As at March 31,2024 138.67 157.41 296.08
Additions 1.96 176.88 178.84
Disposals -
As atMarch 31, 2025 140.63 334.29 474.92
Accumulated amortisation
As at March 31, 2023 38.53 - 38.53
Additions 34.59 34.59
Disposals -
As atMarch 31, 2024 73.12 - 73.12
Additions 3847 3847
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2025 111.59 - 111.59
Net book value:
As at March 31, 2023 49.22 27.08 76.30
As atMarch 31, 2024 65.55 157.41 222.96
As atMarch 31, 2025 29,04 334.29 363.33

Note 6.1 Intangible assets under development aging schedule (Rupees in Lakhs)
Amount of CWIP for a period of
Intangible assets under development Total
More than
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years
Projects in progress 176.88 130.33 27.08 334.29
Note 7: Other Non-financial assets (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at March 31st, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 (Audited) | 2024 (Audited)
Balances with government authorities
-GST Receivable 974.83 800.43
Other Advances/Receivables 574.09 242.64
Total 1,548.92 1,043.07 -
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[Rupecs in Lakhs)

Note B: Debt Securities

As at March 31st, 2025 (Audited)

Partlculars At fair value | Designated at fair|
At amontised cost| through profit or| value throngh Total
loss profit or loss

Debt securities in India
(i} Secured, Privately Placed NCD 38,687,22 38,687.22
(i) Secured, Retleemable NCD Public [ssue 7185333 77.853.33
(iii} Unsecured Public Mlaced NCD 16,459.42 16,459.42
(iv) Unsecured Privately Placed NCD - -
v) Unsecured Comanercial Paper £4,642.35 14,642.35
{vi) Unclaimed Matured Debentures 129.03 129.03
{vii} [nterest acerued on above - -
{viii) Unamortized expense of public issue -1,248.75 -1,248.75

Total {A) 1,46,522.60 - - 1,46,522.60
Debt secyeities jn Indiy 1.46.522 60 - - 1 522 .61
Debt securities vetside India - - - -

Total {B} 1,46,522.60 - - 1,46,522.60

As at March 31, 2024 (Audited)
Particulars At fair value | Designaled ax Fair
At amortised cost| through profitor| valuc through Taotal
loss profitor loss

Debt securities in India
(i) Secured, Privately Placed NCD 15,544.42 15,544.42
(i} Secured. Bedeemable NCD Public Issue 1,05,372.00 1,05,372.00
(iii) Unsecured Public Placed NGD 15,630,08 15,630.08
(iv) Unsecured Privately Placed NCD 216,37 216.37
(iv) Unclaimed Matured Debentures 182.69 182.09
{v) Interest accrued on above
{vi} Unamortized expense of public issue -71873 -718.73

Totzl (A) 1,36,226.23 - - 1,36.226.23
Det securities in India 1,36,226.23 - - 1,36,226.23
Debr securities outside lndia - - - -

Total (£} 1,36,226.23 - - 1,36,226.23

8.1 Secured Redeemable Non-Canvertible Debentures - Listed

The outstanding amount of Secured Redleemable Non-Convertible Listed Debentures raised through Public Issue stood at ¢
77.853.33 Jakhs (Previous Year: 11.05.372 lakhs). Duriug the FY 2024-2025. Nan- convertible Debentares amountiing to 1
1145986 lakhs {Previous year : T NIL} was rmised and listed.

Date of Maturity Sum of Tatal Interest Rate
22-05-2025 3,710.05 9.25%
01-07-2025 3.684.44 10.50%
02-07-2025 188895 10.22%
29-09.2025 3.122.00 10.50%
15-11-2025 +,765.63 10.22%
21-11-2025 3.624.01 10.50%
17-32-202% 271.42 10.07%
02-01-2026 6,181.60 9.75%
£2-02-2026 998./7 11.30%5
22-05-2026 9,070.27 9.50%:
14-18-2026 3,339.31 10.71%
18-01-2027 52837 9.00%
18-01-2027 1,261.2% 2400
17-03-2027 64976.61 10.28%
02-07-2027 3.601.42 10.13%
31-07-2027 506406 16.28%
29.10-2027 2.517.66 10.28%
18-11-2027 3,315.84 9.50%
18-131-2027 1,008.59 9.75%
22-11-2027 574757 10.00%
23-12-2027 2,711.3B 10.28%
18-11-2024 3,291.89 10.00%
18-05-2030 1.174.14 10.50%

Total 77,853.33
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1.2 Secured, Redeemable Privately Placed NCD

The Company bad privately placed Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures for a maturity period vp to 66 manths
with an outstanding amouni of £38,687.22 lakhs {Previous year: 115,544.42 lakhs). Durlng e FY 2024 2025, Secured
Privately Placed NGO amounting to T 23,600 Lakhs (Previous year :2 14,900.00 Lakhs ) was raised and listed.

Date of Mamrity Sum of Amaunt Interest Rate
10-11-2025 4,926.57 L1.80%
31-12-2025 502717 10.00%
27-02-2026 502717 10.00%
25-04-2027 7,541.37 10.00%
12-09-2026 2511.64 9.75%
06-02-2027 8,639.59 9.75%
21-03-2028 501370 10.00%

Totai 38,687.22

8.3 Unsecured Debentutes -Listed

The outstariding amount of Unsecured Debeatures raised through Public bssue stood at  16,459.42 lakhs [Previous Year:
215630,08 Jakbs}). During the FY-24-25 and FY 23-24 no Uusecured Public Placed NCIY was ratsed.

Date of Maturity Sum of Amount Interest Rate
13-03-2026 2,770.94 10.25%
02-06-2026 2,405.20 10.25%
15-03-2027 2,592.34 10.41%
14-02-2028 3,242.80 10.25%
02-05-2028 2,004.88 10.41%
15-09-2028 3,443.21 10.41%

Total 16,45%.42

8.4 Undaimed Matuved Debentures
The autstanding amount of Unclainusd Malured Debentires as on 31st March 2024 is T129.62 lakhs. {Previous year 4 182.09

Date of Maturity Antount

2017-18 052
2018-19 42.08
2019-20 6.69
2020-21 2197
2021-22 £1.02
2022-23 A4
2023-24 10.33
2024-25 29.04
Talal 129,03

4.5 Unsecured Commercial Paper

The autstanding amourt of Unsecured commercia! paper stood at ¥ 14,642.35 lakhs (Previous Years NIL), During the FY-24-25,
2 1464235 Lakhs was raised through Lssue of coramerclal paper and in FY 23-24 no unsecured commercial paper wds [ssued.

Date of Maturity Amount Discount Rase
04-07-2028 1.095.97 10%
28-07-2025 2,422.53 1%
22-08-2025 3,368.58 10%
30-03-2025 4.754.29 11%
Total 14,642.35
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Note 9: Borrowings (other than debt securities)

As at March 31st, 2025 (Auditedy

Atamortisedcost{ Atfair velue | Destgnoated ot fair Tots)
Particulars through prefitor] value through
loss profit or loss
(a) Term loan
{1} fror banks
Vehicle Loans -State Sank of Indla 1499 14.99
Velice Loans-South Indian Bank 68.61 68.61
Vehicke Loans -HDFC Bank Lud 110.59 110.59
Tertn Loan -Cathislic Syrian Bank 5.565.55 556555
Term Loan -Canara Bank 4.816.39 4816.39
Tern Loan -Bank of Buroda 1,250.00 1,250.00
Terni Loan -Karur Vysya Bank 4.963.32 +.963.32
Term Loan -Indian Bank 2,944.97 2,944.97
Term Eoan- Federal bank 172239 1,722.39
Term Loan - Bank Of Maharashtra 6,655.95 5,655.95
Term Loan - €O Bank 4,956.14 4,956.14
Tertn Loan - {DFC First Bank 27,3613% 27.361.3%
Terw Loan - Karnataka Bank Ltd 62112 621.12
Term Loan- Bandhan bank 17,281.09 17,281.09
Term Loan-Ujjivan small finance bank 1,333.33 1,333.33
Tern lpan- TOR 8.150.00 8,150.00
Term Loan-South indign bank 4,027,080 4.027.00
Term Loan- Eguitas Small Finance Bank 2,888.75 2,888.75
Ternt loan-Woori Bank 1,750,060 3,750.00
Ternt Loan- Union Bank of Indla 7,013.8% 7.013.85
Tern Loan- HDFC Bank Lud 1,704.60 1,704.00
Term Loan- Standard Chartered Bank 9,500.00 9,500.00
Term Loan- Ytkarslk Small Finance Bank 3,208.33 3,208.33
{if) from financial institutions -
Term Loan- Tata Capitat 1.714.29 1.714.29
Term Loan- Hinduja Leyland - -
‘Terin Loan-oxyzo 5.333.33 533333
Term Loan- Bajaj Finserv 4,967.26 4,967.24
Tetn Loan- Kerala Financial Corporation 4,416,060 4,416.00
Term Loan- Poonawalla 11,933.14 1193314
Unamortized expense of Term Loan -B93.98 -£93.98
(b} Loans from related party - - - .
(<) L.oans repayable on demand
{i} jrom banks
South [ndfan Bark Lid 982272 982272
$tate Bank of india 4.028.57 +028,57
Dhankaxmi Bank 4,686.49 +,686.49
Indus Ind Bank 19,780.88 19,730.88
Union Bank of India 7,71942 7.719.42
Punjab Natioral Bank 4,989.49 4,98%.49
Karur Vysya Bank 240427 2,404.27
UCB Bank 4,960.06 4,960.06
UCO Bank 1,976.13 1976.13
|DBF Bank 393573 3935.73
Indian Bank 1.007.36 1,007.36
1IDFC Bank Ltd 7,500.00 7,500.00
Catholic Syrian Bank 2499.99 2,449.99
IDFC First Bank Ltd 504.52 504,52
Yes bank 5.500.00 5.500.00
Bandhan Bank 397.81 397.81
City Union Bannk 997.34 99734
HOY Credit Cards 358.06 35806
|é#) from financial institutians - -
Interest accried, but not due on the above 410.64 410.64
Total (A) 2,30,057.88 - - 2,30,857.88
Borrowings in Indla 2,30,857.88 - - 2,30,857.88
|Borrowings eutside india - - - -
['I‘null 1] 2,30,857.88 B - 2,30,857,88
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As at March 31, 2024 [Audtited)

At amortised cost| At f@irvalue | Designated at fair Tatal
Particulars through profitor| value through
loss profit or loss

() Term loan

{{) fron: banks
Vehicle Loans -State Bank of Indin 26.66 26.66
Vehicle Lozns -Bank (f Maharashtra 80.22 8022
Vehicle Loans -HDFC Bank Ltd 127.06 127.06
Term Loan -Catholic Syrian Bank 1.234.28 1,234.28
Term Loan -Canars Bank 11,687.69 11,687.69
Terim Lean -Bank of Baroda 505241 505241
Terny Luan -Karur Vysya Bank 7.149.29 7.149.20
Term Loao -lndian Bank 6.462.27 6,462.27
Term Loan -Pyrjab & Sind Bank $14.37 914.37
Term loan-Utkarsh Small Finance Bank 18750 187.50
Term Luan - Bank Of Maharashtra 14,790,909 14,790.490
Term Loan - UCO Bank 2,675.36 767536
Term Loan - IDFC First Bank 4,826.33 9.826.33
Term Laan - Karnataka Bank Lid 2,565.29 2,565.29
Term Eoan- Bandhan bank 15,128.88 15,128.88
Term loan- 108 4,445.00 4,445.00
Term Loan- Equitas Small Finance Bank 604.19 404.19
Ferm Loan- nion Bank of India 4,305.45 4,305.45
Term Loan- HDFC Bank Ltd 3.430.45 3.430.85

(i} from financial institutions -
Term Loan- Tata Capital 959.37 959.37
Term Loan- Rinduja Leyland 729.16 71916
Term Loan- Bajaj Finserv 3,692.23 3,692.23
Unamortized expense of Term Loan -9437.65 -937.65
{k) Luans frorm related party . . _ .
{t) Loans repayable on demand

{i} from banks
South [ndian Bank Lud 9$,352.66 9,352.66
State Bank of india 3991587 3,993.87
Dhanlaxmi Bank 4.827.40 4.827.40
tndus (nd Bank 19,758.19 19,758.19
Union Bank of India 9,8583.15 9.865,15
Punjab National Bank 4.557.85 4,587.85
Karur Vysya Bank 242492 242492
DCB Bank 2,499.55 2,499.55
UCO Bank 1,734.80 1,734,80
IDBI Bank 3.957.05 3.957.05
Indian Bank 1.008.54 1.008.54
HDFC Bank Ltd £5,117.52 £5,117.52
Catholic Syrian Bank 5,000.00 5.000.00
IDFC First Bank Ltd 500.00 500.00
Yes bank 5.000.69 5,000.00
Bandhan Bank 495.22 495.22
City Union Bank 995.35 $95.35
BOR Credit Cards 451 481
{ii) from financial institutions - -
Interest accrued, but not due oo the above - -
Total (A) 1,91,229.90 - - 1.91,229.90
Borrowings in India 1,91,229.90 - - 1,91,229.90
Borrowings outside India - - - -
Total (B} 1,91,229.90 - - 1,91,229,90
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9.1 Security Details

Qur Term Loans, Cash Credits, and Workéng Capital demand Loans are secured by Paripassu first charge by way of ‘
hypothecation of all chargeable current assets, book debts, loans and advances and receivables including gotd loan reclm-ables
and Cash and Bank balunces & specified fixed asseys of the Cortpany equivalent to security cover stipulated by respective banks.

The loans are also guaranteed by the personal guarantee of Mr. Mathew Muthoottu - Managing Director of the Company & Mrs.
Nigzy Mathew - Whala time Direclor of the Company as per the Lerms agreed with the respective lender bank.

In addition Lo the specified properties of the company which are hypothecated, personal property of the Managing Director of
the Company Mr. Mathew Muthoattu, specified properties and Corporate Guarantee of M/s Muthaottu Mini Hotels Pyt Lad, Mini
Muthoottu Credit India Pvt Ltd and Muthoottu Mini Theatres Private Linited which are the entitles promoted by the promaoters
of the Company namely Mr. Mathew Muthoottu & Mrs Nizzy Mathew. have aiso been provided to State Bank of India, C58 Bank
Ltd, Karur Vysya Bank, Union Bank of India, Kerals Pinancial Corpuration, Fhandaxmi Bank and HDFC Bank as collateral
seclrity, on the basis of agreement entered Into with the respective banks.

Inthe case of Term loans from Union Bank , Bajaj Finance & TATA Capital, exclusive charge is created by way of hypothecation
of Micro fisance receivadles.

9.2 Terms of repayment

Secured Tetm loans from Banks:
Asat 31-63-2025

Namg of Bank / FI (Rs in Lakhs) Terms ol Repayment

24 equal monthly instalments of ¥ 312.50 lakhs with
Bandhau banik 1.260.24 Jinorctorium 3 minths

24 equal monthly instahinents of €417 after 3 month
Bandhan bank 5444.28 {moratarium

24 pionths- 7 quarterly installments of Rs.857,14 [akhs
Bandhan bank 6.052.74 |with 3 moths morotorium
Bandhan hark 4,503.83 [24 months - 8 quarterl installiments of R8.562,50 Jakhs
Bajaj Finance tad 1.250.00 {24 equal monibly installments of 125 lakhs
Bajaj Finance |kd 3.062.50 |24 equal monthly installments of Rs145.83 iakhs
Hank of Baroda 1,250.00 |30 monthly instalments of 250 lakhs
Bank of Maharashtra 2,017.92 |5 Half vearly instaltent of Rs, 2000 lakhs each
Bank of Maharashira 4,628.03 [30 monthly instaintents of 3334 lakhs.

35 monthly instalments of 1181 lakhs and Jast
Canary Bank 1.623.00 jinstalinent of 165 Lakhs

35 menthly Instalments of 3111 lakhs and fast
Canara Bank 555.56 |instalment of 1150 Lakhs

35 monthly instalments 0FT139 fakhs and lasg
Canara Bank 2,037.83 |instaiment of T135 Lakhs

54 monthly installments of #5.55.56 lakhs Holiday
€SB Bank §67.04 |period 6 mionths

i Quarterly installments of Rs 714 lakhs and last
CSH Bank 4,998.51, [quarter instalment of 716 lakhs

17 monthly installinents of Ry 222,25 lakhs cach and
 Equitss Smab Finance Bank 2.888.75 |last installment of 27 1.75 fakhs

23 Monthly Instalments od Rs115.65 lakh and last
Federa! Bank : 1.722.39 linstaliment of Rs116,12 lakhs
HDFC 1,704.60 {18months - 6 Quarterdy repayments *
Indian Bank 2,944:97 |12 Quarterly installments of Rs.417 lakhs
IDFC First Bank 4.514.16 |36 equal moulhl installments of Rs347.22 fakhs
TDFC First Bank 8.680.56 |36 equal maonthly instaltments of Rs347 22 lakhs
13FC First Bank 14.166.67 134 equal menthly instatlinents of Rs416.67lakhs

53 monthly instaliments of 92.5 Jakhs and last one

month installment of 97,5 lakhs {merotorium of 6
Iddian Overseas Bank 3,335.00 [inonths'

53 monthly instatliments of 92.5 fakhs and last one

month installment of 97.5 lakhs {morotorium of &
Indian Overseas Bank 4,815.00 {months

30 monthly instalments of ¥162 lakhs and last
Karnataica RBank 621.12 |instalment of 2140 Lakhs
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Karur ¥ysya Bank

681.82

1 Guarterly instalments of $227.27 Lakhs

Karur Vysya Jank

1,008,77

57 monthly instalments of 343.05 Lakhs with 3 manths
maratorium

Karur ¥ysya Bank

3.272.73

11 quartedy installments of Rs361.64 lakhs after 3
months holiday period. Tenor of 36 months

59 monthiy installments of Rsfi4 lakhs & Jast

Kerala Financial Corporation 4.416.00 jinstallment of Rs 44 lakhs
Oxyzo Financial Services Lid 2.500.00 |18 equal neouthly repayments Rs 277.78 lakhs
Uxyzoe Financial Services Ltd 1,333.33 |18 equal monthly repayments RsR3.33 lakhs
Oxyzo Financial Services Ltd 1,500.00 |18 equal monthiy repaytnents Rs83.33 lakhs
Poonawalla Fincorp 6,933.14 |24 monthly instaliments *
Pounawalla Fincorp 5,000.00 }Z4 monthly installments *

35 menthly instalinents of ¥139 lakhs anf last
South Indian Bank 4,027.00 lirstallment of 135 lakhs
Standard Chartered Bank 9,510.00 {24 equal monthly installments of Rs,395.83 lakhs
Uniun Bank OF India 2,499,85 |36 equal monthily installments of Ry 69.44 lakby

36 manthly instalments of 69,44 Jakhs and last
Union Bank of India 104160 {instad of 169,60 Lakhs

36 monthly instalments of 69,44 lakhs and last
Union Bank of India 1,597.22 linstalment of ¥69.60 Lakhs

36 monthly instalments of 169.44 lakhs and Last
Unign Bank of India 1,875.00 |instalment of 169.60 Lakhs

57 equal monthly instalments of Rs.87.72 lakhs after 3
UCO Bank 2,456.14 | months morotorium)
UCO Bank 2,500.00 136 egnal monthly Instdlments of Re.£38.89 lLakhs
Ujjivan $mall Finance Bank 1,333.32 115 equal monthly instaliments of Hs166.67 lakhs
Utkarsh Smali Finance Bank 3,208.33 |24 monthly instaliments of Rs 145.83 lakhs
Waoord Bank 3,750.00 {24 equal monthly installments of Rs208.33 Ikahs
Tata Capital 1,714.29 |24 monthly installments of 395.24 lakhs
Bajaj Finanee Ltd 654,76 |24 nronthly equal installments of 365.48 lakhs
State Bank OF India 14.99 |84 monthly instaliments 20.96 Lakhs**
South [ndian Bank G861 |60 monthly installments $1.60 lakhs**
HDFC 53.97 |44 manthly installments ¥1.12 Lakhs*™
HDFC 56.62 |84 monthly installments £1.02 Lakhs*~
Total 1,48,272.38

* Instatment amwunts varies for euch month,
Hnstalmets for vehicle loans are including Iaterest

\shv
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Note 10: Subordinated Liabilities (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at March 31st, 2025 [Audited)
artic Atwmortised cost|  Atfair value | Designated st fair| Totaf
Particulacs througi: profitor | value through
loss profit or loss
Suberdinated Liabilities in India 34,3549 34,354.91
Unclaimert Suboedinated Liabilides in Tedia 147.01 147.01
Subordinaied Liabitities outside India - -
Total 34,501.92 - - 34,501.92
As at March 31, 2024 {Audited)
Particulars Atamortsed cost{ Atfair value | Designated at fair Total
through profitar| value through
loss profit or lass
Subordinated Liabfilties in Indta 3050233 30,502,33
Unclaimed Subordinated Liabilities in India 16198 161.498
Subardinated Liabilities outside India - -
Total 30,664.31 - - 30.664.31

Note 10.1 Details of Subordinated Liabilities

Subordsnated Debt is subordinated to the claims of other creditors and qualifies as Tier 1| capital subject to disconnting as may
be applicable as per Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Ft ial Comp Scale Based Regulation)

Brirections, 2023 . The netstanding amouat of privately placed subordinated debt stood at 34,354.91 lakhs (Previous yuar:
130,502.33 lakhs).

Interest Pay- out - Maturity
L

Amount As at

Period 31.03.2025 Interest Rate
2025-26 2225 0.50%
2026-27 192.39 2.265%
2027-28 2.024.66 14.20%
2028-29 3.161.65 | 13.64%- 14.46%
2029-30 6,573.99 | 13.64%-14.46%
2030-31 21964 13.6496
Total 12,194.58
Interest Pay- out - Monthly

Perlod Athount As at Interest Rate
2025-26 1,574.61 1050%
2026-27 429.10 9.5%-10.25%,
2027-28 10,427.43 10%-10.5%
2028-29 6.501.20 10.50%
2029-30 2,929.44 10.5%-14.46%
2030-31 298.5 10.50%
Total 22,160,332




Notes to financial statements

Note 11: Other Financial liabilities {(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31st, As at March 31, 2024
2025 (Audited) (Audited)
Expenses payable 1,365.41 766.48
Rent Payable 248.39 246.52
Rent Deposit 49,65 49.35
Kotak Insurance Payable - 143.13
Auction Surplus Payable 443.39 39291
Other Payable 92.52 95.78
Total 2,199.36 1,694.17
Note 12: Provisions (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31st, As at March 31, 2024
2025 (Audited) {Audited)
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 736.70 549.07
- Others 46.50 32.55
Total 783.20 581.62
Note 13: Other Non-financial liabilities {Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31st, As at March 31, 2024
2025 (Audited) (Audited)
Statutory dues payable 708.96 526.22
Others 73.13 50.60
Total 782.09 576.82




Notes to financial statements

Note 14: Equity share capital

14.1 The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the period

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31st, 2025| As at March 31, 2024
{Audited) (Audited)

Authorised
325,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 32,500.00 32,500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
250,32,539 Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each fully 25,032.54 25,032.54
paid up
Total Equity 25,032.54 25,032.54

14.2 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 100/- per share. Each holder of equity

shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

the holders of equity shares will be
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

14.3 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares and of Equity share capital amount outstanding at the beginning

and at the end of the year

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars In Numbers Amount
As at March 31, 2024 2,50,32,539 25,032.54
Shares issued during the period
As at March 31, 2025 2,50,32,539 25,032.54

14.4 Details of Equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Particulars

As at March 31st, 2025 {Audited)

No. of shares held

% holding in the class

Mr. Mathew Muthoottu

Mrs Nizzy Mathew

Mini Muthoottu Hotels {P) Ld

Mini Muthoottu Credit India (P) Ltd

1,48,59,912
33,54,446
25,51,298
14,19,841

59.36%
13.40%
10.19%

5.67%

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 {Audited)

No. of shares held

% holding in the class

Mr. Mathew Muthoottu

Mrs Nizzy Mathew

Mini Muthoottu Hotels (P} Ltd

Mini Muthoottu Credit India (P) Ltd

1,48,59,912
33,54,446
25,551,298
14,19,841

59.36%
13.40%
10.19%

5.67%

14.5 Disclosure as to aggregate number and class of sh
being received in cash, fully paid up by way of bonus s

ares allotted as pursuant to cont
hares and shares bought back.

ract(s) without payment

Particulars

Fully paid up pursuant

to contract(s} without
Payment being
received in cash

Fully paid up by way
of bonus shares

Shares bought
back

Equity Shares :
2019-2020
2018-2019
2017-2018
2016-2017
2015-2016




Notes to financial statements

Shareholding of Promoters

Promoter name

Shares held by promoters at the end of the
year

% change during

the year
No. of shares %of total shares
Mr. Mathew Muthoottu 1,48,59,912.00 59.36% 0.00%
Mrs Nizzy Mathew 33,54,446.00 13.40% 0.00%
Note 15: Other equity (Rupees in Lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31st, 2025) As at March 31, 2024
(Audited) (Audited)

Statutory Reserves
Special Reserve Fund(u/s 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934)
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,203.41 7.650.35
Add: Transfer from Retained earnings 1,890.59 1,553.06
Balance at the end of the year 11,094.00 9,203.41
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Add: Transfer from/(to) Retained earnings
Balance at the end of the year -
Impairment reserve - -
Balance at the beginning of the year 16795 167.95
Add: Transfer from/{to) Retained earnings 34.04 -
Balance at the end of the year 201.99 167.95
Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,064.15 7,844.15
Add: Securities premium on share options exercised 220.00
during the year
Balance at the end of the year 8,064.15 8,064.15
Revaluation Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 350.00 350.00
Add: Amount transferred - -
Balance at the end of the year 350.00 350.00
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 27,766.36 21,554.12
Add: Profit for the period 9,452.97 7,765.31
Add/Less: Appropriation :-

Transfer to Special Reserve Fund (1,890.59) (1,553.06)

Transfer from/(to) Debenture Redemption Resg - -

Transfer to Impairment Reserve (34.04) -
Total appropriations {1,924.63) (1,553.06)
Balance at the end of the year 35,294.70 27,766.36
Total 55,004.84 45,551.88
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15.1 Nature and purpose of reserve

Statutory reserve

Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created u/s 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. In current year 1

1890.59 lakhs is appropriated from Statement of Profit and Loss to the Special Reserve Fund.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Company, being an NBFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India under Seclion 45 1A of the R} Act, 1934, is not
required to create a Debenture Redemption Reserve, in respect of public issue of debentures and debentures issued byitona
private placement basis, Pursuant to Rule 18{7}(bj(iii} of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as
amended vide the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules dated August 16,2019,

Secarities Premium
This Reserve represents the premium on issue of equity shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Revaluation Rescrve
Revaluation reserve represents a portion of the value of land that has been revalued based on the valuation made by
approved external vajuer during financial year 2012-13.

Retained Earnings

This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company, This Reserve can be utilized in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Impairment Rescrve

In accordance with RB! circular ne. RBI/2019-20/170 dated March 13, 2020, the company is required to provide for
impairment allowances, if the impairment allowance computed as per the extant pradential norms on lncome Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisiening (IRACP) is higher than the impairment allowance under Ind AS 109

[n FY 2024-2025, Rs, 34,04 lakhs has been appropriated from net profit after tux to ‘Impairment Reserve’( Previous year
2023-2024-Nil).The balance in the ‘Tmpairiment Reserve” shall not be reckened for regulatory capital.

Ne withdrawals are permitted from this reserve without prior permission from the Department of Supervision, RBi. The
requirement for 'lmpairment Reserve' shall be reviewed, going forward as per further instructions from RBI
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Note 16: Interest income

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

Period ended March
31, 2025 (Audited)

Period ended March
31, 2024 (Audited)

On Financial asset
measured at
amortised cost

On Financial asset
measured at
amortised cost

i)JInterest on Loans

On Gold loan 67,053.10 56,80%.01

On Micro Finance 7,305.22 5,837.24

On loan against property 55.27 80.67
ii)Interest on deposits wi nk 3.285.12 2,590.46
Total 77,698.71 65,317.38
Note 17: Other income on loans (Rupees in Lakhs)
Period ended March | Period ended March

Particulars

31, 2025 (Audited)

31, 2024 (Audited)

On Financial asset
measured at
amortised cost

On Financial asset
measured at
amortised cost

Processing fees on loans 1,164.96 1,030.89
Total 1,164.96 1,030.89
Note 18: Net gain on fair value changes (Rupees in Lakhs)

Period ended March { Period ended March

Particulars

31, 2025 (Audited)

31, 2024 (Audited)

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit
or loss

(i) On trading portfolio

- Investments 1,598.49 9.13

- Derivatives - -

- Others - -
(B) Loss on fair valuation of equity shares - -
Total Net gain on fair value changes {C) 1,598.49 9.13
Fair Value changes:

- Realised

- Unrealised 1,598.49 9.13
Total Net gain on fair value changes 1,598.49 9.13
Note 19: Sale of services {Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

Period ended March
31, 2025 (Audited)

Period ended March
31, 2024 (Audited)

Other Operating Income

5.68

23.03

Total

5.68
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Note 20: Other Income (Rupees in Lakhs)
. Period ended March | Period ended March
Particulars 31, 2025 (Audited) 31, 2024 (Audited)
Other non-operating income 468.86 363.06
Total 468.86 363.06
Note 21: Finance Costs (Rupees in Lakhs)
Period ended March | Period ended March
31, 2025 [Audited) 31, 2024 (Audited)
Particulars On financial On financial
liabilities measured | liabilities measured
at amortised cost at amortised cost
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) 19,952.59 16,892.66
Term Loan Amortisation 751.66 751.51
Interest on debt securities
-Public issue 10,053.62 12,849.95
-Pvt Placement 2.477.75 412.81
-NCD amortization-Public 232.08 326.52
-NCD amortization-Private 306.24 42.24
-Commercial paper discount amortisation 1,058.27 -
Interest on subordinated liabilities 3,504.52 2,963.27
Commercial Paper expenses 239.13 -
[Bank Charges 1,178.69 291.98
Total 39,754.55 34,530.94
Note 22: Impairment on financial instruments {Rupees in Lakhs)
Period ended March | Period ended March
31, 2025 (Aundited) 31,2024 (Audited)
Particulars _On financial -On financial
instruments instruments
measured at measured at
amortised cost amortised cost
Loans 1,013.37 590.57
Bad Debts Written Off 407.05 85.54
Other Assets 13.95 18.60
Total 1,434.37 694,71
Note 23: Employee Benefits Expenses (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Period ended March | Period ended March
31, 2025 (Audited) 31, 2024 (Audited)
Salaries and Wages 13,508.31 10,265.67
Incentives to Staff 902.38 82595
Gratuity 345.03 142.71
Bonus 402.31 350.30
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 982.13 817.99
Staff Welfare Expenses 118.86 55.96
Total 16,259,02 12,458.58
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Note 24: Depreciation, amortization and impairment (Rupees in Lakhs)
. Period ended March | Period ended March
Particulars 31,2025 (Audited) | 31,2024 (Audited)
Depreciation of tangible assets 1,122.11 1,003.81
Amortization of intangible assets 38.47 34.59
1,160.58 1,038.40
Note 25: Other Expenses (Rupees in Lakhs)
. Period ended March | Period ended March
Particulars 31,2025 (Audited) | 31,2024 (Audited)
Rent, taxes and energy costs 3,953.60 3,188.58
Repairs and maintenance 784.73 415.46
Communication Costs 486.75 282.84
Printing and stationery 349.84 335.64
Advertisement and publicity 860.60 695.39
Director’s fees, allowances and expenses 37.75 3985
Auditor’s fees and expenses 38.96 26.45
Legal and Professional charges 487.67 230.74
Insurance 506.79 364.98
General Office Expenses 487.45 335.75
Brekerage expenses 0.07 0.07
Travelling Expenses to Staff 986.53 822.66
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses 15.12 22.22
Security Charges 539.54 359.75
Subscription Charges 2342 21.79
Corporate social responsibility 167.65 129.49
Public Issue NCD Expenses 167.76 112.44
Private Issue NCD Expenses 25.84 1.34
Loss on sale of Fixed assets - -
Other expenditure 14.12 20.08
Total 9,934.19 7,405.52
Note 25.1 Auditor's fees and expenses (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Period ended March | Period ended March
31, 2025 {Audited) 31, 2024 (Audited)
For Statutory Audit 21.75 15.75
For Taxation Matters 6.50 6.50
For Other Services 8.98 3.98
For Reimbursement of Expenses 1.73 0.22
Total 38.96 26.45
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Note 26: Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS} is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of Company by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calcuiated by dividing the net prefit atiributable to equity holders of the company (after adjusting for interest on
the convertible preference shares and interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of tax, if any) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued

on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Period ended March | Year ended March

31, 2025 (Audited) | 31, 2024 (Audited)

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders in lakhs 9,417.65 7,783.14

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earnings per share 2,50,32,539 2,49,52,976

Effect of dilution:

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earnings per share 2,50,32,539 2,49,52,976
Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share () 37.62 31.19

Diluted earnings per share (%) 37.62 31.19
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1. Corporate Information

Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited is a public limited company incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was originally established as a
private limited company on March 18, 1998, and was subsequently converted into a
public limited company following a special resolution passed by its shareholders on
September 14, 2013. A fresh Certificate of Incorporation reflecting the change was
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Kochi on November 27, 2013.

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) and operates under the Middle Layer (NBFC-ML) category as per the
Scale-Based Regulatory (SBR) Framework introduced by the RBI. The framework was
notified via RBI Circular No. RBI/2021-22/112 DOR.CRE.REC. N0.60/03.10.001,/2021-
22 dated October 22, 2021, and became effective from October 1, 2022, based on the
Company’s asset size exceeding 31,000 crores.

As of March 31, 2025, the Company operates through a network of 948 branches
across India.

The Company is also registered with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI). The relevant
registration details are as follows:

» RBI Registration Number: N-16.00175
» Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U65910KL1998PLC012154
+ IRDA Registration Code: CA0122

The Company is primarily engaged in the Gold Loan business and has diversified into
various other financial and allied services including Microfinance, Insurance Agency,
Money Transfer Services, and Travel & Tourism. The Company’s debt securities are
listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). It has raised funds through listed public
debentures in compliance with SEBI regulations, and through private placement of
debentures and subordinated debt in accordance with RBI guidelines and also through
the issuance of Commercial Paper in compliance with the guidelines issued by the Fixed
Income Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).

The Registered and Corporate Office of the Company is located at:
65/623K, Muthoottu Royal Towers, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala - 682017.
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2. Statement of Compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
other relevant provisions of the Act

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, were approved by the
Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 21, 2025.

3. Basis of Preparation, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following
framework and principles:

A. Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time), and other relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant
Indian Accounting Standards.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless
otherwise stated. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent
liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions are significant to the Company.

B. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule III (Division III)
of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross
basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recoghized amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to
settle on a net basis.

C. New Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which introduce amendments to certain existin
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standards, effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025.
Key changes include:

» Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts: This new standard replaces Ind AS 104 and
establishes principles for recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosure of insurance contracts. While primarily applicable to insurance
comparnies, entities involved in insurance-related activities — such as insurance
agency services — should evaluate the relevance and impact of the new standard
on their operations and reporting.

+ Amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases: These amendments clarify the
accounting treatment of lease liabilities arising from sale and leaseback
transactions, requiring that any gain or loss related to the retained right-of-use is
not recognized immediately. This change enhances consistency in lease
accounting and could be relevant where such transactions exist.

The Company is in the process of evaluating the potential impact of these amendments
on its financial statements and will implement them as applicable in the subsequent
reporting periods.

D. Functional and Presentation Currency

These standalone or separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

4. Material Accounting Policies
A. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company, and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable.

(a) Interest Income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized on an accrual basis using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method on the gross carrying amount of financial assets
measured at amortized cost, other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets
classified as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees, transaction costs, and other premiums or discounts paid or received) through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the carrying amount at initial recognition.
While estimating future cash receipts, factors such as expected behavior, life cycle of the
financial asset, probable fluctuations in collateral value, etc,, are considered, which can
impact the EIR. B




In cases where management believes that the recovery of interest is uncertain due to
changes in the price of the underlying collateral or other factors, the Company
recognizes income on such loans only to the extent it is confident of recovering interest
through the sale of the underlying security or otherwise.

Such interests, where instalments are overdue in respect of non-performing assets are
recognized on realization basis. Any such income recognized and remaining unrealized
after the instalments become overdue with respect to non-performing assets is
reversed.

(b) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established, which
is typically when the dividends are declared by the investee, and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company. The amount
of the dividend income is recognized when it can be measured reliably.

(c) Income from Sale of Services

Revenue from the sale of services is recognized when control of the promised services is
transferred to the customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be
received under the contract. Where the performance obligation is satisfied over time,
and where there is no uncertainty regarding the measurement or collectability of
consideration, revenue is recognized using the percentage of completion method.

The Company applies the five-step model framework under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to recognize revenue from service contracts, as follows:

1. Identify the contract with the customer - A contract is considered within the
scope of Ind AS 115 when it is approved by both parties, the payment terms are
identified, and it is probable that the consideration will be collected.

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract - Each distinct service
promised in the contract is identified.

3. Determine the transaction price - The total consideration expected from the
customer is determined.

4. Allocate the transaction price - The transaction price is allocated to each
performance obligation in the contract based on the stand-alone selling price of
the services.

5. Recognize revenue - Revenue is recognized as the performance obligations are
satisfied.

(d) Rental Income

Rental income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under “Revenue from
Operations.”

(e) Fees and Commission Income




Fees and Commission income are recognised ata point in time, when the performance
obligation is satisfied, typically when the underlying transaction (such as Third party
Product Services) is completed and the right to consideration is established.

(f) Net Gain/Loss on Fair Value Changes

Changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities classified as Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Unrealized gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized as part of
Net Gain/Loss on Fair Value Changes under Revenue from Operations.

[f there is a net gain, it is recognized as Net Gains on Fair Value Changes under revenue,
and if there is a net loss, it is disclosed as part of Expenses. Realized gains or losses on
the sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL, as well as debt or equity
instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FvOoCI),
are recognized as Net Gain/Loss on Fair Value Changes. As of the reporting date, the
Company does not hold any debt instruments classified as FVOCI.

B. Financial Instruments

(a) Classification of Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument for another entity. Financial assets and
liabilities are recognized in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The classification of financial instruments is based on their contractual cash flow
characteristics and the business model within which they are managed. The
classification determines the measurement and recognition of financial instruments in
the financial statements.

(b) Business Model Assessment

The classification and measurement of financial assets are determined by the results of
the Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test and the business model
assessment. The Company determines its business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective, such
as collecting contractual cash flows or selling financial assets.

The business model assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence,
including:

+ How the performance of the assets is evaluated and measured;
» The risks affecting the performance of the assets;

. » How these risks are managed; @/
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Initial Recognition & Measurement

» How managers are compensated.

The Company also monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) that are derecognized before maturity.
This helps to understand why assets are disposed of and whether the reasons align with
the original business model for holding those assets. The Company’s continuous
assessment ensures that the business model remains appropriate and evaluates
whether any change in the business model requires a prospective change in
classification.

Financial Assets

Injtial Recognition & Measurement

A financial asset is initially recognized at fair value in the balance sheet. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of a financial asset are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the asset, depending on its classification:

+ For financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs are expensed immediately in profit or loss.

» Forassets measured at amortized cost or FVOC], transaction costs are added or
deducted from the asset's fair value at initial recognition.

Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, financial assets may be classified into the following categories:

+ Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual
terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

» Financial Assets Measured at FVOCI:
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to both collect contractual cash flows and sell financial assets, and
the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest.

» Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL:
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI
classification are measured at FVTPL. This includes assets held for trading or
those designated at fair value on initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities




All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
non-convertible debentures, loans and borrowings, and bank overdrafts.

Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Derecognition of Financial Asset[Liabiligg

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual cash flows from the asset expire,
or when the Company transfers its rights to receive the contractual cash flows ina
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the
Company is recognized as a Separate asset or liability.

A financial liability js derecognized when the obligation is discharged, cancelled, or
expires. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender with

(c) Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ mode] (ECL), for
evaluating impairment of financial assets other thap those measured at Fair value

- Atan amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initia] recognition.

- Atan amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, if the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initia] recognition.

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial asset.




occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument is used instead of the change
in the amount of expected credit losses

Based on the above process, the Company categorizes its loans into three stages as
described below: For non-impaired financial assets

¢ Stage 1is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not
experienced a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial
recognition. A 12-month ECL provision is made for stage 1 financial
assets. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial asset as at the date of initial recognition.

* Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial assets. In
subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, then entities shall revert to
recognizing 12 months ECL provision.

¢ For impaired financial assets: Financial assets are classified as stage 3
when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a
negative impact on the estimated future cash flows of a loan or a
portfolio of loans. The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for impaired
financial assets.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as
follows:

o Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of
the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. The Company uses
historical information where available to determine PD. For this
purpose the probability over a period of one year of the outstanding
loan portfolio for the past few years is taken for Gold loan portfolio
taking slippage to NPA, loans written off and auction closure as
defaulting events. For microfinance and loan against property slippage
to NPA and written off are taken as defaulting events.

o Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of
the exposure at a future default date, considering expected changes in
the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise,
expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest
from missed payments. The company uses historical information

where available to estimate its EAD. By observing the historical data
/-—-—-,
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and due to the bullet payment scheme of gold loans, EAD for gold loan
portfolio is taken as 100% and for micro finance based on the amount
of loan outstanding at the time of default to the actual disbursed
amount of loan over the last few years. For Loan Against Property,
based on the Management’s assessment on the recoverability, 100%
provision is created for the outstanding defaulted balance at Stage 3.

o Loss Given Default (LGD) ~ The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the
loss arisingin the case where a default occurs ata given time. Itis based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those
that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization
of any collateral. For Gold Loans reported in Fraud Monitoring Returns,
100% provision is created for Stage 3. For Loan Against Property,
100% provision is created based on Management’s assessment on
recoverability.

As required by RBI Circular reference no. RBi/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.
109/22.10.106/ FY 2019-20 dated March 13, 2020; where impairment allowance under
Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required as per extant prudential norms on
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) including
borrower /beneficiary wise classification, provisioning for standard as well as
restructured assets, NPA ageing, etc,, the Company shall appropriate the difference from
their net profit or loss after tax to a separate ‘Impairment Reserve’.

Upgradation of accounts classified as Stage 3/Non-performing assets (NPA) - The
Company upgrades loan accounts classified as Stage 3/ NPA to ‘standard’ asset category
only if the entire arrears of interest, principal and other amount are paid by the borrower
and there is no change in the accounting policy followed by the Company in this regard.
With regard to upgradation of accounts classified as NPA due to restructuring, the
instructions as specified for such cases as per the said RBI guidelines shall continue to be
applicable.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic
developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis,
the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP,
unemploymentrates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with
the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the
internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such
relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect
such macro-economic trends reasonably.




To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company uses collateral, where
possible. Collateral comes in various forms, and mainly represents Gold jewellery in
respect of Gold loans financed by the company. However, the fair value of collateral
affects the calculation of ECL. The collateral is majorly the property for which the loan is
given. The fair value of the same is based on data provided by third party or management
judgements.

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generaily the case when the Company determines that the borrower
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans
are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Where the expected credit loss assessed by the company based on the above metrics are
lower that the provision required under the RBI norms, an overlay is added to the
provision methodology to ensure that the expected credit loss ascertained by the
company is always notlower than the minimum regulatory provision required under RBI
norms

Determination of Fair Value of Financial instruments

The company measurers certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the perception that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either - '

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

b. In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the

asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The
fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. The fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market participants ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs




The financial instruments are classified based on hierarchy of valuation techniques, as
summarised below -

Level I - This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference
to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. price) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using
inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a
valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by
prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument nor are they based on available market data.

C. Retirement and Other Employee Benefits
1. Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months of the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related services. These include salaries, wages, performance incentives, ex-gratia,
and paid absences such as earned leave. The cost of such benefits is recognized as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders
the service,

2. Long-term Employee Benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plans

The Company contributes to statutory post-employment benefit schemes including the
Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ State Insurance schemes, which are defined
contribution plans governed by applicable indian laws. The Company’s contribution to
these plans is recognized as an expense in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. The Company has no further obligation beyond its monthly
contributions.

b. Defined Benefit Plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in line with the provisions of The
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The gratuity liability is payabie to employees on




separation from service, upon death, or retirement, after completing a specified number
of years of service.

The liability for gratuity is determined annually on the basis of actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out by an independent actuary. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by discounting estimated future cash
outflows using yields on government bonds that have terms approximating the terms of
the related obligation at the reporting date.

C. Measurement and Recognition

+ The netinterest cost is determined by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

* Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan
assets (excluding net interest), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI) and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

* Actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include discount rates, future salary
increases, attrition rates, and mortality rates. These assumptions are reviewed
annually and are sensitive to future changes.

* The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the
present value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of plan
assets.

D. Finance cost

Finance costs represents Interest expense recognized by applying the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial other than financial liabilities
classified as FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed at the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the
gross carrying amount of the amortized cost of a financial liability, by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows.

Finance cost Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognized in
interest expense with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability. Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as
part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortised over the expected life
using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to
advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs, rating fee etc,, provided these
are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

E. Leases



The Company evaluates each contractual arrangement to assess whether it contains a
lease as per the definition in Ind AS 116 - Leases. A contract is, or contains, a lease if it
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Company as a Lessee

The Company recognizes a lease liability and a corresponding right-of-use (ROU) asset
for all lease arrangements, except for Short-term leases, i.e., leases with a term of 12
months or less, and leases of low-value assets (such as small office equipment),for
which the Company has opted to apply the recognition exemption permitted under Ind
AS 116. Lease payments for such arrangements are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term, if more
representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit. The related payments are presented
under cash flows from operating activities.

For all other leases:

» Lease Liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease
payments, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. The
lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost, reduced by lease
payments made, and remeasured to reflect changes in lease terms, modifications,
or revised fixed payments as per Ind AS 116.

* Right-of-Use Asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability plus
any initial direct costs. Subsequently, the ROU asset is carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s usefui life or the lease term,

unless ownership of the underlying asset transfers to the Company by the end of
the lease term.

The Company as a Lessor

Where the Company is a lessor, leases are classified as:

« Finance Leases, if substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the leased asset are transferred to the lessee. In such cases, the leased asset is
derecognized, and a receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease.

» Operating Leases, if the risks and rewards remain with the Company. Income
from operating leases is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis, if it better




represents the pattern in which benefit from the use of the leased asset is
diminished.

F. Other income and expenses

All other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

G. Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a
period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of
Profitand Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable
tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date in India where the
Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, i.e, either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses,
and unused tax credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise
those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities that intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or realise their tax assets and liabilities simultaneously. Deferred tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, i.e., either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. _
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Goods and services tax /value-added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on

incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the goods and services tax/value-added taxes
paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized as part
of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable.

ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included,
the net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority
is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

H. Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss.

I. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank, cash in hand, cheque to be realized
and bank deposits having a maturity of less than three months from the date of deposit.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short- term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as
they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

J. Property Plant and Equipment

The Company has elected to choose the cost model as its accounting policy and continue
with the carrying value of assets as deemed cost of all its property, plant and equnpment
on transition date to IndAS. Pan




The property plant and equipment are the assets held for the use in the supply of
services. Property, plant and equipment’s are stated in the balance sheet at cost (net of
duty/tax credit availed) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, where applicable.

The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other
incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
management. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the
amortization period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounting estimates. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are
added to its gross value only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond
its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably.
Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

K. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided using written down value method as per the Useful life provided
in the Schedule Il of The Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars Useful life as per Useful life estimated by
Companies Act (in years) the Company (in years)
Computers and accessories 3 3
Plant and machinery 15 15
Building 60 60
Car 8 8
Furniture and fittings 10 10
Electrical fittings 10 10
Electronic equipment 15 15
Weighing machine 15 15
Software and licenses 3 3




Video surveillance 15 15
equipment

Air conditioner 10 10

L. Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it
is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will
flow to the Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use
and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairmentlosses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes
in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss. Amortisation
on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the
Statement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/sale. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible
assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets
comprising of software are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years,
unless it has a shorter useful life.

The Company’s intangible assets consist of computer software with definite life.
Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

M. Related Party

All related party transactions which were entered into during the year were on an
arm'’s length basis and generally in the ordinary course of business under the Act.
The Company has a policy on related party transactions which has been approved by
the Board in their meeting held on 27 February, 2025. All the transactions which are--..
identified as related party transactions are approved by the Audit Committee A Board




of Directors/ members at the General Meeting as may be deemed necessary and as
stipulated in the policy.

Details of transactions entered into with the related party is disclosed in Note (4) of
Accompanying notes to the financial statements.

N. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value
of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting the
Expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net
of any reimbursement. As at reporting date, the Company does not have any such
provisions where the effect of time value of money is material.”

0.  Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company. It may also arise in cases where a present
obligation is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. Additionally, a contingent liability may arise in rare
cases where a liability cannot be recognized due to its inability to be measured reliably.
The Company does not recognize contingent liabilities but discloses them in the financial
statements when applicable.

P. Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. The Company does not have any
contingent assets to disclose in the financial statements.

Q. Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and applicable ta§es) by the.
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weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the p_urpose
of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. In
computing diluted EPS, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and either reduce
earnings per share or increase loss per share are considered.

R. Cash Flow

The Company prepares its Cash Flow Statement using the indirect method, whereby the
net profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, tax, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of
income or expense related to investing or financing cash flows.

S. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company accounts for expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as a charge to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

T. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amount of non-financial assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment testing is carried
out based on both internal and external factors. If any such indication exists, an
impairment loss is recognized where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds jts
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset s the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its
value in use. When assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transactions are considered, if
available. If no such transactions are identified, an appropriate valuation model is
applied. -




If an impairment loss is recognized, the revised carrying amount of the asset is
depreciated over its remaining useful life. The impairment loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is recognized as a revaluation decrease.

5. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Provisions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, and related disclosures, including
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods
affected. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes requiring material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods.

The following outlines the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Business Model Assessment

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on the results of the
Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test and the business model test, The
Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
involves judgment, considering all relevant evidence, including how the performance of
the assets is evaluated, the risks that affect their performance, and how these risks are
managed. Additionally, how asset managers are compensated is also a key
consideration. The Company continuously monitors financial assets measured at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, including those
derecognized prior to maturity, to understand the reasons for disposal and assess
whether these reasons align with the business model for which the asset was held. This
ongoing monitoring helps the Company assess whether its business model for managing
financial assets remains appropriate or whether a change in the business model, and
consequently a change in asset classification, is required.



(b) Defined Employee Benefit Assets and Liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. These valuations involve making
several assumptions, including the discount rate, future salary increases, and mortality
rates. Given the complexities of the valuation and the long-term nature of defined
benefit obligations, the resulting estimates are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All such assumptions are reviewed annually to ensure they remain
appropriate, and any changes may have a significant impact on the financial statements.

(c) Fair Value Measurement

In instances where the fair values of financial assets and liabilities recorded on the
balance sheet cannot be derived from quoted prices in active markets, the Company
employs various valuation techniques to determine fair value. Where possible, these
techniques incorporate observable market data; however, in situations where such data
is unavailable, a degree of judgment is required. Inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk,
and volatility are taken into account in determining fair value. Changes in the
assumptions regarding these factors could have a significant impact on the reported fair
value of financial instruments.

{d) Impairment of Loans Portfolio

The assessment of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgment, particularly with regard to the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows, as well as the value of collateral when determining impairment. Moreover,
the evaluation of a significant increase in credit risk is subject to considerable judgment,
influenced by multiple factors that can result in varying levels of impairment. The
Company continually reviews and updates its impairment models to reflect actual loss
experience and adjusts these models as necessary to ensure that the provisions for
impairment are in line with current conditions.

(e) Contingent Liabilities and Provisions (Other than Impairment of Loan
Portfolio)

Provisions and liabilities are recognized when it becomes probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle an obligation and the amount of such an outflow can
be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and the quantification of the liability
require the application of judgment based on the facts and circumstances existing at the
time. These provisions are subject to regular review and may be adjusted to reflect any
changes in the underlying facts or circumstances.




(f) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method

The Company employs the EIR method to recognize interest income and expense in
such a way that it reflects the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected life of loans or other financial instruments. This methodology involves
significant judgment regarding the expected behavior of financial instruments over
time, including assumptions about prepayments, penalty interest, changes in base rates,
and other fees integral to the instruments. The complexities of these assumptions
require careful evaluation, as changes can impact the overall measurement of financial
income and expense,

(g) Determination of Lease Term

As per Ind AS 116 “Leases,” the Company is required to determine the lease term, which
includes the non-cancellable period of the lease, along with any options to extend or
terminate the lease if the use of such options is deemed reasonably certain. The
determination of the lease term is made on a lease-by-lease basis, requiring the
Company to assess the likelihood of exercising any options to extend or terminate the
lease. In making this assessment, the Company considers factors such as the significance
of leasehold improvements, costs associated with lease termination, and the importance
of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations, including considerations of
location and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term is reassessed
periodically to reflect changes in the economic environment and operating
circumstances.




ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Income Tax

a. Major components of tax expense/(income)

(X in lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Profit or Loss section:
(1) Current income tax:
Current income tax expense 3,048.70 3,258.12
Tax expense of prior periods -
(i) Deferred tax:
Tax expense on origination and reversal of 505.47 14.50
temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in Profit or Loss [(i) + (ii))] 3,554.17 3,272.62
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) section:
(1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 11.88 (9.58)
(11) Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods: -
Income tax expense reported in Other Comprehensive 11.88 (9.58)
Income[(i)+(ii)]
Retained earnings:
Current income tax 3,048.70 3,258.12
Deferred tax 517.35 4.92
Income tax expense reported in retained earnings 3,566.05 3,263.04

b. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic

tax rate
(X in lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Accounting profit before tax as per Ind AS 12,971.82 [11,055.76
At India’s Statutory Income Tax rate of 25.168% (FY 23-24 3,264.75 | 3,863.32
@34.944%)
Add/(Less): Ind AS adjustments on PBT - -
Add/(Less): Allowances / disallowances (Net) for which
defelgred tg.x not taken (e 289.42 341
Add: Excess/(Lower) Tax paid as per MAT and interest thereof - " (594.11)
Deferred tax - -
Total tax expenses in Profit/Loss Statement . 3,554.17 3,272.62 -«

The effective Income Tax rate for FY 2024-25 is 25.168 % & PY 2023-24 is 34.944%,..




and statement of profit and loss

Components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognized in Balance Sheet

(X in lakhs)

SL. Particulars As at As at Year ended
no 31-03- | 31-03- 31-03-2025
2025 2024
_Balance sheet |Statement | QCI
of Profit
and Loss
(a) |Re measurement gain / (loss) on
defined benefit plan 185.41 | 191.85 538 |(11.88)
(b) |Impact of carry forward losses i ) i i
(c) Difference.be.tween book depreciation and, 45757| 607.06| (149.49) _
tax depreciation
(d) (Financial assets measured at Fair value (405.96) | (5.08)| (400.89) i
(¢) |Netimpact of gain on de recognition
of financial instruments under (539.28) [ (578.80) 39 52 .
amortised cost category
() |Other temporary differences - - -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (302.26) | 215.03 | (505.47) | (11.88)
d. Reconciliation of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
(X in lakhs)
SL Particulars 2024-25  2023-24
Neo
(a) { Opening balance as at April 1 215.09 | 220.02
(b) | Deferred Tax income/(expense) during the period
recognized in:
(1) Statement of Profit and Loss in Profit or Loss section (505.47) (14.51)
(ii) Statement of Profit and Loss under OCI section (11.88) 9.58
Closing balance as at March 31 (302.26) | 215.09

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized - Rs Nil

2. Retirement Benefit Plan

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in
the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the
balance sheet for the gratuity plan.
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(X in lakhs)

Movement in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCT)

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Actuarial Loss/ (Gain)on

Obligation side during the period (47.20) 27.41
Reconciliation of Net asset/liability

Particulars As at As at

31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Opening Net liability 349.07 495.39

Expense recognized in P/L 345.03 142.71

Actuarial loss/(Gain) recognized in OCI (47.20) 27 41

Contribution paid by employer (110.20) (116.44)

Closing Net Liability 736.70 549.07
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss

As at As at

Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Current Service Cost 310.53 110.88
Past Service Cost - -
Settlement Cost/(Credit) - -
Net Interest on Obligation/Asset 34.50 31.83
Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 345.03 142,71

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s

plans are shown below

Barticulars

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Discount Rate 6.900% 6.985%
Compensation Escalation Rate 3.50% 3.50%

Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Livesindian

mortality (2012-14)

Assured Lives

mortality (2012-14)

%//—~



Sensitivity Analysis

31-03-2025 31-03-2025 31-03-2024 31-03-2024

. Increase in Increase in

Assumptions, p  count Rate | Compensation Compensation
level Discount Rate level

Sensitivity [1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
level increase |decrease|increase | decrease Increase  |Decrease |increase |decrease
Impact on
Defined (644.56) 849.17 851.04(641.89) (481.56) 631.63 632.84 (479.75)
benefit
Obligation

3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
There are no foreign currency transactions during the financial year,

4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a)List of related parties and relationships

Name and Particulars of the Related Party

Relationship with the Company

MATHEW MUTHOOTTU{MANAGING DIRECTORY)

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

NIZZY MATHEW (WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR)

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

P E MATHAI{CEQ}

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

ANN MARY GEORGE, ACA {CFO)

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

SMITHAK.S, ACS (CS)

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

VENUGOPAL K NAIR (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

M M HERBERT {INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

MANOJKUMAR R (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR}

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

M S RAJAGOPAL (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

BABITHA TERESA FEORGE {NON EXECUTIVE NON-
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

NON EXECUTIVE NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

ROYAL GOLD

ENTITY IN WHICH RELATIVE OF KMP / DIRECTOR IS INTERESTED

TANZANITE MARKETING SOLUTIONS {OPC) PVT LTD

ENTITY IN WHICH RELATIVE OF KMP / DIRECTOR IS INTERESTED

MINI MUTHOOTTU MATHEW MEMORIAL FOUNDATION

ENTITY IN WHICH RELATIVE OF KMP / DIRECTOR IS INTERESTED

ARLIN ANNA PHILIP

CLOSE MEMBER OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

ROY M MATHEW

CLOSE MEMBER OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

MINI MUTHOOTTU NIDHI KERALA LTD

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

MINI MUTHOOTTUNIRMANSREAL ESTATE P LTD

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

M/S MUTHOOTTU MIN) HOTELS P LTD

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

MUTHOOTTU FINANCE AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

MILANCHE

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

MUTHOOTTU MINI THEATRES PRIVATE LIMITED

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

MUTHOOTTU INFOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE
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b) Transactions during the financial year with related parties as on 31.03.2025

(¥ in lakhs)
Particulars Key managerial personnel
ﬁfﬁ;‘;‘i}:’m Nizzy PE |AnnMary| gnitha,
. Mathew | George, S
(Managing j Mathai K.
recton) | Director) (CFO) | (cs)
Salary  and allowance 204 180 | 13215 79.97| 2456
Rent/ maintenance charges 5.13 1.98 - - -
Debenture interest/
. 0.20 3.95 - - -
Subordinated debt
interest
Debenture redeemed 8 20 ) _ )
Debenture holdings 1 2795 ) ) .
Subordinated debt i X N )
Redeemed
Advance for property ) ) i ; 3
Travelling Expense 17.26 0.89 283 03 )
. Directors
Particulars Venugopal Babitha Teresa
: . M .
K Nair M M Herbert {Manoj Kumar R George S Rajagoapal
Sitting fee 245 5.35 6.90 1.2 370
(X in lakhs)
ENTITY IN WHICH RELATIVE CLOT)E MEMBER
OF KMP / DIRECTOR IS MAN::E:IAL ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE
INTERESTED PERSONNEL
Mini
Mutho MUTHO
PARTICULAR Tanzani MIN|
S ’ te n:::hu ARLIN | ROYM Mu"::::or MUTHOOT nzm:;s Muthoot
Royal | Marketi « anNA | MATHE | Tunipn | TUNIRMAN | m/smuthoorTu | FINAN MILANCHE tu
gold ng w &REAL MINI HOTELS P LTD Infotech
Solution Mt.zmo PHILIP w KERALA ESTATE P SERVICES Private
s (OPC) rial LTD LTD PRIVATE ITD
Pyt Ltd Fo?nd LTD
ation
SALARY AND
ALLOWANCE -

-




SITTING FEE

RENT/MAINT
ENANCE
CHARGES
Paid

9.33

4.53

RENT
RECEIVED

182

0.77

TRAVELLING
EXPENSES

DEBENTURE/
subdebt
INTEREST

6.46

DEBENTURE/
subdebt
REDEEMED

25.00

18.00

Debenture
Investment

15.00

DEBENTURE/
subdebt
HOLDINGS

25.00

23.00

Loan Against
Praperty
Outstanding

143.45

Interest on
Loan against
property

55.27

Principal
repayment of
Loan against
property

407.85

CSR

2.00

Commission
Received

11.75

IT
Consultancy
and Support
Services

165.48

Printing and
stationary

89.07

Lift
Modernizatio
ncharges

15.25

Purchase of
Gold Coin

Business
promotion

Purchase of
Material

101.11

24.25

Auction sale

5.53

¢)Charge created on assets of the related party

The following entities have extended collateral security and corporate guarantee for the
borrowings from banks as reflected in Note 9.

I Muthoottu Mini Hotels Private Limited,
2 Muthoottu Mini Theatres Private Limited

The following related parties have extended personal guarantee for the borrowings from

banks as reflected in Note 9.

l. Roy M Mathew

[
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2. Nizzy Mathew
3. Mathew Muthoottu

Transaction during the financial year with related parties as on 31.03.2024:

(X in lakhs)
Particulars Key managerial personnel
Mathew Nizzy
Muthoottu Mathew PE Ann Mary
(Managing | (Whole Time | Mathai| George, Smitha. K.S
Director) Director) (CEQ)| ACA (CFO)| ACS(CS)
Salary and
allowance 271.50 180.00 86.1 48.72 23.24
Rent/
maintenance charges 1.20 0.39 - . .
Debenture interest/
Subordinated debt
interest 1.07 4.09 - - -
Debenture
redeemed 0 5.00 - - -
Debenture
holdings 9.00 35.25 - - -
Subordinated debt
Redeemed - - - - -
Advance for property - - - - -
Travelling Expense 26.56 2.33 - - -
(X in lakhs)
Particulars Directors
Maliakal Jose Paul M S Rajagopal Mano; Kumar R
Sitting fee 3.40 4.45 3.20

\
(X in lakhs)



PARTICULA
RS

ENTITY IN WHICH RELATIVE
OF KMP / DIRECTOR IS

INTERESTED

CLOSE MEMBER
OF KEY
MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

Royal
gold ng

Tanzani
te
Marketi

Solution
s (OPC)
Pvt Ltd

Mini
Mutho
ottu
Mathe
w
Memo
rial
Found
ation

ARLIN
ANNA
PHILIP w

ROY M
MATHE

MINI
MUTHOOT
TU NIDHI
KERALA
LTO

MINI
MUTHOOT
TUNIRMAN

&REAL
ESTATE P
LTD

M/S MUTHOOTTU
MINI HOTELS P LTD

MUTHO
o1V
FINANCE
AND
SERVICES
PRIVATE
LTD

MILANCHE

Muthoot
tu
Infotech
Private
LTD

SALARY
AND
ALLOWAN
CE

SITTING
FEE

RENT/MAI
NTENANCE
CHARGES
Paid

- 1.81

7.23

6.60

5.40

RENT
RECEIVED

17.55

1.80

0.74

TRAVELLIN
G
EXPENSES

0.29 -

DEBENTUR
E/fsubdebt
INTEREST

7.48 1.52

DEBENTUR
E/subdebt
REDEEMED

DEBENTUR
E/ subdebt
HOLDINGS

54.00 26.00

Loan
Against
Property
Outstandin

interest on
Loan
against
Property

Principal
repayment
of Loan
against

CSR
Commissio

IT
Consuitanc
yand
Support
Services
Purchase
for
marketing
Activities
Purchase

property
Y |

n Received
f———"YEC |

|

of Gold
Coin 26.17 -

551.30

80.67




Business
promotion

0] 18.21

Purchase
of Material

18.21

4. Managerial remuneration

(X in lakhs)

'Whole time director 2024-25 2023-24

Nizzy Mathew 180.00 180.00
Mathew Muthoottu 294.00 2715
Key managerial person

P E Mathai 132.15 86.1
Ann Mary George 79.97 48.72
Smitha K § 24.56 23.24
Total 710.68 609.56

. Capital Management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business
which includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company. The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management
policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements
and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
to maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its
activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount
of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No
changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years except
those incorporated-on account of regulatory amendments. However, they are under constant
review by the Board.
(X in lakhs)

Particulars As at : As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

I. CRAR- Tier I Capital 71,130.84 63,712.91
2. CRAR- Tier II Capital 23,086.43 26,063.53
3. Total Capital 94,217.27 89,776.44
4. Risk Weighted Assets 4,40,582.66 3,76,262 .39
5. CRAR- Tier I Capital (%) 16.14% 16.93%
6. CRAR- Tier II Capital (%) 5.24% 6.93%
7. Total CRAR (%) 21.38% 23.86%

6. Fair Value Measurement

3.  Valuation Principle

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilitygl an
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orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been
derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques,
explained in the note - “Determination of fair value of Financial Instruments” (Note No: III B

(c)

b.  Valuation Hierarchy:
The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level

of the fair value hierarchy:
X in lakhs)

Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Level |Level |Level 3 |Total Level |Level [Level |Total
1 2 1 2 3

Assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Financial investment held for |- - - - - - - -

trading

Equity Shares 16.26 |- 2,574.36 {2590.62 |20.34 |- 971.80 (992.14
Total Assets measured at [16.26 |- 2,574.36 |2590.62 |20.34 |- 971.80 |992.14
fair value on a recurring

basis

Assets measured at fair |- - - - - - - -
value on a non-recurring
basis

Liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial
instruments
-Forward contracts - - - - - - - -

-Cross Currency Swaps - - - - - - - -

Total derivative financial |- - - - - - - _
instruments

Total Liabilities measured |- - - - - - - _
at fair value on a recurring
basis

Liabilities measured at fair |- - - - - - - -
value on a non-recurring
basis

C. Valuation Technique
Equity Instruments: Equity instruments in non-listed entities are initially recognised at
transaction price and re-measured (to the extent information is available) and valued on a
case-by case and classified as Level 3. Quoted equity instruments on recognised stock
exchanges are valued at Level 1 hierarchy being the unadjusted quoted price a




reporting date.

d Transfer between Level 1/Level2 and Level 3 during the reporting period
During the year there have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2. Similarly, there
were no transfers from or to level 3

€. Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at Sfair value:

The following tables show a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3
financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value. Transfers from Level 3 to
Level 2 occur when the market for some securities became more liquid, which eliminates
the need for the previously required significant unobservable valuation inputs. Since the
transfer, these instruments have been valued using valuation models incorporating
observable market inputs. Transfers into Level 3 reflect changes in market conditions as a
result of which instruments become less liquid. Therefore, the Company requires significant
unobservable inputs to calculate their fair value. The following tables show the reconciliation
of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value:
Particulars Equity Instruments
As at March 31, |Asat March 31,
2025 2024
Opening Balance
971.80 971.80
Purchase - N
Sales R N
Unrealized gains and losses related to balances 1.602.56
held at the end of the year e )
Closing Balance ~ |2,574.36 971.80

f Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the
Company’s financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial
statements. This table does not include the fair values of non—financial Assets and non-
financial liabilities.

(R in lakhs)

Carrying Value Fair Value
31-03-2025 |31-03-2024 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2024

Particulars Level

Financial assets

Cash and cas 8,717.55 10,269.47 8,717.55 10,269.47
equivalents 1




Bank Balance other 46,984.94  |44,857.57 4698494 | 44.857.57
than (a) above 1

Loans 3 41067697 [34980761 §4,1067697 |3.493807.61
Investments 113 | 2,590.62 992.14 2,590.62 992.14
Other financial assets | 3 | 1,885.49 2,026.45 1,885.49 2,026.45
Total Financial assets 4,70,855.57 [,07,953.24 4,70,855.57 |4,07,953.24
Financial liabilities

Debt Securities 2 | 1,46,522.60 | 13622623 | 146,522.60 | 13622623
Borrowings  (other |, 2,30,857.88 | 1,91,22090 | 2,30,857.88 | 1,91.229.90
than debt securities)

Subordinated liabilities| 2 |34,501.92 | 30,6643 3450192 | 30,664.31
Other financial 2,199.36 1,694.17 2,199.36 1694.17
liabilities 2

Total =~ Financial 4,14,081.76 | 3,59,814.61 | 4,14,081.76 | 3,59,814.61
liabilities

§  Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at Jfair value
Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above

financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair value in the financial
statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only.

+ Short-term financial assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than
twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable
approximation of their fair value.

» Loans and advances to customers

The fair values of loans and receivables are estimated by discounted cash flow models
that incorporate assumptions for credit risks, probability of default and loss given default
estimates. Since comparable data is not available, Credit risk is derived using, historical
experience, management view and other information used in its collective impairment
models.

» Borrowings

The floating rate loans are fair valued on the basis of MCLR + spread. For fixed rate loans,
the carrying values are a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

7. -Risk Management Introduction and Risk Profile

As a lending institution, the Company is exposed to various risks that are related to gol
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lending business, micro finance business and operating environment. Risk management
forms an integral element of the business. The objective in the risk management process
is to appreciate, measure and monitor the various risks that are subject to and to follow
policies and procedures to address these risks. The Company manages it through the risk
management architecture. The Company continue to improve the policies and procedures
and to implement these rigorously, for the efficient functioning of the business. This also
helps in managing the risks, associated with the business.

A. Risk management structure

The Company has constituted Risk Management Committee comprising members of the
Board to assist the Board of Directors in the execution of its risk management
accountabilities. The Committee provides the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors
an independent and objective oversight view of the information to review Company’s
financial risk activities and provide an assurance to the Board of Directors that the
Company has implemented an effective ongotng process to identify the risk, to measure t-
he potential impact and proactively manage these risks and to decide the tolerance for the
risk.

B. Risk measurement and reporting systems

In order to address the risks that are inherent to the business, the Company has developed
a risk management architecture that includes a Risk Management Committee, of the Board
of Directors, internal audit department, and an internal Risk Management Committee
comprising senior management. The Risk Management Committee, oversees the risk
management policies, which helps to identify, measure, monitor and mitigate the various
risks in the businesses. The terms of reference of Risk Management Committee are as
follows:

(2) To assist the Board in setting risk strategy policies in liaison with management and
in the discharge of its duties relating to corporate accountability and associated risk
in terms of management assurance and reporting;

(b) To review and assess the nature, role, responsibility and authority of the risk
management function within the Company and outline the scope of risk management
work; and

(¢) To review and assess the quality, integrity and effectiveness of the risk management
systems and ensure that the risk policies and strategies areeffectively managed.

C. Internal Audit Department & Risk Audit

-Company’s internal audit department assists in the management of operational risk. An
Information System Audit of the internal systems and processes is conducted at least once
in two years to assess operational risks faced by the Company.

Tps has
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D. Assets-Liabilities Management Policy

The asset-liability management policy (“ALM Policy”) adopted by the Board is reviewed
periodically and last updated on May 20, 2022.

E. Analysis of risk concentration

(i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of loss due to the failure of any borrower to abide by the
terms and conditions of the loan agreement. We believe that the credit risk in our Gold
Loan business is relatively low because all our loans are generally over collateralized
by pledged gold ornaments. We aim to reduce credit risk through a rigorous loan
approval and gold appraisal process, KYC compliance procedures and a strong non-
performing asset (“NPA”) monitoring and recovery mechanism. The credit risk is
diminished because the gold jewellery used as security for our loans can be readily -
liquidated, and the possibility of recovering less than the amount due to us is relatively
low. We also mitigate credit risk by not disbursing loans in excess of specified limits,
as fixed by our Company from time to time, to the same customer, and for high value
loans we undertake a credit check or profiling of the borrower before a loan is approved.
We have developed methods to peg the value of the loan amount to the moving average
price of gold. We also decrease credit risk by focusing on the quality of the pledged
gold. Our internal control system ensures independent verification of the gold by at
least two officials at the branch level. The level of verification at the branch level
increases as the loan value increases, In addition, the quality of gold is checked by the
inspecting officers of the Company through random check and by gold auditors through
a detailed check. Credit risk in our micro finance business is generally higher than our
Gold Loan business as the amount advanced is on unsecured basis. However, our
product is designed in such a way that the loans are granted to individuals who form a
part of the group and the group is ultimately liable for each member repayment
obligation under that group. We also mitigate credit risk by not disbursing loans in
excess of specified limits which is currently X 1 lakh to an individual customer. We
also decrease credit risk by close follow up with the group members on weekly basis.

The table below summarises the credit risk exposure of the loan portfolio of the
company based on days past due and geography of the borrower:

As on 31/03/2025 (% in lakhs)
State wise Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(0--30 days past (31-90 days past [(More than |Grand
(Geography) due) - No due) - Significant | 90 days past | Total
significant increase in credit due) -




increase in credit risk but no Impaired
risk impairment Assets
Tamil Nadu 1,33,532.38 2,215.99 790.27 1,36,538.63
Kerala 36,456.32 1,510.61 1,696.37 59,663.30
Andhra Pradesh 1,29,183.19 2,451.38 234.93 1,31,869.49
Kamataka 48,976.80 608.90 657.93 50,243.62
Others* 35,212.75 494.04 138.45 35,845.24
Total 4,03,361.44 7,280.91 3,517.95 4,14,160.29

* Others include Delhi, Haryana, Go

Pradesh and Gujarat.

As on 31/03/2024

a, Maharashtra, Pondicherry, Telangana, Uttar

(X in lakhs)

State wise Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Grand
(Geography) | (0-30 days (31-90 days past (More than Total
past due)-No | due) - Significant | 90 days past

significant increase in credit due) -

increase in risk but no Impaired

credit risk impairment Assets
Tamil Nadu 1,21,662.63 6,507.52 755.83 { 1,28.925.98
Kerala 52,782.77 2,297.02 83938 55,919.17
Karnataka 48,947.81 3,226.92 172.27 52,347.01
Andhra 44,664 .49 2,158.28 1,087.70 47.910.47
Pradesh
Others* 62,889.83 4,025.99 25912 | 67,174.94
Total 3,30,947.54 18,215.72 3,114.31 3,52,277.?

* Others include Delhi, Hary

Pradesh and Gujarat,

(i) Collateral and other credit enhancements

ana, Goa, Maharashtra, Pondicherry, Telangana, Uttar

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of
the counterparty.

The tables below disclose the maximum €xposure to credit risk by class of financial asset.
They also disclose the quantitative information of collateral held including surplus
collateral (the extent to which the value of collateral held is greater than the exposure to

which it relates), and the net exposure to credit risk based on Loan to Value at the point of
origination of loans.




As at 31/03/2025 {in lakhs)
Particula Book
rs debts,
Bank Invento
As at March and Househol 1y and
31,2025 gover d used other
Maximum nment gold working Net Associ
exposure to Securit | guara | ornamen capital surplus Total Exposur ated
credit risk Cash ies ntees ts items collateral | Collateral e ECLs
ASSETS
Financial
assets
Cash and |8,717.55 8,717.55 8,717.55 8,717.55
cash
equivale
nts
Bank 46,984.94 46,984.94 46,984.94 46,984.94
Balance
other
than (a)
above
Loans
(a) Gold [3,81,256.08 3,81,256.08 3,81,256.08 1,94,892.21 5,76,148.29
Loan 1,999.9
8
{b) Loan | 235.38 235.38 - 235.38 - - - 1,147.12 1,382.50 12490
Against
Property
{c) Micro | 32,668.84 32,668.84 - - - - - -
finance 1,358.4
5
Investme 2,590.62 2,590.62 2,590.62 2,590.62 - -
nts
Other 1,885.49 1,885.49 - 1,885.49 -
financial
assets
Total 4,74,338.91 4,74,338.9 35,702.49 23538 (0.00 3,81,256.08 |2,590.62 1,96,039.32 16,35,823.90 |[1,885.49 [3,483.3
3
As at 31/03/2024 X in lakhs)
Particulars Book
debts,
Invent
ory
and
As;;t ;dua;;h Bank other
! and Househeol | worki
gover d used ng
Maximum nment gold capita Net
exposure to Securit | guara | ornamen 1 surplus Total Exposur | Associat
credit risk Cash ies ntees ts items collateral Collateral € ed ECLs
ASSETS
Financial
assets
Cash  and [10,269.47 10,269.47 10,269.47 10,269.47
cash
equivalent
5




Bank h4,857.57 44,857.57 44,857.57 44.857.57

Balance

other than

(a) above

Loans

(a) Gold B,22221.23 3,22,221.23 3,22221.23 1,33,940.48 4,56,161.71 1,581.46
Loan

(b) Loan | 643,23 643.23 - 643.23 - - - 739.27 1,382.50 176.39
Against

Property

{c) Micro | 29413.11 2941311 712.10
finance

Investment | 992.14 992.14 992.14 992.14

s

Other 2,026.45 2,026.45 - 2,026.45

financial

assets

Total 4,10,423.26 4,10,423.26 55,127.10 [643.23 0.00 3,22,221.23 [992.14 [1,34,679.75 5,13,663.45 |2,026.45 2,469.96

(iii) Liquidity Risk

Our business is cash intensive and requires substantial funds, on an ongoing basis, to finance
the loan portfolio and to grow it. Any disruption in the funding sources would have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition. The Company is proactively pursuing
a system of identifying and accessing newer and cheaper sources of funds, to finance the
AUM and to grow the business. There is a regular meeting of our asset liability management
committee which reviews the liquidity position of the Company and arranges for sufficient
funding in advance, for growth.

(iv) Market Risk

Market risk arises from the decline in the value of the pledged gold due to fluctuation in gold
prices. This risk is in part mitigated by linking the LTV to the 30 day average price of gold.
This risk is further reduced because we appraise the gold jewellery and fund loans based
solely on the weight of gold content without considering design cost, production cost or
value of gemstones. In addition, we believe that the sentimental value of the gold jewellery
to the customers may induce repayment and redemption of the pledged gold even if the value
of the pledged gold falis below the value of the Tepayment amount. We believe that a prompt
and effective recovery mechanism also helps us deal with this risk.

As a measure of combating the risk involved due to the volatility in gold prices, the Company
has put in place a process to review the gold loan outstanding based on marking the gold
loan outstanding to the market prices , Marked to Market (MTM), on a regular basis. When
the amount of Gold Loan outstanding exceeds 95% of the market price, the company initiates
steps to intimate the borrower to close the loan account and or to pledge additional gold
jewellery. In case of delay, immediate steps will be taken to recover the amount through
auction, post intimation to the borrower. Based on the risk assessed as per the MTM (Mark
to Market) review, additional provision for the shortfal] as against the gold loan outstanding
of the customer, if any, is provided in the books of accounts.

—




(v) Operational Risk

Operational risk broadly covers the risk of direct or indirect loss due to the failure of systems,
people or processes, or due to external events. We have instituted a series of checks and
balances and audit reviews to address the various operational risks. We have clearly defined
appraisal methods to mitigate appraisal risk. Inaccurate appraisal of the pledged gold may
lead to funds being advanced against low value or spurious gold. This risk is mitigated by
our policies on internal control, generation of alert reports and additional requirements for
high value loans. We also have detailed guidelines on movement of cash or gold to address
custodial risk, which is the risk associated with the safety and security of our gold inventory.
In addition, we have installed surveillance cameras across of all our branches, and security
guards are present at night at certain sensitive branches, We undertake significant employee
profiling and background verification checks before hiring and continuously monitor their
lifestyle changes. We are also maintaining insurance cover for our gold stock and cash with
our branches, and cash in transit, against theft, loss or damage by fire as well as against
natural calamities including earthquake and floods. As of March 31, 2025, our Company has
a total insurance cover of %6,00,000 lakhs.

»  Rating Loans Days past due (DPD) Stages with regard to quality of assets
The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-

impaired) for Expected credit Loss (ECL) calculations in all cases when the borrower
becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

Rating Days Past Due (DPD) Stages
High grade Not yet due Stage 1
High grade 1-30 DPD Stage 1
Medium grade 31-60 DPD Stage 2
Medium grade 61-90 DPD Stage 2
Low grade 191 DPD or More Stage 3

» Exposure at Default (EAD)

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, considering
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal
and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on
committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Portfolio Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3
Gold Loan 100.00% 100.00% 160.00%
Microfinance 46.36% 46.36% 46.36%
Loan Against Property [91.93%; 91.93% 100.00%




>  Probability of Default (PD)

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. The table below shows the probability of default on different portfolios as computed
by the Company based on the ECL method mentioned in Significant Accounting Policies

Portfolio Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3

Gold Loan 2.08% 15.32% 100.00%
Microfinance 3.43% 14.89% 100.00%
Loan Against Property |[50.00% 50.00% 100.00%

»  Loss Given Default (LGD)

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs
at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and
those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization of any
collateral.

Portfolio Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3
Gold Loan* 16.35% 16.35% 16.35%
Microfinance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Loan Against Property |50.00% 50.00% 100.00%

* For Gold Loans reported in Fraud Monitoring Returns, a provision equivalent to 100% is created

for Stage 3.

ECL rate is computed as the product of EAD, PD, and LGD

(vi) Liquidity risk and funding management

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s

financial assets and liabilities as at March 31,2025,

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs)
Over 1 (Over 2 |Over 3
As at Over 6 |Over 1 year | Over 3 year
Particulars March, 31 [UPte 1| month & | months | months & |\ y g |4 upto 3 | & upto 5|0V S
2025 months uptec 2 | & upto 3 | upto 6 upto 1 year | years years years
months months months
Financial assets
Cash and cash |8,497.44 8.416.04 81.40
equivzlents
Bank Balance other |47,205.05 220.11 36,607.39 110,116.10 {26145
than (a) above
Receivables
Loans 4,10,676.97 |10,587.78 |31,191.17 |23,057.87 |58,626.4] 2,59,266.52  |25,182.73 2,764.49
Investments 2,590.62




Other financial |1,885.49 44.65 44.65 44.65 133.97 1617.57
assets
Total Financial 4,70,855.57 |(19,268.58 |(31,23582 |[23,102.52 |58,760.38 29595531 |36,916.40 261.45 5,355.11
Assets
Financial
Liabilities
Debt Securities 1,46,522.60 |316.25 3,710.05 - 23,337.78 33,510.47 76,982 7491.23 1,174.14
Borrowings (other |2,30,857.88 [8,254.23 6,628.28 10,743.67 2207745 1,22,452.07 |57,747.19 2.945.10 9.89
than debt
securities)
Subordinated 34,501.92 147.01 272.25 1,305.07 19.54 13,073.58 19,166.25 51822
liabilities
Other financial |2,199.36 183.28 183.28 183.28 549.84 109%.68
liabilitics
Total  Financial | 4,14,081.76 |8,900.77 10,793.86 |12,232.02 |45,984.61 1,57,062.22 [1,47,803.45 |29,602.58 1,702.25
Liabilities
Net Undiscounted 10,367.81 |[20,441.96 |10.870.50 |12,775.77 1,38,893.09 |-1,10,887.05 |(-29,341.13 3,652.86
Assct/(Liabilities)
Maturity pattern of assets and Liabilities as on March 31, 2024
( in lakhs)
Over 1 [Over 2 {Over 3 Over 3
As at QOver 6 fOver 1 year
Particulars March, 31 Upto 1 | month & | months months & months & | & upto 3 year & |Over §
2024 months upte 2 | & upto 3 | upto 6 to 1 ars upto 5 1 years
menths months months upto 1 year ye ¥years
Financial assets
Cash and cash [7,734.05 7,652.65 81.40
equivalents
Bank Balance other |47,392.99 2,535.35 41,154.99 2,339.15 1,363.50 -
than (a) above
Receivables
Loans 3,49,807.61 [24324.86 [31304.48 |31,931.85 (1,10,10268 [1,27342.83 23,605.25 524.01 671.65
Investments 992.14 992.14
Other financial assets | 2-026-45 27.21 27.21 27.21 £1.62 1863.2
Total Financial 4,07,953.24 (34,540.07 |31331.69 (31,959.06 [1,10,184.30 |1.68,579.22 25,944.40 3,750.71 1,663.79
Assets
Financial Liabilities
Debt Securities 1,36,226.23 | 10,117.88 |6,472.96 - 13,167.45 14,075.42 67,437.32 24,955.20 | 0.00
Borrowings  (other | 1,91,22990 |3,714.35 3846.07 7,766.49 13,067.64 1,19,152.62 4267779 969.07 3591
than debt securities)
Subordinated 30,664.31 161.98 2,201.01 21,603.34 | 6,697.98
liabilities
Other financial | 1,694.17 141.18 141.18 141.18 423.54 847.09
liabilities
Total Financial |3,59,814.61 |14,1353% [10,460.21 |7,907.67 26,658.59 1,34,075.13 1,12,316.12 | 47,527.61 6,733.89
Liabilities .
Net  Undiscounted 20,404.68 |20,871.48 |24,051.39 |[83,525.71 34,504.09 -86,371.72 -43,776.90 |-5,070.10
Asset/(Liabilities)

The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Company’s
contingent liabilities and commitments.

(X in lakhs)

Particulars |Upto 1 [Over 1 (Over 2 {Over 3 [Over 6| Over 1 |Over 3| Ov
month | month | months | months | months | year year & er
& & upto | & upto | & upto | & upto S 5
upto2 |3 6 1year | upto 3 | years |years
months |months |months years sy




~ [Income tax 851.57

AS at March
31, 2025
Income tax 244 38
demands
AS at March
31, 2024

demands

(vii) Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily due to its borrowings being on a floating
interest rate basis. Changes in market interest rates can affect the Company’s cost of borrowings
and, consequently, its financial performance. As all of the Company's borrowings during the year
are linked to market-based benchmarks, the entire loan portfolio is subject to interest rate
fluctuations. The sensitivity of the Company’s floating rate borrowings to a change in interest rate
(assuming all other variables remain constant) is as follows;

Particulars 1% increase 1% decrease
On Floating Rate Borrowings 2,317.52 (-2,317.52)
Leases

The company has neither taken nor let out any assets on financial lease. All operating lease
agreements entered into by the company are cancellable in nature. The company has debited/
credited the lease rent paid/ received to the profit and loss statement. Therefore, disclosure
requirement of future minimum lease payment in respect of non- operating lease as per Ind AS
116 is not applicable to the company.

Lease payments for the assets taken on operating lease X 2,532.90 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 2,323 .88
lakhs) are recognized as rent paid in the Statement of Profit and loss,

Maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are
expected to be recovered or settled.

(X in lakhs)

Particulars As at March31, Within 12 After 12
2025 months Months
ASSETS

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,497 44 8497 44 -
Bank Balance other than (a) above 47,205.05 36,827.50 10,377.55
| Loans 4,10,676.97 3,82,729.75 27,947 22
Investments 2,590.62 - 2,590.62
Other financial assets 1,885.49 267.92

LI

)
\ ‘\
T —
At g




Non-financial Assets

Current tax assets (Net) 2,821.53 - 2,821.53

Deferred tax assets (Net)

Property, Plant and Equipment 20,397.34 - 20,397.34

Other intangible assets 363.33 - 363.33

Other non-financial assets 1,548.92 - 1,548.92

Total Assets 4,95,986.69 4,28,322.61 67,664.08

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

Debt Securities 1,46,522.60 60,874.55 85,648.05

Borrowings (other than debt 2,30,857.88 |  1,70,155.70 60,702.18

securities)

Subordinated liabilities 34,501.92 1,743.87 32,758.05

Other financial liabilities 2,199.36 2,199.36 -

Non-financial Liabilities

Provisions 783.20 783.20 -

Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) 302.26 302.26 -

Other non-financial liabilities 782.09 782.09 -

Total Liabilities 4,15,949.31 2,36,841.03 | 1,79,108.28

Net Undiscounted

Asset/(Liabilities) 1,91,481.58 | -1,11,444.20

(& in lakhs)
Particulars As atzMarch31, Within 12 After 12
024 months Months

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7.734.05 7734.05 -

Bank Balance other than (a) above 47,392.99 43,690.34 3,702.65

Loans 3,49.807.61 3,25,006.69 24,800.92

Investments 992.14 - 992.14

Other financial assets 2.026.45 163.23 1,863.22

Non-financial Assets - -

Current tax assets (Net) 2199.95 - 2199.95

Deferred tax assets (Net) 215.09 - 215.09

Property, Plant and Equipment 19,923.16 - 19,923.16

Other intangible assets 222.96 - 222.96

Other non-financial assets 1043.07 1043.07 -

Total Assets 4,31,557.47 3,77,637.38 53,920.09

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

Debt Securities 1,36,226.23 43,833.71 92,392 52

Borrowings (other than debt 1,91,229.90 1,47,547.13 43,682.77

securities)




Subordinated liabilities 30,664.31 161.98 30,502.33
Other financial liabilities 1,694.17 1,694.17

Non-financial Liabilities - -
Provisions 581.62 581.62 -
Other non-financial liabilities 576.82 576.82 -
Total Liabilities 3,60,973.05 1,94,395.43 1,66,577.62
Net Undiscounted 1,83,241.95(  -1,12,657.53
Asset/(Liabilities)

10. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities disclosed as per Ind AS 7,
Cash flow statement

(X in lakhs)
As at 31 Cash Change in As at 31
Particulars March 2024 flows Fair Valuef Others | March 2025
Borrowings (other than 1,91,22991 | 39,627.98 | o000 2.30,857.88
debt securities)
Subordinated liabilities 30,664.31f 3,837.61 - 0.00 34,501.92
Debt Securities 1,36,226.23| 10,826.39 - (530.02) | 1,46,522.60
Total 3,58,12045 | 54,291.98 - (5830.02) 4,11,822.40
(X in lakhs)
h -
As at 31 Cash C ;’;ff: " As at 31
Particulars March 2023 flows Value Others | March 2024
Borrowings (o_th_er than 191,229.91
debt securities) 1,52,665.35 38,564.55 - -
Subordinated liabilities 24,300.29 6,364.02 - - 30,664.31
Debt Securities 1,43,772.51 | (7,592.66) 46.38 1,36,226.23
Total 3,20,738.15| 37,335.91 i 46.38 3,58,120.44

1. List of statutory dues outstanding for a period of more than 6 months from the due date

Nature of dues Amount (Rs.) |Period to which theForum where dispute is
amount relates pending

Nil Nil Nil Nil

12. Contingent liabilities and other commitments

A. Contingent liability




Particulars As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

244 .38 851.57
- Income tax demands
2. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts
Sl Name of the | Nature of Tax Tax paid | Period to | Forum where
statute Dues Demand | (In takhs)] which the ispute i
No (In lakhs) amount dispu .e s
relates pending
1 Income Tax | Income Tax| 68.58 51.65 | AY 2010-11 { Commissioner of
ACt, 1961 demands Income-tax
(Appeals),
Kochi
2 Income Tax | Income Tax| 227.45 - AY 2017-18 | Honorable High
Act, 1961 | demands court of Kerala
Total 296.03 51.65

B. Other Commitments
a Estimated number of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts, net of advances
—nil (PY Nil)

b.The capital advance given in the FY 2021-2022 includes capital advance of Z46.50 lakhs paid
to LCode Technologies Pvt. Ltd. on 28.01.2020 for implementing the software product
‘Reach NBFC Prosper System’ with proper Service Level Agreement at place. However, due
to the continuous failure of the software after implementation and considering the non-
responsive attitude of LCode towards the issues, a show cause notice was served dated
21.02.2022, and thereafter a termination notice dated 17.05.2022 through our advocates
Menon & Pai claiming the refund of Rs.46.50 lakhs with interest plus Rs.1.68 crores towards
compensation. Currently the case is pending for arbitration proceedings before the Arbitral
Tribunal. Kochi. A provision of 46.50 lakhs equivalent to 100% of advance is created as of
31.03.2025.

¢. Commitments relating to loans sanctioned but undrawn- Nil (PY - Nil)

Sanctioned Un-availed
Type of Amount
Lender e
Facility (Rs
Lakhs) (Rs. Lakhs)
Kerala F 1.nan01al Term loan 5000.00 500.00
Corporation
Standard Chartered Overdraft 100.00 100.00
Bank




13. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period, as on 31st March 2025.

14. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
(X in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended as (Year ended as
at 31.03.2025 | at 31.03.2024
a) Gross amount required to be spent 181.46 129.49
by the Company during the year
b) Amount spent during the year
- On purposes other than
construction/acquisition of any asset
- Spent 176.82 115.68
- Yet to be spent 4.64 13.81
Total 181.46 129.49

{a)Nature of CSR activities:
Healthcare, Education, Rural infrastructure, eradicating poverty

(b)Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlied by the company in
relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard:

Entity in which KMP has significant
Influence Amount (In Lakhs)
Mini Muthoottu Mathew Memorial Foundation 2.00

(c) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately.

13. Disclosure regarding auditor’s remuneration disclosed under Legal & Professional charges
In addition to auditor’s remuneration shown in note 25 other expenses under Auditor’s Fees &
Expenses, the Company has also incurred remuneration for audit and related statutory services
performed in connection with public issue of non-convertible debentures. The same is included
in note 25 other expenses under Legal & Professional charges.

16. Ex-gratia claim
The Company had estimated an ex-gratia amount of  367.25 lakhs for the payment of difference
between the compound interest and simple interest to the accounts of borrowers in specified loan
accounts between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020 as per the eligibility criteria and other
features as mentioned in the notification dated October 23, 2020 issued by Government of India,
Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services. The Company had filed a claim with the
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State Bank of India for reimbursement of the said ex-gratia amount as specified in the notification
and the same was received on March 31, 2021.

In accordance with the instructions in aforementioned RBI circular dated Apnl 07, 2021, and the
Indian Banks’ Association (‘IBA’) advisory letter dated April 19, 2021, the Company has put in
place a Board approved policy to refund/ adjust the interest on interest charged during the
moratorium period of March 01, 2020 to August 31, 2020 to the eligible borrowers under the
abovementioned circular and advisory. The Company has estimated the benefit to be extended to
the eligible borrowers at ¥ 124.87 lakhs and created a liability / credited the Borrower’s account
towards the estimated interest relief and reduced the same from the interest income, out of which
3.26 lakhs had been refunded to the customers during the current FY and %6.96 lakhs during last
FY. As on 31* March 2025 the outstanding balance is Rs.92.52 lakhs.

I7. Guarantee for loans taken by others
The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions.

I8, Disclosure under the MSME Act 2006

The information regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available
with the Company. The required disclosures under the MSMED Act, 2006 are as under:

FY 2024-25
Particulars (in Lakhs)
Principal amount remaining unpaid during the year 69.20

Interest due thereon -
Total Interest accrued and remained unpaid at the end of the year -

19. Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing and there are no separate
reportable segments identified as per the Ind AS 108 - Segment Reporting.

20. Analytical Ratios

(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at % Reasons for variance
31.03.2024 | Variance if above 25%
Numerator Denominator | Ratio Ratio
1. CRAR 19421727 | 4.403582.26 [2138% | 2336% (2.48%)
2. Tier I 71,130.84 | 440,58226 (16.14% | 16.93% (0.79%)
CRAR
3. TierII  [23,08645 | 4,40,582.06 | 5.24%; 6.93% |(1.69%)
CRAR
4. Liquidity (1927536 | 9,680.48 |199.15% 163:60% |35.52% [he repayments in the
Coverage next 30 days and
Ratio High-quality = liquid
_ asset  “have_ been
% S .
Nov
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ecreased ‘
substantially in the
current financial year

21. Title Deeds of Immovable properties not held in the name of com pany
The company does not possess any immovable property (other than properties where'the company
is the lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in favour of lessee) whose title deeds are
not held in the name of company during the FY ended 31/03/2025 and 31/03/2024.

22. Details of Crypto currency or Virtual Currency . .
The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the FY
31/03/2025 and 31/03/2024.

23. Details of Benami property held _
No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder in the FY ended 31/03/2025 and 3 1/03/2024.

4. Quarterly returns or statements of current assets
The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

25. Wilful defaulter
The company has not been declared as 3 wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or
other lender in the financial year ended 31/03/2025 and 31/03/2024.

26. Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any relation with struck off companies as on 31/03/2025 and
31/03/2024,

7. Compliance with approved scheme of Arrangements

The Company does not have active approved scheme of arrangements as on 31/03/2025 and
31/03/2024.

B. Utilisation of Borrowed fund and share premiam
As part of normal course of business, the Company grants loans to various persons and borrow
funds in adherence to all regulatory compliances.
Other than the above, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested fund (either borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entities,
including foreign entities (“intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing

or otherwise, that the intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or

Company has also not received any fund from any person or entities, including foreign entities
(funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded or in writing or otherwise that the
Company shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneﬁciarqug Cav

7 -




29. Compliance with number of layers of Companies _
The Company does not have any subsidiary Company. Also, being an NBFC, the clause is not
applicable.

30. Items of income and expenditure of exceptional nature
There are no items of income and expenditure of exceptional nature for the financial years ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

3. Investment in Subsidiaries
The Company does not have any subsidiary Company and hence this clause is not applicable.

J2. Disclosure on meodified opinion, if any, expressed by auditors, its impact on various
financial items and views of management on audit qualifications.
The auditors have expressed an unmodified opinion on the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the financial years ended March 3 1, 2025 and March 31, 2024

33. Corporate Governance report containing composition and category of directors,
shareholding of non-executive directors, etc.
The corporate governance report containing composition and category of directors, shareholding
of non-executive directors is part of the annual report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

34, Auction Details
The Company auctioned 15,514 loan accounts (March 31, 2024: 13,458) during the financial year
and the outstanding dues on these loan accounts were Rs. 83 88 crores {(March 31, 2024: Rs. 71.08
Crores) till the respective dates of auction. The Company realised Rs. 86.01 crores (March 31,
2024: Rs.68.02) on auctioning of gold Jewellery taken as security on these loans.

Royal Gold, a sister concern of the Company has participated in some of the gold auctions
conducted during the FY 2024-25 and the transactions were carried out at arm’s length pricing.

35 Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors
Disclosure pursuant to RBI notification RBU/2022-23/29 DOR.CRE.REC.No.25/ 03.10.00i
/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022.

Aggregate amount of such-sanctioned loans
and advances

Particulars 2025 2024
Directors and their relatives - -
Entities associated with directors and their
relatives - -

Senior Officers and their relatives - -

36. Overseas assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)
The Company does not have any joint venture or subsidiary abroad, hence not applicable.

J7. Whistle- blower Complaints

There were 7 whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 and all were resolved during the year itself, SESEEDN

ISR {2,




38, Discontinued Operations
The Company had no discontinued operations during the financial year ended March 31, 2025
and March 31, 2024 ‘

39. Breach of covenant
There were no instances of default or breaches of covenant in respect of loan availed or debt
securities issued during the financial years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

40. Unhedged foreign currency exposure
The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposures for the financial years
ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

41. Undisclosed income
There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts for the financial years ended

March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

41. Events after reporting date
There are no events after reporting date for the FY 2024-25.
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MUTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LIMITED
Muthoottu Royal Towers Kaloor Kochi Kerala 682017

Additional disclosures required as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines

1. Disclosure required as per annex VIH of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-

Banking Financial Company- Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF A NON-DEPOSIT TAKING NBFC

] (Rupeesin
Particulars Lakhs)
Cbrel Amount Amount
L—lw Olltstandillg M
k%
"1 | Loans and advances availed by the non-
) banking financial company inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) | Debentures: Secured 1.16,540.55 -109.52
: Unsecured (other than falling within ) ) .
B the meaning of public deposits*) 1645942 3 19.51
{b) | Deferred Credits - -
(c) | Term Loans 1,48,566.40 -
(d) | Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - -
(e) | Commercial Paper 14,642.35 -
(f) | Public Deposits* - -
(g) | Other Loans (specify nature) - -
Subordinated debt ' 34,354.91 147.01
Borrowings from banks 83,185.46 -
I S
* Please see Note 1 below
. ** Debenture Matured but Not Claimed
2 | Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding ]
public deposits inclusive of interest
accrued thereon but not paid):
{a) [ Inthe form of Unsecured debentures - -
B (b) | Inthe form of partly secureq
L N debentures i.e. debentures wiere ] )




there is a shortfall in the value of
security

(c) | Other public deposits

* Please see Note 1 below

Assets side

Amount oufstanding

Break-up of Loans and Advances
including bills receivables [other than
those included in (4} below]:

(a) Secured

3,81,491.46

(b} Unsecured

32,668.83

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on
hire and other assets counting towards
AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals
under sundry debtors :

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease N\
(ii) | Stockon hire including hire charges
under sundry debtors :

{(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) | Other loans counting towards AFC
activities

(a) Loans where assets have been
Repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

Break-up of Investments

Current Investments

1 Quoted

(i} Shares

{(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

{iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

2 Unquoted

(i} Shares

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii} Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

Long Term investments




(X}

Quoted

(i) Share

(a) Equity

16.26

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(i) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

2 Unquoted

(i) Shares

(a) Equity

2,574.36

(b} Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iti) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

Borrower group-wise classification of
assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured

Total

1 Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

{b) Companies in the same group

143.45

143.45

(c) Other related parties

2 Other than related parties

3,81,348.01

32,668.83

4,14,016.84

Less: provisions

2,124.87

1,358.45

3,483.32

Total

3,79,366.59

31,310.38

4,10,676.97

Investor group-wise classification of all
investments (current and long term) in
shares and securities (both quoted and
unquoted):

Please see note 3 below

Category

Market Value /
Break up or fair

value or NAV

Book Value(Net
of Provisions)

1 Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries




(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

Z | Other than related parties 2,590.62 2,590.62
Total 2,590.62 2,590.62
8 | Other information
Particulars Amount
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(2) Related parties .
(b) Other than related parties 3,517.95
(ii) | Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties -
(b) Other than related parties 2,070.97

(iii) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Notes:

{1) As defined in paragraph 5.1.26 of the Directions..

(2) Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

(3} All notified Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable
including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in
satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and
break up/ fair value/ NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed
irrespective of whether they are classified as long term (amortised cost in the case of
Ind AS) or current (fair value in the case of Ind AS) in (5) above..

2. Gold and other loan portfolio classification and provisioning of assets:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Parti Gross loan Provision for Net loan
articulars S .
E— outstanding assets outstanding
(i) Secured Loans
A) Gold loans
a) Standard Assets* 3,79,358.28 1,421.13 3,77,937.15
b) Sub-Standard Assets 1,050.37 171.74 878.63
) Doubtful Assets 526.38 86.06 440.32
d) Loss Assets 321.05 321.05 -
Total-A 3,81,256.08 1,999.98 3,79,256.10
B) Other loans
a) Standard Assets* 143.45 32.97 110.49
b) Sub-standard Assets ; } )
C) Doubtful Assets 91.93 91.93 _

d) Loss Assets




ik

Total-B 235.38 124.90 110.49
Total-{A + B) 3,81,491.47 2124.88 3,79,366.59
(ii} Unsecured loans
A) Other loans
a} Standard Assets* 31,140.63 582.25 30,558.38
b) Sub-standard Assets 342.79 190.23 152.56
] Doubtful Assets 1,185.41 585.97 599.45
d) Loss Assets - - -
Total-A 32,668.84 1,358.45 31,310.39
Total (i +ii) 4,14,160.30 3,483.33 4,10,676.98
*Includes interest receivable
3.  Provision for diminution in value of investment
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat31.03.2025 | Asat31.03.2024
Provision for diminution in value of investment - -
4.  Loanto Value Ratio
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat 31.03.2025 Asat31.03.2024
Outstanding Value of the Qutstanding Value of the
. % . %
loan amount security loan amount security
Gold loan* |3,81,256.08 5,76,148.29 66.17% 3,22,221.23 4,56,161.71 70.64%
*Includes interest receivable.
LTV disclosed above is calculated applying the market rate of Gold as on 31.03.2025. The
maximum Loan to Value does not exceed the limit stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India
under any circumnstances at the time of disbursement.
5.  Disclosure with regards to Auction
(Rupees In lakhs)
Particulars Asat 31.03.2025 | Asat 31.03.2024
1. No. of gold loan accounts auctioned 15,514 13,458
2. Prlmmpal amount outstanding as on the date of 5,945.71 5,072.41
auction
3 [nFerest amount outstanding as on the date of 244212 203571
auction
Total(2+3) 8,387.83 7,108.12
4. Actual value fetched (in Lakhs) 8,601.27 6,802.04

' Royal Gold, a sister concern of the Company has participated in some of the gold auctions
:conducted during the FY 2024-25 and the transactions were carried out at arm’s length

pricing.




0. Disclosure of fraud
A. Frauds reported in FMR
{Rupees in lakhs)
DATE OF
DETECTION AMOUNT FMR
SL AMOUNT MODUS OPERANDI & RECOVERY
BRANCH / PATE OF WRITTEN PROVISION REMARKS NUMB
NO REPORTING (IN LAKH) | ACTION TAKEN (LAKH) OFF o
TOQ RBI
The customer
intentionally pledged
spurious ornaments in
the branch. The
ornaments were Under
manufacturetl:l insucha investigation
manner that it was not
Eract nature it PMR- THIOO
04~ 3updated
1 | AZHAGIAMANDAPAM | 30042024/ 2538 { acid testorothersound | 2435 1.03 0.00 woasoe, | 21220
17-05-2024 , 24-02-2025; | 2402.
tests as a thick layer of Insurance -
0004
gold was coated around 23.92 Staff -
other metals. The fraud
0.43
was revealed as the
auditor doubted the
unusual thickness of
the gold and upon
cutting the ornaments
e R to verify the same.
Thickly gold coated i[;mieg atio
ornaments with other vestigation
A FMR -3
09-05- metals inside and updated on THIOO
2 | sioum 2024/24-05- 4.05 Sﬁfﬁc“t“’ appraise 405 0 0.00 05.08.2024. 21250
2024 rough norma Both 2402-
appraisal methods was 0005
accounts
pledged by the
customer closed on 17-
i 07-2024
Under
Members of a gang investigation
pledged manufactured THI00
10-05- thickly gold coated FMR-3 21220
3 | VILLUKURI 2024/29-05- 45.07 | spurious 40.97 41 0.00 updatedon | 70"
: 2024 ornaments in the 22-02-2025; 6006
branch - 8 accounts- Insurance -
45.07 lakhs 40,70, Staff -
.27
members of a gang
pledged ornaments .Underl .
which were investigation
10-05- manufactured with FMR.- 3 ;]11 zlgg .
4 RAMANPUTHUR 2024/29-05- 7.35 | technigues including 6.65 0.7 0.00
. updated on 2402-
2024 other materials and 25.02-2025: | 0007
deeply coated gold and ’
Insurance -
defrauded 5 65; Staff- 1
B the company b ota
Under
Customer pledged 2 investigation
loans vide gl no. 23415
24-05- and 23416 on FMR-3 THIOO
16.02.2024 for an updated on 21220
5 KUSHALNAGAR 5351/08-06 2.77 amount of Rs.2.77 2.77 0 0.00 21-02-2025; 2407-
lakhs, but on audit dt Insurance - 0008
24.05.2024 it was 2.30; Staff
found to be spurious. recovery -
0.47




Being the joint
custodians of the
branch, Muthupriya
and saravanan had

taken the gold packets
from the locker and
entered closure of
these packets in the
system by making )
21-05- dummy eotries of bank Under E{Z]gg
KAMUTHI 2024/13-06- 44.31 | payments to tally the 0 0 44.31 investigati 2402-
2024 count of the packets . Investgation 0009
Only upon checking the
bank statement for
reconciliation, the
misappropriation of 18
packets committed by
the joint custodian in
connivance with the
other 2 employeeswas
_ revealed.
Staff fraud. 3
staffare
suspended.
Recovery at
The employee Ashok g‘;;‘fnle of
kumar brought 15
packets of ornaments rei;n -6.79
to the branch and ;’:de 3
pledged these spurious Undated on
ornaments in various 1?_ 10-2024:
names in connivance 4 R
with the other two 1 account THIOO
30-05-2024/ closed; 712290
MADURAI MAIN 27-06-2024 49 | employees 49 0 0.00 3 1151‘_2 93 2402-
Manimegalai Gandhi -3
and Nagaraj Vijayan Lakhs 0010
and thereby
misapprepriated 49.00 FMR -3
lakhs . The joint fraud Updated on
was brought to light by 09-04-2025;
the special audit Insurance -
conducted there amount
received
39.28 Lakhs.
All accounts
settled in the
system.
Staff fraud. 2
staff are
already
terminated
based gn
another
irregularities
The branch staff and auditor ,
colluded with auditor resigned. THI0O
05-06-2024/ and replaced the 21220
ADAJAN 27-06-2024 10.06 original ornaments 8.97 1.09 0.00 E;dd[:l;ea;i on 2402-
with spurious 18-02-2025; | 9011
Insurance
claim
received
8.97 Lakhs
and balance
amount 1.09
Lakhs

written off




In an internal audit
conducted in our
Nagamalai branch from
10.06.24 to 20.06.24, it
was found and
reported that 9 packets
pledged at the branch
in the name of various
customers were
spurious. It was
detected that the said

pledges were made
fraudulently without
the presence of the Staff fraud.
actual customers by the Investigation
employees, principal under
perperators and others progress. THIGO
20-06- of the branch and FMR-3 21220
9 NAGAMALAI 2024/04-07- 26.7 | thereby a total amount 5.49 0 30.72 Updated on 2403-
2024 of Rs. 22,93 lakhs was 07-08-2024; 0012
advanced and taken by Recovery Rs
them. 1t is further 2.93 Lakhs.
found that they Staff
fraudulently entered suspended.
false and inflated gold
weights in the system
against 4 loans and an
excess amount of
Rs.3.46 lakhs were
siphoned off, Also, the
said employees
fraudulently advanced
an amount of Rs. 0.31
lakhs in excess by
entering faise net
weight against 4 loan
accounts.
Customer had pledged il::\l.f:giga tion
Spurious ornaments, FMR-3
which was difficult to updated on THIOO
02-07-2024/ identify in the normal . ] 21220
10 NANGLOI 13-07-2024 2.34 appraisal methods due 2.34 0 0.00 07-10-2024; 2403-
to thick coating of gold e by the | 0013
and availed loan of Rs zu‘zzme{ one
2.34 Lakhs, 04-10-2024
Madhukumar in 'Under' .
collusion with ;rgeRs-tlganon
Jayalakshmi, Sitara and Updated on
the customer Padma 13_09_2 024:
falsified the accounts, Recovery - '
cheated and 2.48 laxl;yhs
misappropriated the F.MR 3
funds of the company
29-07-2024/ by maldng false net ggiafzdogi- gilzlgg
11 | VIJAYNAGAR 10-08-2024 17.76 weight.fs and non- 16 0 2398 Recovery - ! 2403
deduction of other 0.82 Lakhs 0014
materials weight, ’
dishonestly by
practicing deception in SM:‘:‘;: d0n
order to gain undue 22_02_2025_
advantage for Insurance - ’
themselves and 8.60 Lakhs:
thereby company Cilsmmers "
sustained loss
2.63 Lakhs
Customer pledged
spuricus ornaments Under. .
which was difficult to Investigation
identify in the normal FMR-3
appraisingf methc:-]ds, as updated on THICO
. 02-09-2024/ it is manufactured in a .| 21220
12 MARATHA‘H:ALL[ 14-09-2024 246 way so that the outer 2.38 0.08 0.00 i?:g—gf;jgeZS, 2403-
: area appraisal will not 0015
yield the actual nature 2"32‘;“': ff
of the ornament, and -4 Sta
availed a gold loan of Eei:gvery )
Rs.2.46 lakhs )




13

GOMATHIPURAM

10-09-
2024/23-09-
2024

3.3

Gold coated ornaments
manufactured with
other materials which
are unidentifiable
when normal
appraising methods are
used and intended only
to make quick money
was pledged and only
when subjected to
vigorous appraisal
during audit, the
spurious nature was
known

330

Under
investigation

THIOQ
21220
2403-
0016

14

BADVEL

i5

VIVEK CIRCLE

05-09-
2024/24-09-
2024

6.44

Gold coated ornaments
manufactured with
other materials which
are unidentifiable
when normal
appraising methods are
used and intended only
to make quick money
was pledged in 2
accounts 6098 and
6118 for a total sum of
643720/- and only
when subjected to
vigorous appraisal
during audit, the
spurious nature was
known

0.24

6.20

Under
investigation
FMR -3
Updated on
06-11-2024;
Recovery -
0.24 Lakhs

THI0O
21220
2403-
0017

13-09-
2024/25-09-
2024

21

A total amount of Rs.2,
09,990/- gold loan was
availed by the
customers with
Rs.1,38,990/- to Mr.
Sharath P and
Rs.71,000/- to Mr.
Ranghaswamy R
through gl.no.
30030226 and
30030243 respectively
by pledging ornaments.
A gold audit was
conducted at the
branch on 13/09/2024
and it was found out in
the audit that the
above-mentioned
ornaments are
spurious. [t was
unidentifiable by a
simple appraisal and
the article can be
identified as spurious
only on a thorough
appraisal and the
article was coated
thickly with gold. We
assume that customers
had coliuded together
to pledge spurious
ornaments at the
branch and have done
this act with the sole
intention of cheating
the company and
thereby make illegal
monetary gain.

21

0.00

Under
investigation
FMR-3
Updated on
27-09-2024.
1 account
closed by the
customer
amount 1.39

FMR-3
Updated on
19-02-2025.
Recovery
from staff -
0.28.
Insurance -
.43

THI0O
21220
2403-
0018
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EDAMUTTAM

13-09-
2024/26-09-
2024

9.9

During the verification
in the gold audit
conducted in the period
12.09.2024 to
18.09.2024, it was
found that S packets
were missing having a
total pledge value of
9.90 lakhs. On further
verification through
CCTV, it was confirmed
that the Branch in
charge Ms. Prathya KM
during her joint
operations of the
strong room on
different dates had
very skilfully had
diverted the attention
of the joint custodian
and deftly stolen the
packets from the strong
room and taken jt
outside with the
intention of enriching
herselfillegally thereby
rendering loss for the
company.

9.9

0.00

Under
investigation

FMR -3
updated on
10-12-2024;
Recovery -
9.90 Lakhs
from
concerned
staff

THIOOD
21220
2403- .
{019

17

KARMANGHAT

30-09-2024/
15-10-2024

0.95

Gold coated ornaments
manufactured with
other materials mixed
in and which are
unidentifiable through
normal appraising
methods are used and
done with the sole
intenticn of making
quick money . The
same was identified
only when subjected to
vigoruous appraisal
during the audit that it
is spurious in nature.

0.95

0.00

Under
investigation
FMR-3
Updated on
25-10-2024;
Full amount
recovered

THIoO
21220
2404-
0020

18

KAVERIPATTINAM

09-10-2024/
22-10-2024

21.16

The customer in
collusion with branch
staff falsified the
accounts, cheated and
misappropriated the
funds of the company
by staff making
intentionally false net
weights and non
deduction of other
materials weight, all in
all through wrong and
false appraisal of the
items and the customer
decepting in order to
gain undue advantage
for the customer and
the employees and
thereby making the
company cope with
substantial loss

859

22.44

Under
investigation

FMR-3
updated on
08-11-2024;
Recovery -
3.71 Lakhs

THIOO
21220
2404
0021




i9

YEMMIGANUR

30-10-2024/
13-11-2024

48.74

Group of customers
colluded with staff,
pledged spurious
ornaments and availed
loans. As the
ornaments were
skillfully made with the
sole purpose of availing
loans which was
pledged in the name of
different customers on
different dates. The
actual nature of the
gold was not detected
during the preliminary
appraisal. It was
identified in the special
audit after the current
auditor suspected the
nature of the gold due
to the pledging of
similar items
continuously.

16.19

32,55

Under
investigation

FMR -3
updated on
13-12-2024.
Recovery of
Rs 1.86
Lakhs from
customers.
Total
Recovery
6.63 Lakhs.

FMR -3
updated on
19-12-2024.
Recovery of
Rs9.56
Lakhs from
customers,
Total
Recovery
16.19 Lakhs

THIOO
21220
2404-
0022

20

ARUPPUKOTTAL- 2

06-11-2024/
15-11-2024

8.82

Customer availed loans
by pledging jewellery
having delicate
designery. Since it was
deeply fabricated item
which is intended for
the sole purpose of
pledging and cheating,
the normal appraisal
metheds did not bear
any results during the
initial appraisal and
later in the initial audit.
Only when deeply
appraised, the true
nature was known

8.82

Under
investigation

THIQO
21220
2404-:
0023

2]

ROYAPURAM

06-11-
2024/21-11-
2024

292

Gold coated ornaments
manufactured with
other materials mixed
in and which are
unidentifiable through
normal appraising
methods are used and
done with the sole
intention of making
quick money . The
same was identified
only when subjected to
vigoruous appraisal
during the audit that it
is spurious in nature.

292

Under
investigation

K6892
403-
0005

22

MANALL

08-11-
2024/21-11-
2024

3.05

Gold coated ornaments
manufactured with
other materials mixed
in and which are
unidentifiable through
normal appraising
methods are used and
done with the sole
intention of making
quick money . The
same was identified
only when subjected to
vigoruous appraisal
during the audit that it
is spurious in nature,

3.05

Under
investigation

K6892
403-
0006
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WATRAP

19-11-
2024/02-12-
2024

2.25

Customer deceitfully
pledged spurious
ornaments and availed
loan from the company.
As a thick layer of gold
was coated over the
ornaments, it could not
be identified in the
preliminary appraisal
at the time of the
pledge. Only upon the
thorough gold audit, it
was known to be
Spurious.

2.25

0.00

Under
investigation

FMR-3
Updated on
07-02-2025;
Full amount
recovered
from the
customer
and account
closed

K6892
403-
0007

24

PARAMAKUDI 2

21-11-2024/
03-12-2024

4.35

Customer deceitfully
pledged spurious
ornaments and availed
loan from the company.
As a thick layer of gold
was coated over the
ornaments, it could not
be identified in the
preliminary appraisal
at the time of the
pledge. Only upon the
thorough gold audit, it
was known to be
Spurious,

4.35

Under
investigation

K6892
403-
6008

25

K.R. PURAM

06-12-
2024/14-12-
2024

3.06

Mr. Mubarak Pasha and
Imthiaz colluded
together with common
intention, deceitfully
pledged spurious gold
and thereby
fraudulently obtained
and obtained loan from
the company which
resulted in a loss of Rs.
305500 for the
company

3.06

Under
investigation

K6892
403-
0009
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ATHEBELE

14-12-
2024/20-12-
2024

1.63

On 06.06.2024,
customer named
Govardhan. N, pledged
a ring having gross
weight of 12.3 grams
vide Gold Loan No.
8023 and advanced an
amount of Rs. 55,000/-
from our Athebele
branch. Subsequently
on 08.06.2024
Govardhan pledged a
locket having gross
weight of 23.7 grams
vide Gold Loan No.
8028 and availed a loan
for Rs. 1, 08,000/- from
the same branch.
[n the meanwhile, it is
known from some of
the nearby NBFCs that
the said customer Mr.
Govardhan has pledged
certain spurious
ornaments in such
companies and
fraudulently advanced
loans from them. Upon
the information, on
14.12.2024, an internal
audit was conducted in
the branch and it was
found and reported
that the aforesaid ring
and locket pledged by
Govardhan was -
spurious. As a thick
layer of gold was
coated aver the
ornaments, it could not
be identified in the
«preliminary appraisal
at the time of the
pledge. Only upon the
thorough gold audit it
was known to be
spurious.

163

Under
investigation

K6892
403-
0010
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KULASHEKARA

09-12-
2024/27-12-
2024

14.46

0n 02.12.2024, a group
of persons including
some of our customers
organized in front of
the branch and
demanded the
allegedly gold pledged
in our branch on the
basis of manual DPN
available with them,
allegedly provided by
the employees, who are
not in our rolls
anymore. As per the
manual DPNs shown by
them, the branch did
not have any loans .
either in the name ner
the amount. An audit
was arranged at the
branch based on the
complaints received at
the branch. From the
audit it was observed

| that Ms Kavitha, ex

Branch in charge and
ex - joint custodian Ms
Karthika along with the
ex RE - Sujin during
their employment had
committed various
malpractices such as
not pledging the
customers gold in their
name and providing
manual DPNs instead of
system generated
DPNs, wherein they
had misappropriated
additional amount and
keeping the pledges in
their acquaintances
name and also received
payments from the
customers directly and
provided fake receipts.
Claims are approximate
made for Rs 3091597/-
, also these claims are
made after a long
period and hence the
customers involvement
is also suspected.
Hence a complaint was
registered in the DSP
office, Thuckalay to
initiate investigation
and bring out the facts.

14.46

Under
investigation

K6892
403-
0011

28

NAGERCOIL

18-12-
2024/30-12-
2024

8.7

The customer
deceitfully pledged
spurious gold
ornaments and
fraudulently availed
and advanced loan
from the company

8.7

0.00

Under
investigation
FMR -3
Updated on
18-02-2025.
Account fully
closed.
Present
recovery
6.33 Lakhs.

K6892
403-
0012

29

KAIPATTOOR

—

02-01-
2025/09-01-
2025

106

The customer
deceitfully pledged
spurious gold
crnaments and
fraudulently availed
and advanced loan
from the company
sustained a total loss of
Rs. 1,05,500/-.

Under
investigation

K6892
504-
:0001




30

TADIPATRI-KADAPA

ROAD

30-12-
2024/14-01-
2025

The customer
deceitfully pledged
spurious gold
ornaments and
frandulently availed
and advanced loan
from the company
sustained a total loss of
Rs. 119449 /-,

119

0.00

Under
investigation

FMR-3
Updated on
17-04-2025.
Total
amount
recovered
from the
customer.

K6892
504-
10002

31

CHAMUNDIPURAM

31-12-
2024/15-01-
205

3.08

The customerr
deceitfully pledged
spurious ornaments
and fraudulently
availed and advanced
loan from the company
, thereby company
sustaining a loss of
Rs.308463

3.08

Under
investigation

K6892
504-
10003

32

NARSAPUR

30-12-
2024/16-01-
2025

10.66

The branch staff
colluded with
customers to
deceitfully pledge
counterfeit ornaments
and fraudulently

{ advanced company

funds. Additionally,
they conspired with
customers to
misappropriate
company resources by
making false entries
into the system, which
led to the approval of
excessive finance for
the customers. It was
also discovered that the
branch head
sanctioned several
fraudulent loans,
resulting in
disproportionate
financial
disbursements to
multiple customers. As
a consequence of these
fraudulent
transactions, the
company incurred a
total loss of Rs. 10,
66,487.

7.45

793

Under
investigation

FMR -3
updated on
21-03-2025;
Present
recovery -
5.45 Lakhs;
Total
Recovery ;
7.45 Lakhs

K6892
504-
10004

33

WEST MOGAPPAIR

04-01-
2025/18-01-
2025

8.36

As a thickly coated
layer of gold was
around the ornaments,
the nature of the
ornaments could not be
detected in the primary
audit. The nature of the
ornaments could be
identified only on deep
cutting and requires
the consent of the
customer, if it is within
the loan tenure period.
Later the spurious

nature was identified

threugh deep cut as
part of the pre - auction
audit since the
accounts had exceeded
the loan tenure period.

B.36

Under
investigation

K6892

10005
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34

MATHIKERE

07-01-
2025/23-01-
2025

2.27

on 06-01-25, Mr Sunil
requested for a
takeover of his gold
loan from another nbfc
, after verifying the
related documents an
amount of Rs. 227360-
was transferred to his
bank account. Instead
of settling the existing
loan at the other nbfc
and providing the
ortnaments to our
branch to pledge, he
misused the amount.
He neither provided
the gold ornaments nor
returned the amount
back to us,

0.00

Under
investigation

K&6892
504-
10006

35

HOSAKOTE

15-01-2025/
24-01-2025

3.38

The customer
deceitfully pledged
spurious - gold coated
ornamnets and
fraudulently availed
and advanced loan
from the company.

232

1.06

Under
investigation

FMR -3
updated on
13-03-2025;
present
recovery
1.86 Lakhs
and total
recovery
2.32 Lakhs.

K6892
504-
10007

36

ELURYU POWERPET

20-01-
2025/31-01-
2025

Branch Manager Mr.
Pagadala Apanda
Samuel and Joint
Custodian Mr.
Pasupuleti Anand
Kumar conspired with
customers Pagadala
Ajay Kumar and Nalluri
Rajesh to pledge
spurious gold with the
company through
deception. They also
misappropriated 135
grams of gold from the
company’s strong
room, resulting in a
substantial financial
loss of Rs. 11,89,800
(loan principal) to the
company.,

37

ONGOLE-KURNQOL
ROAD

23-01-
2025/04-02-
2025

2.63

11.90

Under
investigation

K&892
504-
10008 .

Gold coated ornaments
marnufactured with
other materials mixed
in and which are
unidentifiable through
normal appraising
methods are used and
done with the sole
intention of making
quick money. The same
was identified only
when subjected to
vigorous appraisal
during the audit that it
is spurious in nature.

Under
investigation

K6892
504-
16009
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38

VIDYANAGAR

24-01-
2025/05-02-
2025

1.31

Ayub Pasha
intentionally pledged
spurious gold by
deceitfully
representing it as pure
gold, thereby inducing
the company to
advance a loan and
fraudulently obtaining
the loan, which caused
alossofRs. 1,31,132 to
the company and, in
doing so, cheated the
company.

131

Under
investigation

K6892
504-
10010

39

VELUR

27-01-
2025/10-02-
2025

496

Sagunthaladevi
intentionally pledged
spurious ornaments
along with gold
ornaments under
deceitful
representation
regarding their purity,
thereby inducing the
company to sanction a
loan, which resulted in
the loss of Rs.496307

496

Under
investigation

K6892
504-
10011

40

HSR LAYQUT

01-02-2025/
12-02-2025

2.90

The customer
intentionally pledged
spurious gold by
deceitfully
representing it as pure
gold, thereby inducing
the company to
advance loans and
fraudulently obtaining
the loans, which caused
aloss of Rs. 290000 to
the company and, in
doing so, cheated the
company.

2.90

Under
investigation

K6892
504-
10012

41

' VIDYANAGAR

22-02-2025/
06-03-2025

0.82

Mohammed Adil
intentionally pledged
spurious gold by
deceitfully
representing it as pure
gold, thereby inducing
the company to
advance a loan and
fraudulently obtaining
the loan, which caused
aloss of Rs. 82000 to
the company and, in
deing so, cheated the
company.

0.82

Under
investigation

K6892
S504-
10013

42

KUPPAM TOWN

24-02-
2025/07-03-
2025

2.40

G Srikanth pledged the
articles in the branch
by making a false
declaration that the
said ornaments are
genuine, and thereby
dishonestly induced
the company to
advance loan, which
caused a loss of of Rs
240000.

43

MALLESHWARAM

28-02-
2025/11-03-
2025

—T

16

240

Under
investigation

K6892
504-
10014

Mr. Prabir Poddar
intentionally pledged
spurious gold by
deceitfully
representing it as pure
gold, thereby inducing
the company to
advance a Ioan and
fraudulently obtaining
the loan, which caused
aless of Rs. 160300 to
the company and, .in
doing so, cheated the
company.

Under
investigation




s Customers deceitfully
pledged spurious gold
and thereby
fraudulently obtained Under K6892
08-03-2025/ ) 0 0.92 e | 504
44 | MANDIPET 19-03-2025 052 | and adva ooy ivestigation | 10016
which resulted in a loss
of Rs 92272 /- to the
company.
Customers deceitfully
pledged spurious gold
and thereby Kea92
fraudulently obtained Under
CANTONMENT- 10-03-2025/ _ 1.40 vnder 504-
| Trichy 20-03-2025 14 ?:::::f;:ggf:p‘::; 0 investigation | .-
which resulted in a loss
of Rs 140000/- to the
company.
TOTAL 439.92 222,85 254.12
B.  Frauds amounting to less than one lakhs
- Amount of
SLN Loan Irregularit | Irregularit | Loan
0 GL No Branch Customer Name Date y ¥y Amount | GL Status
KER- . 30-03-
1 16102 VALANCHERRY SHIMI 2024 Spurious 38000 38000 closed
07-05- '
2 48142 KER-PUNALUR1 SUBEESH § 2024 Spurious 37997 38000 closed
21-02-
3 | 65403326 KER-VITHURA SANTHA 2024 Spurious 11258 33000 closed
APR-KUPPAM NARASIMHAPPA N 11-05- |
4 1087475 TOWN S/0 NALLAPPA 2024 Spurious 16616 16616 closed
TLG-NAGAR MANTHATI 18-03-
5 396 KURNQOOL PARUSHARAMULU 2024 Spurious 12000 12000 closed
KAR- 06-05-
6 706209766 | YESHWANTHPUR | SUN ITHA S 2024 Spurious 48000 48000 closed
APR-
MOGHALRAJPURA | AGRAHARAPU 11-05-
7 17341 M SATYANARAYANA 2024 Spurious 8240 30000 closed
VADLAMUDI 23-03-
8 758 TLG-WYRA GOPINATH 2024 Spurious 7419 16734 closed
APR-
KALYANADURGA
M VALMIKI HARIJANA 28-03-
9 1305 CIRCLE RAMANJINAMMA 2024 Spurious 10000 10000 closed
APR-DABALA 23-03-
10 34511 CROSSRD SUKURTHI RAMESH | 2024 Spurious 42400 42400 closed
' 18-04-
11 706308326 | DLH-JANAKPURI SUMIT MASIH 2024 Spurious 21293 21300 closed
09-03-
12 8473 TLG-JAMMIKUNTA | POLU SRIKANTH 2024 Spurious 43000 43000 closed
20-03-
13 113 GU)-DINDOLI STYAM MISHRA 2024 Spurious 37924 37924 closed
RAGHVENDRA 05-04-
14 17031 KAR-DHARWAD TRAYAMBAK NAYAK | 2024 Spurious 17800 17800 closed
APR- CHAKALI 27-04-
15 30009560 ANANTHAPURAM | VEERANARAYANA 2024 Spurious 20481 46200 closed
TLG-GANDHI 16-02- e N
16 4876 CHOWK KOTTE RAJAMMA 2024 Spurious 6000 f\c)psed
08-05- . e
17 512628980 | APR-NARSAMPET | BAN OTH SANGYA 2024 Spurious 20472 120472 clysed
- ' 18-04- I
18 77004318 ~MANDIPET CHANDRASHEKAR V 2024 Spurious 50000 50000 ! closed




KAR- _
LINGARAJAPURA 17-05-
19 7952 M LALITH KUMAR JAl | 2024 Spurious 6414 37500 | closed
TML- BALASUBRAMANIYA | 09-05-
20 49072 ALWARKURICHI | N A 2024 Spurious 29996 30000 | closed
28-03-
21 29193 TML-HOSUR-I ZAMSHEED K 2024 Spurious 5581 23995 | closed
07-06
22 44301 TML-TENKASI AYINANGAI S 2024 Spurious 45997 46000 | closed
TML-ANNA 09-05-
23 32342 NAGAR CHANDRAN M 2024 Spurious 7272 25000 | closed
13-04-
24 51736 _| TML-UDANGUDI | SANTHANARAJ R 2024 Spurious 16492 46400 | closed
TML-
PUDUKKOTTAL 19-03- :
25 14481 PDK DST-3 KAVITHA 2024 Spurious 36397 36400 closed
TML- 12-03-
26 ] 10828 MANAPPARAI PRAKASH 2024 Spurious 10500 10500 | closed
04-04-
27 15353 TML-RAJA STREET | MOHAN N 2024 Spurious 15905 58325 | closed
28 77005397 KAR-MANDIPET SYED SALMAN § ‘2’;;}1' Spurious 37107 37107 | Active
29 77005414 | KAR-MANDIPET MUDDAIAH H 33'211' Spurious 55165 55165 [ Active
30 18477 | KAR-VIDYANAGAR | MOHAM MED ADIL g S;}O_ Spurious 82000 82000 Active
a1 | 8754 KARMANGHAT | SURYA PAVAN Goup | 95:07- [ 95347 95347
2024 closed

7. Discl(.)surt? required as per Annex VII of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company- Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

SECTION I

1. EXPOSURES

1.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector (Rupees In lakhs)

| -—As at 31.03.2024

—~
(a) Residential Mortgages - _—
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential

prope;rty that is or will be Occupied by the borroweror that is
rente

(c) Investntents in Mortgage Backed Securities

other securitised €xposures -




b. Commercial Real Estate

II) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing
Bank and Housing Finance Companies.

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 235.38 643.23
1.2 Exposure to Capital Market
(Rupees In lakhs}
Category As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual 2,590.62 992.14
funds the corpus of which is not
exclusively invested in corporate debt;
(ii)Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other - -
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares
(including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and unitsof equity-
oriented mutual funds;
(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares orconvertible - -
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary
security;
(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the - -
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primarysecurity other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented
mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;
(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers - -
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers andmarket
makers;
(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of - -
shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis for meeting promoter'scontribution to the equity of new
companies in
anticipation of raising resources;
(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expectedequity - -
flows / issues;
(viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect - -
of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
(xi) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading
(x) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
(i) Category I
(ii) Category II
| (iii) Category HI
Total Exposure to Capital Market 2,590.62 992 .14
e
SRS
f‘ 15RISSUF T

|
A A

e
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1.3 Sectoral exposure

Sector As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Total Gross Percentage | Total Gross Percenta
Exposure NPAs of NPAs Exposure NPAs ge of
(includes to Total (includes on NPAs
on balance Advances balance to
sheet and in that sheet and Total
off- sector off-balance Advan
balance sheet cesin
sheet exposure) that
exposure) sector
Agriculture & allied -
activities
Industry -
Services -
Personal Lean
(0 Gold Loan
3,81,256.08 1,897.81 0.50% 3,22,221 23 2,368.56 | 0.74%
(ii) Microfinance
Loans 32,668.83 1,528.21 4.68% 29,413.11 - {653.83 2.22%
(iii}  Loan against
property 235.38 91.93 39.06% 643.23 91.93 14.29%
Others -
(Rupees In lakhs)

*In the disclosures as above, if within a sector, exposure to a specific sub-sector/industry is more than 10 per cent of Tier
I Capital of a NBFC, the same shall be disclosed separately within that sector. Further, within a sector, if exposure to
specific sub-sector/industry is less than 10 per cent of Tier | Capital, such exposures shall be clubbed and disclosed as
“Others” within that sector.

1.4 Intra group exposures

Top 20 Intra group exposure as on 31,03.2025 are:

(Rupees In lakhs)
SLNo Customer Exposure 0/s as on % of exposure on total
31.03.2025 exposure of the NBFC
(in lakhs)
01 Muthoottu Mini Hotels Limited 143.45 0.03%
Total 143.45
5B AY
H
1.5 Unhedged foreign currency exposures \5 e

o ‘
\\%& A

e
The company does not have unhedged foreign currency exposures for the financial year ended March 31,2025



2: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

(Rupees In Lakhs)

Particulars

Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP)

Relative of KMP

Entity in which ,
KMP/Relative of KMP has
significant influence

March
31,2025

March
31,2024

March
31,
2025

March
31,
2024

March 31,
2025

March 31,
2024

Maximum Outstanding During the year

Borrowings

A. Debentures outstanding

Mathew Muthoottu

9.00

2.00

Nizzy Mathew

33.25

34.25

Roy M Mathew

36.00

21.00

Arlin Anna Philip

54.00

54.00

B. Subordinate Debt outstanding

Mathew Muthoottu

Nizzy Mathew

6.00

6.00

Roy M Mathew

5.00

5.00

Deposits

Advances

A. Loan Against property

551.30

596.39

Investments

Outstanding During the year

Borrowings

A. Debentures outstanding

Mathew Muthoottu

1.00

9.00

Nizzy Mathew

21.25

29.25

Roy M Mathew

18.00

21.00

Arlin Anna Philip

25.00

54.00

B. Subordinate Debt outstanding

Mathew Muthoottu

Nizzy Mathew

6.00

6.00

Roy M Mathew

5.00

5.00

Deposits

Advances

A. Loan Against property

143.45

551.30

Investments

Interest Paid

A. Interest on Debenture /Subdebt

4.15

5.16

9.62

9.00

Interest Received

A. Loan Against property

55.27

80.67

Others

- 710.68

609.56

Salary & Allowapces%l é (/



*Specify item if total for the item is more than 5 per cent of total related party transactions. Related parties would includ

trusts and other bodies in which the NBFC can directly or indirectly (through its related

influence

3. DISCLOSURE OF COMPLAINTS

parties) exert control or significan

3.1  Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of
Ombudsman
Sr.No Particulars Current Previous
Year Year
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 0 0
2 Number of complaints received during the year 12 8
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year 12 8
3.1 | Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 0 0
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 0
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from
5 13 8
Office of Ombudsman
51 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favor of the NBFC by 13 8
| Office of Ombudsman
59 0f 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation 0 0
| /mediation / advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman
53 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by 0 0
" | Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC
& Number of Awards unimplemented within NA NA
the stipulated time (other than those appealed)

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned

in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Bankin

2018) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.
* 1t shall only be applicable to NBFCs which are included under The Reserve Bank - Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021

3.2 Top 5 ground of complaints received by the NBFC from Customers:

g Financial Companies,

' Of 5,
Grounds of Numbe_r of Numbe-r of % increase / decrease in the Number: of Number of
. . complaints complaints . complaint .
complaints (ie, . . number of complaints . complaint
- . pending at the received . . s pending .
complaints relating . A received over the previous s pending
beginning of during the at the end
to) year beyond 30
the year year of the year
days
1 2 3 4 5 6
Current Year e _
Loans & Advances 0 0 . \ -100% 0 0
Difficuity in operation o e) 0
of accounts /% 0 8 L ."100 % 0 0
= L



Non-Observance of 0 3 100% 0

fair practice code

Others 0 1 0% 0
Previous Year

Loans & Advances 0 7 250%

Facilities to

customers visiting the

office / adherence to 0 0 -100% | O ¢

prescribed working

hours

Others 0 1 -50% | 0 0

Ground - 4 0 0 0% |0 0

Section II

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements relating to significant
accounting policies as specified under the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
and the Companies Act, 2013. The detailed accounting policies have been disclosed in the
Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements.

2.1 Capital
(Rupees In lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1. CRAR {%) 21.38% 23.86%
2. CRAR- Tier I Capital (%) 16.14% 16.93%
3. CRAR- Tier Il Capital (%) 5.24% 6.93%
4. Amount of subordinated debt raised as tier [] Capital 19,066.77 22,113.89
5. Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt - -
Instrument
2.2 Investments
(Rupees In lakhs)
| Particulars As at 31.03.2025 | Asat 31.03.2024
(2.2.1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) In India - 2,590.62 99214
(b} Outside India, - -
(ii} Provisions for Depreciation [
~ (a) InIndia - -\
{b) Outside India, = | - -
(iif) Net Value of Investments %%,
///
/‘




(a) In India

2,590.62

992.14

{b) Outside India,

(2.2.2} Movement of provisions held
towards depreciation on investments

(i) Opening balance

(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year

(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excessprovisions
during the year

(iv) Closing balance




2.3 Derivatives

1. Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

(Rupees In lakhs)

Particulars As at31.03.2025

Asat 31.03.2024

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements -

(ii) Losses which would be incurred if -
counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations
under the agreements

(iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBEC upon -
| entering into swaps

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the -
swaps

{v) The fair value of the swap book -

2. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

Particulars

Amount

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivativesundertaken
during the year {instrument-wise}

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivativesoutstanding
as on 31st March 2017 (instrument-wise)

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivativesoutstanding
and not "highly effective” {instrument-wise)

(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivativesoutstanding
and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise)

3.  Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

*  Qualitative Disclosure
Company does not have exposure to derivatives

*  Quantitative Disclosures

Currency
Particulars Derivatives

Derivatives

(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)} _ -

For hedging .

(i) Marked to Market Positions [1] -

a) Asset (+) -

b} Liability {-) :

(iii) Credit Exposure [2]

(iv) Unhedged Exposures

2.4 Asset Liability Management

Interest Rate —]




Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

(Rupees In lakhs)

Particulars Oto ; Bio 15 Over 1 Over 2 Over3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 3 Over S Total

7 14 to month month | month& | Month& year & years & years

days| day 30/3 upto2 | sup to up to 6 uptol upto3 | uptoS5

s 1 Month 3 meonth year years years
days month
s
Deposits ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Advances*®
1,252.38|2,131.52| 7,203.88 | 31,191.17 |23,057.87| 58,626.41 |2,59,266.52| 25,182.73 0.00 2,764.49 4,10,676.97

Investments - - - - - - - - - 2590.62 2590.62.
Borrowings (4,318.44| 739.74 | 3,659.31 | 10,610.58 |12,048.74| 45,434.77 | 1,55,962.541,47,803.45| 29,602.57 1,702.24 4,11,882.39
Foreign - - - - - - - - - R
Currency
assets
Foreign - - - - - - - - - -
Currency
liahilities

2.5 Exposures

*Includes interest receivable

2.5.1. Details of financing of parent company products

Company does not have a parent company and hence disclosure is not applicable.

2.5.2. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceededby the

NBFC

Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit {SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL)during
the year.

2.5.3. Unsecured Advances

i)

Company does not have unsecured advances on intangible securities such as charge over
rights, licenses, authorizations etc. as collateral.

The company has unsecured advances (Micro Finance loan) of Rs. 32,668.83 lakhs given
to group of women against their joint liability.




;3. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

3.1 Composition of the Board

Number of
Board Remuneration
Meetings No. of
Capacity (i.e. shares
E i .
xecutive/ Sala held in
Non- and
Executive/ No. of ryd c convert
Sl Chairman/ other atr;l 0 ble
No | Nameof| Director Promoter Direct | Othe N M strum
Director since nominee/ DIN Hel | Attend or r Sitting | m ents
Independent) d ed ships | com Fee | is | yoidin
pens si
. the
atio 0
NBFC
n n
33,54,446
0,
Nizzy Chairman & (13.40%)
1 Mathew 10/10/2014 ng?.iegféine 01680739 28 28 8 NCD:
2,125
units
1,48,59,91
. 2
Mathew Managing o
2 Muthoottu 07/03/2008 Director 01786534 28 28 9 (59.36%)
NCD: 100
Mz::ll;):-ku Non Executive
3 01/10/2021| Independent |09357326|28 | 28 0 6.90 Nil
Raveendr :
. Director
a Panicker
Mampuzh Non Executive
4 |aMathew{01/04/2024 Independent |[00640728| 28 28 0 5.35 Nil
Herbert Director
Venugopal Non Executive
5 |Kuttappan|08/10/2024| Independent |[06783512)12 | 12 1 2.45 Nil .
Nair Director
Indian
Babita Non Executive Ceosnipl\?irl" Nil
6 Teresa |16/11/2024 . 10838844 | 8 8 . 1.20
Director Foreign
George ) .
Compani
es-5




Details of change in composition of the Board during the current financial year (2024-2025).

Capacity

. , . Nature of change
sl. - (cl: Execuu;e/ Non-Executive/ (Resignation, Effective date
No. Name of Director airman/ Promoter nominee/ appointment)
independent)
1 |Paul Jose Maliakal Non-Executive Retirement 31/03/2024
2  |Rajagopal Saseendran; Non-Executive Retirement 30/09/2024
Mangalathu
3 [Mampuzha Mathew Herbert Non-Executive Appointment 01/04/2024
4 [Venugopal Kuttappan Nair Non-Executive Director Appointment 08/10/2024
5 [Venugopal Kuttappan Nair Non-Executive Director Regularization as Non 23/12/2024
Executive Independent
Director
6 |Babita Teresa George Additional Director Appointment 16/11/2024
Babita Teresa George Non-Executive Director Regularization as Non 10/02/2025
Executive Director
8  Mrs Nizzy Mathew Whole Time Director Re appointment 01/01/2025

Details of change in composition of the Board during the previous financialyear (2023-2024).

Capacity

Nature of change

SL | Name of Director . . Effective date
{ie, Executive/ Non- P
No. Executive/  Chairman/ gg;zliirtl;t;zg
Promoter nominee/
Independent)
NIL

Relationship between Directors

Except as stated below, none of our Directors are related to each other:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation Relationship with other Directors
1. Nizzy Mathew Chairman and Wholetime Director Mother of Mathew Muthoottu
2. Mathew Muthoottu Managing Director Son of Nizzy Mathew




3.2

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Committees of the Board and their composition

Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Number of No. of shares held
Sl. No. [Name of Director Committee Non-Executive/ Meetings of the in the NBFC
since Chairman/ Promoter Committee
nominee/ Independent) Held | Attended
1 Manoj Kumar R 17-04-2024 Chairman 5 5 Nil
2 M M Herbert 08-10-2024 Member 2 2 Nil
3 Mathew Muthoottu 07-03-2008 Member 5 5 1,48,59,912 (59.36%
4 Rajagopal MS! 09-10-2020 Chairman 3 3 Nil
LCeased with effect from 30-09-2024
2. NRCCOMMITTEE
SL Name of Director  [Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Number of No. of shares held
No. Committee Non-Executive/ Meetings of the in the NBFC
since Chairman/ Promoter Committee
nominee/ Independent) Held | Attended
1 Manoj Kumar R 09-11-2021 Chairman 3 3 Nil
2 MM Herbert 17-04-2024 Member 3 3 Nil
3 | Venugopal K Nair 08-10-2024 Member 1 1 Nil
4 Rajagopal MS2 09-10-2020 Member 0 0 Nil
ZCeased with effect from 30-09-2024
3. DEBENTURE COMMITTEE
Sl No. Name of Director Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Number of No. of shares held
Committee Non-Executjve/ Meetings of the in the NBFC
since Chairman/ Promoter Committee
nominee/ Independent} | Held | Attended |
1 Manoj Kumar R 08-10-2024 Chairman 2 2 Nil
2 Nizzy Mathew 10-12-2013 Member 3 33,54,446 (13.40%)
3 Mathew Muthoottu 10-12-2013 Member 3 3 1,48,59,912 (59.36%’
4 Rajagopal MS5 09-10-2020 Member 1 1 Nil

5Ceased with effect from 30-09-2024




4. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Number of
SL . Member of Non-Executive/ Meetings of the | No. of shares held
No, | NameofDirector | Committee Chairman/ Promoter Committee in the NBFC
since nominee/ independent) Held | Attended
1 Manoj Kumar R 08-10-2024 Chairman 2 2 Nil
2 Nizzy Mathew 10-12-2013 Member 4 4 33,54,446 (13.40%)
3 Mathew Muthoottu 10-12-2013 Member 4 4 1,48,59,912 (59.36%
4 Rajagopal MS3 09-10-2020 Chairman 2 2 Nil
3. Ceased with effect from 30-09-2024
5. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
ity (i i Number of .
_ Member of Capacity (i.e, Ex'ecutlve/ Meetings of the No. of shares held
Sl. No. [Name of Director Committee Non-Executive/ Committee in the NBFC
since Chairman/ Promoter Held | Attended
nominee/ Independent)
2 Nizzy Mathew 22-04-2013 Member 4 4 33,54,446 (13.40%)
3 Mathew Muthoottu 22-04-2013 Member 4 4 1,48,59,912 (59.36%
4 Rajagopal MSs 09-10-2020 Member 2 2 Nil
6Ceased with effect from 30-09-2024
6. INVESTMENTS AND BORROWINGS COMMITTEE
itv (i i Number of
' Membt?r of Capacity (1.?':., Executive/ Meetings of the No. of shares held
Sl No. [Name of Director Committee Non-Executive/ Committee in the NBFC
since Chairman/ Promoter Held | Attended
nominee/ Independent}
1 Manoj Kumar R 23-09-2024 Chairman 17 17 Nil
2 Nizzy Mathew 01-10-2021 Member 27 27 33,54,446 (13.40%)
3 Mathew Muthoottu 01-10-2021 Member 27 27 1,48,59,912 (59.36%
4 Rajagopal MS7 01-10-2021 Member 11 11 Nil
7Ceased with effect from 30-09-2024
7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
51. No. Name of Director Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Number of No. of shares held
Committee Non-Executive/ Meetings of the in the NBFC
since Chairman/ Promoter Committee |7 =0
o nominee/ Independent) | Held Attende’éé’ .
1 Manoj Kumar R: 08-10-2024 Chairman

2 2\
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- 0,
2 Nizzy Mathew 10-04-2014 Member 7 7 33,54,446 (13.40%)
YR
3 Mathew Muthoottu 10-04-2014 Member 7 7 1,48,59,912 (59.36%,
4 Rajagopal MS* 09-10-2020 Chariman# 5 5
+ Ceased with effect from 30-09-2024
8. IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE
S1. No. [Name of Director Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ M g%?ﬁgﬂ?tfhe NO-. of shares held
Committee Non-Executive/ Committee in the NBFC
since Chairman/ Promoter Held | Attended
nominee/ Independent)
1 Maan Kumar R 17-04-2024 Chairman 6 6 Nil .
2 Nizzy Mathew 28-09-2017 Member 6 6 33,54,446 (12 40%)
3 Mathew Muthoottu 28-09-2017 Member 6 6 1,48,59,912 (59.36%’
3.3 General Body Meetings
Details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meetings -
FY 2024-25
SL | Type of Meeting | Date and | Special Resolutions Passed
No | (Annual/Extra- Place
Ordinary)
1 Annual General Meeting | 30/09/2024 | 1. Related party transaction with Muthoottu mini hotels private
KOCHI limited under section 188 of the companies act 2013- approved
2. related party transaction with Muthoottu mini theatres private
limited under section 188 of the companies act 2013- approved
3. Approval for adoptions of memorandum of association of the
company in line with the provisions of the companies act 2013-
approved
4. Adoption of new set of articles of the company-approved
5. Alteration of main objects clause by adding new object clause in
the memorandum of association of the company-approved
2 Extraordinary General | 01/04/2024 | 1. Appointment of Mr Mampuzha Mathew Herbert as an
Meeting Kochi Independent Director
2. Reappointment of Mr Mathew Muthoottu as Managing Director
3. Approval of payment of remuneration to Mr. Mathew Muthoottu,
Managing Director
4. Approval of Related party transaction under section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013- Corporate Guarantee from Muthoottu Mini
Hotels Private Limited
5. Approval of Related party transaction under section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013- Corporate Guarantee from Muthottu Mini
Theaters Private Limited '
_ 6. _Modification of Object clause of MOA of the,(_;qrn;gapy.
3 Extraordinary General | 23/12/2024 | 1. Approval of the appointment of Mr Venv;@f)’ﬂ Rmﬂ nNairasa
Meeting Kochi Non Executive Independent Director /%7 .
e — [Z{ cumigsuR: ‘)m




Extraordinary General | 10/02/2025
Meeting KOCHI

1. Reappointment of Mrs Nizzy Mathew as Whole Time Director
2. Regularization of Additional Director Mrs Babita Teresa George

as Non Executive Director of the Company

3.4  Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

NIL

3.5  Details of penalties and strictures

NIL

4. Breach of covenant

NIL

5. Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

The RBI has neither assessed any additional provisioning requirements in excess of 5 percent of the reporte«
profits before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the financial year ended March 31, 202¢
nor identified any additional Gross NPAs in excess of 5% of the reported Gross NPAs for the said period.

6. Miscellaneous

6.1 Related Party Transactions

Name and Particulars of the Related
Party

Relationship with the Company

MATHEW MUTHOOTTU(MANAGING
DIRECTOR)

NIZZY MATHEW (WHOLE TIME
DIRECTOR)

P E MATHAI(CEO)

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

ANN MARY GEORGE, ACA (CFO0)

SMITHA K.S, ACS (CS)

VENUGOPAL K NAIR

M M HERBERT

MANOKKUMAR R

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

M S RAJAGOPAL

BABITHA TERESA GEORGE

NON-EXECUTIVE NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

ROYAL GOLD

TANZANITE MARKETING SOLUTIONS
(OPC) PVT LTD

ENTITY IN WHICH RELATIVE OF KMP / DIRECTOR IS

MINI MUTHOOTTU MATHEW MEMORIAL
FOUNDATION

INTERESTED

ARLIN ANNA PHILIP

ROY M MATHEW

RELATIVE OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

MINI MUTHOOTTU NIDHI KERALA LTD

MINI MUTHOOTTUNIRMAN&REAL
ESTATEP LTD

M/S MUTHOOTTU MINI HOTELS P LTD

ENTITY IN WHICH KMP HAS SIGNIFICANT INFLUE

MUTHOOTTU FINANCE AND SERVICES

PRIVATE LIM]TEV’/

o




MILANCHE

MUTHOOTTU INFOTECH PRIVATE

LIMITED

List of transactions entered with related parties during the current & previous financial year

(Rupees In lakhs)

Particulars

Key Managerial
Personnel
(KMP)

Director

Relative of KMP

Entity in which
Relative of KMP
/Director is
interested

Entity in which KMP
has significant
influence

March | March
31, 31,
2025 2024

Marc | March
h 31, 31,
2025 | 2024

March
31,
2025

March
31,
2024

March
31,
2025

March
31,2024

Maich
31,2025

March 31.
2024

Salary & Allowances

710.68 | 609.56

Sitting fees

16.60 | 11.05

Rent/ Maintenance
charges

7.11 1.59

9.33

1.81

11.46

19.23

Rent Received

3.49

3.34

4.54

20.09

Debenture/subdebt
interest

4.15 5.16

9.63

9.00

Debenture redeemed

28.00 5.00

47.00

Debenture holdings*

28.25 44.25

48.00

80.00

Subdebt Redeemed

Loan Against Property
outstanding

143.45

551.30

Debenture Investment

12.00

15.00

21.00

Subdebt investment

6.00

Interest on Loan against
property

55.27

80.67

Principal repayment of
Loan against property

407.85

45.09

Payment towards
Purchase of materials /
Stationery

214.43

18.21

Corporate social
responsibility

2.00

19.34

Business promotion

23.34

18.21

3.38

Purchase for marketing
Activities

3.10

85.94

Commission Received

11.75

10.56

Purchase of Gold coin

8.11

2617

Travelling Expenses

21.28 28.89

0.29

Lift Moderization
Charges

15.25

Auction sales

5.53

IT Consultancy &
Support Services

*Purchased from seCondary market




Charge created on assets of related party

The following entities have extended collateral security and corporate guarantee for theborrowings

from banks
1. Muthoottu Mini Hotels Private Limited;
2. M/s Muthoottu Mini Theatres Private Limited

The following related parties have extended personal guarantee for the borrowings frombanks
1.  Mrs. Nizzy Mathew

2.  Mr. Mathew Muthoottu
3. Roy M Mathew

6.2 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the

year
Name of the credit o . .
d
rating agency Type of facility Rating assigne
India Ratings and Commercial paper IND Al
Research Private Non-convertible debentures IND A-/Stable
Limited Bank loan IND A-/Stable
Long-term bank facilities CARE A-; Stable
CARE Ratings Limited Non-convertible debentures CARE A-; Stable
Commercial paper CARE A1l
. For Proposed Non-convertible
ICRA Ratings debentures [ICRA] A (Stable)

6.3 Remuneration to Non-Executive directors

(Rupees In lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Sitting fees 19.60 11.05
Travel expenses - -

6.4 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting

policies
Particulars Rupees In lakhs
Total Comprehensive Income 9,452.97
Prior Period Items Nil
Changes in Accounting Policy ' -

6.5 Revenue Recognition

The company has recognized revenue as per the policy on revenue recognition set out in the
Significant Accounting Policies. Apart from the interest on NPAs, there are no other items in
respect of which revenue recognition has been postponed pending resolution of significant
uncertainties.

7. Additional Disclosures

7.1 Provisions and Contingencies



{Rupees In lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies shown under -

the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account
Provisions for depreciation on Investment

865.22 396.64

Provision towards NPA

Provision made towards Income tax 3048.70 3,258.12
Provision for gratuity 345.03 142,71
Provision for Standard Assets 148.15 193.93

7.2 Draw Down from Reserves

There is no draw down from reserves during the year.
7.3 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
(i) Concentration of Deposits
Since company is not a deposit taking NBFC, this disclosure is not applicable to the company.

(i)  Concentration of Advances

Particulars RupeesIn lakhL‘
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers (Rs.in lakhs) 1824.01
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total 0.44%
Advances of the applicable NBFC

(iii)  Concentration of Exposures

[ Particulars Rupees In lakhs
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 1824.01
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers to Total 0.44%
exposure of the NBFC borrowers/customers

(iv)  Concentration of NPA

Particulars Rupees In
lakhs
| Total Exposure to top four NPA Accounts 217.56
7.4 Movement of NPAs
(Rupees In lakhs)
Particulars Asat 31.03.2025 Asat 31.03.2024
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.50% 0.72%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a ning balance
| (a)Opening 3,114.32 139981
(b) Additions during the year 2,511.93 CCEAETN 202122
* - ‘z? ‘ ’7.
t s P
(c JReductions during the year 2.108.30 é(THHISSUP. ‘}c:\ 306.71
N S
| (d) Closing balanc @ &y
(d) Closing balance 3,517.95 \\-s// 3,114.32




(iii) Movement of Net NPAs

() Opening balance 2,532.56 1,214.70
(b) Additions during the year 1,480.46 1700.72
(¢ JReductions during the year 194205 382.86
(d} Closing balance 2.070.97 : 253256

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs :

(excluding provisions on standard

assets)
(a) Opening balance 581.76 185.12
(b) Provisions made during the

year 1,031.47 320.49
(c )Write-off / write-back of

€XCess provisions 166.25 -76.15
(d) Closing balance 1,446.98 581.76

7.5 Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

Company has not sponsored any off Balance Sheet SPVs

SECTION It

. (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total Asset under Management (on books) : 4,14,160.29 3,52,277.57
Total Loan against Gold : ' 3,81,256.08 3,22,221.23
Percentage of Gold Loan on Total Assets (on ' 92.06% 91.47%
book} ] J

-




2. Disclosure in terms of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.
102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 November, 2019.

Public disclosure on liquidity risk

a. Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and

b.

C.

d.

borrowings)
Sr No. Number of Amount (in %of Total % of Total
Significant lakhs) deposits liabilities
Counter
Parties*
1 22 2,11,484.61 NA 50.84%

*A "Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected
or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC's

total liabilities.

# Total liabilities exclude equity and other equity.

Top 20 large deposits

Since company is not a deposit taking NBFC, this disclosure is not applicable to the company.

Top 10 borrowings

Amount (in lakhs) % of Total borrowings
1,45,103.52 35.05%
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
(Rupees in lakhs)
Sr | Name of the . % of Total
No. instrument/product Amount liabilities
1 | Secured Public Issue NCD 77,929.39 18.74%
2 | Unsecured Public Issue NCD 16,478.66 3.96%
3 Secured, Privately Placed 38,720.94 9.31%
NCD
4 | Subordinated debt 34,501.92 8.29%
5 | Term Loan 1,48,566.40 35.72%
6 | Working Capital Loan 83,185.46 20.00%
7 { Unsecured Commercial Paper 14,642.36 3.52%
Total 4,14,025.13 99.54%

# A "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of
group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1%

-of the NBFC's total liabilities.

# Total liabilities exclude equity and other equity.

/C‘; ‘:LS & “s‘-.?__.

N
NN
.

e Vo
ol ‘rHHl‘SSUH-ij'“. ;
z I
)

o




* Amount includes interest accrued on the same

e. Stock Ratios:

Sr. Stock Ratio %

No.

1 Commercial papers as a % of total public funds 3.54%

2 Commercial papers as a % of total assets 295%

3 Commercial papers as a % total liabilities 3.52%

4 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one -
year} as a % of total public funds

5 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one -

year) as a % of total assets

6 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one -
year) as a % total liabilities

7 Other short-term liabilities as a % of total public funds 42.24%
8 Other short-term liabilities as a % of totalassets 35.26%
9 Other short-term liabilities as a % totalliabilities 42.04%

# Other short-term liabilities include ali liabilities maturing within 12 months (excluding commercial
paper & non-convertible debentures) '

# Public funds include debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated
liabilities
# Total liabilities exclude equity and other equity.

f. Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Company has constituted Risk Management Committee of the Board to assist the
Board of Directors in the execution of its risk management accountabilities. The
Committee provide the Board of Directors an independent and objective oversight view
of the information to review Company’s financial risk activities and provide an
assurance to the Board of Directors that the Company has implemented an effective
ongoing processto identify the risk, to measure the potential impact and proactively
manage these risksand to decide the tolerance for the risk.

3. Disclosure as per the circular no RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0O.109/2 2.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13,2020 issued by Reserve Bank of
India on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

(Rupees In lakhs)




£

Asset Asset Gross Carrying Loss Net Provisio | Difference
Classification | classi | Amount asperInd | Allowances Carrying ns between
as per ficati AS (Provisions) Amount required Ind
RBI Norms onas as required as AS 109
per under Ind AS per provisions
indAS 109 IRACP and IRACP
109 norms norms
Performing
Assets
Standard Stage 1 4,03,361.45 1,778.89 | 4,01,582.56 | 1,615.16 163.73
Stage 2 7,280.91 257.46 7,023.46 28.90 228.55
Subtotal 4,10,642.36 2,036.34 | 4,08,606.02 | 1,664.06 392.28
Non-
Performing
Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,393.16 361.97 1,031.20 276.43 85.53
Doubtful - up Stage 3 993.20 463.67 529.54 907.41 (443.74)
to 1 year
1to 3 years Stage 3 392.26 154.91 237.35 327.06 (172.15)
More than 3 Stage 3 418.27 145.39 272.88 209.30 (63.91)
years
Subtotal for 3,196.89 1,125.93 2,07096 | 1,720.20 (594.27)
doubtful
Loss Stage 3 321.05 321.05 - 321.05 -
Subtotal for 3,517.95 1,446.98 2,070.96 | 2,041.26 (594.27)
NPA
Total Stage 1 4,03,361.45 177889 | 4,01,58256 | 1,615.16 163.73
Stage 2 7,280.91 257.46 7,023.46 28.90 228.55
Stage 3 3,517.95 1,446.98 2,07096 | 2,041.26 (594.27)
Total 4,14,160.30 3483.33 | 4,10,676.98 | 3,685.32 (201.99)
4. Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBI/DOR/2021-22/85
DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/2021-22 dated 24 September 2021
The Company has not entered into any securitisation transactions during the

current year and previous year.

5. Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notifi

cation - RBI/DOR/2021-22 /86

DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 24 September 2021

-a. The Company has not undertaken any assignment transactions during the
current year and previous year,

b. No stressed loans transferred during the current year and previous year.

Points to discuss:

 —




. The Company invoked resolution plans to relieve COVID-19 pandemic related stress to eligible
borrowers. The resolution plans are based on the parameters laid down in the resolution policy
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the guidelines issued by

the RBI on August 6, 2020 and May 5, 2021. The sta
accounts where the resolution plans are invoked and im

Approved Policy in this regard.

Disclosure on Resclution Framework 2.0 im
RBI/2020-21/16 DOR. NO.BP.BC/3
RBI/2021-22/31/DOR.STR.REC.11 /

a) Format B: For the year ended March 31, 2025

ging of accounts and provisioning for the eligible
plemented is in accordance with the Board

plemented in terms of RBI notification no.
/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 and
21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 05, 2021

(X in lakhs)
Exposure to Of (A), of(A), | of(a), F"‘"“S“lre to a
accounts classified aggregate | amount | amount accounts classifie
as Standard debtthat | written | paid by as Standard
Type of consequent tf’ slipped off the - consequen_t to
implementation of . . implementation of
Borrower luti i into NPA during | borrowers )
resolution plan - ) ) resolution plan -
Position as at 31 during the the during the .
. . . . . . Position as at the
March,2023 Financial Financi | Financial
end of the year 31
Year al Year Year
March,2024
(A) (B) (C) (D) (E)*
Personal loans -
Corporate -
loans
Of which - - - - -
MSMEs
Others - - - - -
Total -
ota -

*represents the closing balance of loan accounts as on March 31, 2025
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